EXHIBIT 8

PAGE 68



Antelope Valley Watermaster Board
Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, April 24, 2019 — 10:00 a.m.
Location: Antelope Valley — East Kern Water Agency
6450 West Avenue N, Palmdale, CA 93551
‘Website; hitps://zoom.us/i/6670679173 Teleconference: (929) 436-2866 Access Code: 667 067 9173

1) Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance Pgsmd: Q—PFL"Q‘ <, QO
2) Roll Call P,{
D

. By: Uea Kesse
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Patricia Rose Secretary

Robert Parris, AVEK - Chairperson

Dennis Atkinson, Landowners — Vice-Chairperson

Adam Ariki, Los Angeles County Waterworks District 40
John Calandri, Landowners

Leo Thibault, Public Water Suppliers

Phyllis Stanin, Todd Groundwater - Watermaster Engineer
Craig Parton, Price Postel & Parma LLP - General Counsel

3) Adoption of Agenda (Note: At the discretion of the board, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or
not expressly listed for action, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board,)

4) Public comments for non-agenda items. (This portion of the agenda allows an individual the
opportunity to address the Board on any item regarding Watermaster business that is NOT ON THE
AGENDA. Without acting or entering a dialogue with the public, Board members may ask clarifying
questions about topics posed by the public. Your matter may be referred to the administrator and/or
advisory committee.)

5) Special Presentations — None

6) Consent Agenda
A. Payment of the bills through April 18, 2019
B. Treasurer’s Report month ending March 29, 2019
a. Aging Summary
b. Production Report- Update
C. Minutes of March 27, 2019

7) Advisory Committee Report

8) Action Items

A. Well Applications i.e., Small Pumper Qualifying and Monitoring Wells
a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-07 Small Pumper Qualifying
well applications.

B. Well Applications i.e., New Productions and New Points of Extraction

a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-08 New Production Well and
applications.

PAGE 69



C. Transfers
a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-09 Transfer of Production

Right.

D. 2018 Replacement Water Assessment Rate — Within Boundaries of Palmdale Water
District and Littlerock Creek Irrigation District
a. Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. R-19-10 setting the 2018
Replacement Water Assessment Rate within Palmdale Water District and Littlerock Creek
Irrigation District boundaries.

E. 2019 Replacement Water Assessment Rate
a. Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. R-19-11 setting the 2019
Replacement Water Assessment Rate.

F. Storage and Recovery Agreement and Report
a. Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. R-19-12 adopting the
Storage and Recovery Agreement and Annual Water Storage and Recovery Report
Form.

G. Small Pumper Water Rights
a. Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. R-19-13 adopting
memorandum regarding the Small Pumper Water Rights for the Rules and Regulations.

H. Small Pumper Class Limits
a. Consideration and possible action to approve Resolution No. R-19-14 adopting
memorandum regarding the Small Pumper Class Limits for the Rules and Regulations.

L. Rules and Regulations Update

9) Administrator’s Report

a. Meter Compliance Letters - Update

10) Engineer’s Report — Phyllis Stanin

a. Meter Compliance Update
b. SGMA Correspondence to DWR

11) Attorney’s Report — Craig Parton

¢. Update on Appeals

d. Memorandum Re: Watermaster Authority to Waive Assessments
Letters from Mr. Robert Brumfield

Update on Known Producers Pumping Outside of the Judgment

Update on WAGAS Land Company

Update on Rosamond CSD/Desert Breeze

Update on Joshua Memorial Park (SCI)

503 o

12) Board Members Request for Future Agenda Items

13) Adjournment - Next meeting May 22, 2019

PAGE 70



Regular Meeting
April 24,2019

Bills to be Approved

PAGE 71



DATE: April 18,2019

TO: WATERMASTER BOARD

FROM: Mr. Matthew Knudson, AV Watermaster Administrator
RE: PAYMENT OF BILLS THROUGH April 18, 2019

ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER
BOARD MEMORANDUM

Recommendation:

Staff has reviewed and recommends payment for the attached invoice:

¢ AVEK — Administrative Assistance — March 2019

e AVEK — Well & Transfer Applications — March 2019

e Glotrans — Hosting of website for March 2019

e Palmdale Water District — Administrative Assistance — March 2019
e Price, Postel & Parma LLP — Services for March 2019

e Todd Groundwater — Services for March 2019

e Todd Groundwater — Well & Transfer Applications March 2019

Total amount of invoices to be paid

Checking Account - Funds Available:

Checking Account Balance as of April 19, 2019: $213,242.37

Money Market — Funds Available:

Replacement Water Assessment Balance: $ 63,749.34

Supporting Documents:

e Copies of invoices

$ 3,738.00
$ 1,350.00
$ 1,200.00
$ 1,707.56
$20,608.11
$21,119.80

$ 1.670.00

$ 51,393.47

PAGE 72



INVOICE

ANTELOPE VALLEY 1-31-19-1
EAST KERN WATER AGENCY INVQOICE NUMBER:

8500 WEST AVENUE N —_—
PALMDALE, CA 93551-2855 . '

R PH:(661) 843-3201 FAX:(664) 943-3204 INVOICE DATE:

A PUBLIC AGENCY

PAGE:

SOLDTO; _ '
AV Watermaster

P.O. Box 3025
QUARTZ HILL, CA 93586

PAYMUNT TERMS
Vet 30 Days

4/30/19

. DESCRIPTION | UNITPRICE | EXTENSION
March 2015 Administrative 3,327.00
Services
March 2019 Facility &

Administrative Costs:

Broadvoice Annual Cost 303.00
Microsoft Exchange: 3 users x 9 108.00
mos.
4
Subtotal 3,73B.00

Sales Tax

Total Invoice Amount $3,738.00
Payment Received 0.00
TOTAL DUE $3,738.00

LI21 PRODUCT INVOICE (8/00) PAGE 73 FTR140



INVOICE

ANTELOPE VALLEY 3-31-19-2
EAST KERN WATER AGENCY INVOICE NUMBER:
6500 WEST AVENUE N 3/31/18
PALMDALE, CA 93551:2856 .
Err PH:(661) 943-3201 FAX:(661) 943-3204 INVOICE DATE:
A PUBLIC AGENCY 1
PAGE:

AV Watermaster
P.O. Box 3025
QUARTZ HILL, CA 935B6

WISTOMERTD. ) PAYMENT TERNIS

st T Pave

SALES REPT.D. : ____ SHIPPING METHOD Fmﬂm
4/30/19

QUANITEY. | = ITEMNUMBEE [ DESCRIPPION ) UNITPRICE EXEENSION

March 2019 Application Processing 1,350.00

Subtotal 1,350.00

Sales Tax

Total Invoice Amount $1,350.00
Payment Received 0.00
TOTAL DUE $1,350.00

ILI21 PRODUCT INVOICE (8/00)

PAGE 74 PTR140



Glotrans

2915 McClure St.
Oakland, CA 94609

(510) 220-2733
danieleross@aglotrans.com

Invoice

BILLTO INVOICE # 3122
Antelope Valley Watermaster DATE 04/01/2018
6500 West Avenue N. DUE DATE 05/01/2019

Palmdale, CA 83552

DATE ACCOUNT SUMMARY AMOUNT
03/01/2019 Balance Forward $2,400.00
Payments and credits between 03/01/2019 and 04/01/2019 -2,400.00
New charges (details below) 1,200.00
Total Amount Due $1,200.00
DATE ACTIVITY AMOUNT
03/31/2019 Hosting and support of document repository 1,200.00
www.avwatermaster.org for the month of March 2019, 1 @
$1,200.00
Global Transactions, Inc. (dba Glotrans) TOTAL OF NEW 1,200.00
Federal Tax ID: 94-3316854 CHARGES
BALANCE DUE
$1,200.00

PAGE 75



PRICE, POSTEL & PARMA LLP

Counsellors at Law
P.O. Box 99
Santa Barbara, CA 93102-0099
(805) 962-0011 TAX ID # 95-1782877
Antelope Valley Watermaster April 3, 2019
Attn: Matt Knudson File: 23641-00001

P.O. Box 3025

Quartz Hill, CA 93586 Invoice #: 161077

Billing Attorney: CAP

Matter: General Representation
PLEASE RETURN THIS PAGE WITH YOUR REMITTANCE.
SUMMARY OF CURRENT BILLING

Current Fees $20,479.50
Current Disbursements $128.76
Total Current Fees & Costs $20,608.26
Previous Balance $26,550.11
Payments - Thank You $26,550.11
TOTAL BALANCE DUE $20,608.26

BALANCE IS DUE UPON RECEIPT,

THE FIRM'S HOURLY RATES ARE REVIEWED ANNUALLY AND
MAY CHANGE EFFECTIVE JANUARY IST UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED.

PAGE 76



General Counsel - Craig Parton

March 2019
Litigation/Appeals/Enforcement $7,057.50
Meetings and Agendas $4,582.00
R&R/Annual Rpt/Judgment $ 8,840.00
Disbursements $ 128.76

$20,608.26

PAGE 77



PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
A CENTURY OF SERVICE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS April 11, 2019

ROBERT E. ALVARADO
Division 1
o ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

MARCO HENRIQUEZ

Division 3 RE: REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR INTERIM
KATHY MAGC LAREN ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANCE FOR MARCH 2019.
Division 4
VINCENT DINO Amount
Division 5
Staff Time: $1,707.56
Outside Supplies: 0.00
DENNIS D. LaAMOREAUX
General Manager Computer Software Subscription: 0.00
ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP 1,707.56

Attorneys

TOTAL DUE: $1,707.56

ACWA

PROUD MEMBER

If you have any questions, please contact me at 661-456-1014.

Sincerely,

Uobonds I Kabinsic

YDLANDA T. RADOVIC,
Accounting Assistant II
/ytr(Work order # 19-264)

Please Credit GL# 1-00-3030-000

661-947-4111 | 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale, California 93550 | palmdalewater.org
10

PAGE 78



TODD il

GROUNDWATER

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215

Alameda, CA 94501
510/747-6920 Federal TD# 94-2490748

BILL TO:
Antelope Valley Walermaster
Attn: Robert Parris
P.O. Box 3025
Quartz Hill, CA 93586

Project No: 79601 - Antelope Valley WM ES

DESCRIPTION
Professional services in connection with Watermaster Engineer Services.
Kate White
Phyllis Stanin
Chad Taylor

Professional Services Subtotal
Communications Fee @ 2% of Professional Services

Administrative/Secretarial:
Cynthia Obuchi

Attached find budget status spreadsheet.

DATE
4/8/2019

HOURS

30.5
18
42.75

20,671.5

0.25

Mar. 1-31

Invoice

INVOICE NO.
79601 3-19

RATE AMOUNT
225.00 6,862.50
245.00 4,410.00
220.00 9,405.00
20,677.50

0.02 413.55
115.00 28.75

$21,119.80

This invoice is now due and payable. Balances unpaid over 30 days accrue 1.5% interest per month. If payment for previous charges has been sent, please accept

our thanks and disregard our reminder of previous unpaid charges.

11

PAGE 79



¥8'£89'TIT § | 0S'SPY'TOT § | 99°£SL'6k 08'6IT'TZ $ S9°20L'TT $ TZ'SEG9T § dduejeq
06'69C'T S |OveeP'T S| 09'6cT s | | os'6zE S 9
1 4] T SINOH asuendwo) yiNOS g ysej
YO'09T'TS $ | 0ETTOLS S | 92°TS8’S 88'9/8Y $ * S 8€°SL6 S 150)
314 SCIe 0 T Sinoy Moday jenuuy S yseg
St'1ES'e  $ | 08'€S6'0E S| SETTVTT SP'9S9'0T S| | GL'£8E0 S| | ST'BLEY S 150 Ajo3es9das paotoaul aq |[im suoneaydde o
SZ'96 SeLY ST8L SL0T simoy {€# puswiy sapnpaul) Sugywiad oM pue AjlenD Jajem pysel
6E'60Y'8 S| 00'SL8'LT § | 19996 ST'ove’e $||€To6ec S| |ET6e8T S 1500 "212 uonsaNb pue Suipeal ‘suone|(elsu| 1213W SIBA0D
6t SET SLET SLTL SMMoH suogenunwwo) =foid € Ysel
£8'8VS'8 S| 00°S86°TT S | ET'9EV'E $ || os6zE S| |e990Z'e S s0)
Lyt 0 T SLEL SINOH suone(nsay 13 sayny Z )s€eL
6T°89L°C€ S| 000ZT'Zy S| TR'ISE6 zeove'e S| | Z9s9v'T S| | za@'svs's $ 150) 33Wwwo) Alosiapy pue Asulone ‘yeis yum daad Bunaaw sapnpuy
SL'9E S'6 SL'S ST¢C SINOH uonEIUNWWO) B UOKEUIPICO) 1I3f04d T jsel
auasaffig 12dpng 9jeQ 01 JA [TRYTITY] Aeniga4 Asenuer AiDwwing a1nQ 03 1034 JAIDMPUNOID PPOL

papusaury

12

PAGE 80



TODD il

G R O U N D WAT E R DATE INVOICE NO.

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 4/8/2019 79602 3-19
Alameda, CA 94501
510/747-6920 Federal ID# 94-2490748

BILL TO:

Antelope Valley Watermaster
Attn: Robert Parris

P. O. Box 3025

Quartz Hill, CA 93586

Project No:  79602-AVWM Application Fees

DESCRIPTION HOURS RATE AMOUNT
Professional services in connection with: Application Fees
Well Applications:
New Point of Extraction Application (Granite Rock) 1 470.00 470.00
New Production Application (E. Rodriquez) 1 700.00 700.00
Transfer (Sanitation District 14 to Palm Ranch ID) 1 500.00 500.00

Mar. 1-31 $1,670.00

This invoice is now due and payable. Balances unpaid over 30 days accrue 1.5% interest per month. If payment for previous charges has been sent, please accept
our thanks and disregard our reminder of previous unpaid charges.

13
PAGE 81



14

Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Treasurer’s Report

PAGE 82



Antelope Valley Watermaster
Treasurer's Report
Month Ended March 29, 2019

Cash/Funds Available and held at Citizen's Business Bank:
Bank Balance, beginning March 1, 2019:
Checking 170,834.80
Money Market 63,741.74
234,576.54
Less: Expenses Paid {Checking) (64,378.96)
Add: Deposits Made (Checking) 115,019.50
Add: Interest Earned (Money Market) 7.60
JBank Balance, ending March 29, 2019:
Checking 221,475.34
Money Market 63,749.34
285,224.68
Add: Deposit in Transit (Checking) 16,883.40
Less: Expenses Outstanding (Checking) (44,923.76)
Adjusted Bank Balance, ending March 29, 2019: 257,184.32
Less: Accounts Payable -
Add: Accounts Receivable (Current) $1,083,204.05
Add: Accounts Receivable (Over 60 Days Old) 4,628.18
1,087,832.23
Less: Outsanding Replacement Water Funds (1,035,425.00)
Less: Collected Replacement Water Funds (Money Market) (63,749.34)
Net Assets, ending March 29, 2019 245,842.21
Outstanding Expenses (Prior Month(s)):
5004 - C. Louise R. Close Living Trust Account Refund $11.60
March Expenses:
5023 - AVEK {Admin. & Application Staff Time) $3,997.00
5024 - GloTrans - avwatermaster.org $1,200.00
5025 - PWD (Admin. Staff Time) $1,462.40
5026 - Price, Postel & Parma LLP - Legal Counsel $26,550.11
5027 - TODD Groundwater - Watermaster Engineer $11,702.65
$44,923.76

Total Current Expenses

16

PAGE 83



Antelope Valley Watermaster

BALANCE SHEET
As of March 29, 2019

TOTAL
ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Citizens Business Bank - Checking 193,434.98

Citizens Business Bank - Money Market 63,749.34
Total Bank Accounts $257,184.32
Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable (A/R) 1,087,832.23

Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets

$1,087,832.23

Inventory Asset 0.00
Undeposited Funds 0.00
Total Other Current Assets $0.00
Total Current Assets $1,345,016.55
TOTAL ASSETS $1,345,016.55
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Total Liabilities
. Equity
Opening Balance Equity 0.00
Retained Earnings 79,334.44
Net income 1,265,682.11
Total Equity $1,345,016.55
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $1,345,016.55

Accrual Basis Wednesday, April 10, 2019 04:55 PM GMT-7

16

1n

PAGE 84



Antelope Valley Watermaster

A/R AGING SUMMARY
As of March 29, 2019

CURRENT 1-30 31-60 61-90 81 AND TOTAL
OVER

1100 Overlying Production Rights $0.00
60th Street Association Water 4.11 13.56 27.57 $45.24
System
Barry and Sharon Munz Barry and 2.50 25.00 $27.50
Sharon Munz 2014 Revocable
Trust, Terry A. & Kathleen M. Munz
Baxter Mutual Water Company 66.89 219.99 448.89 $735.77
Burrows/200 A40 H LLC 132.75 1,327.50 $1,460.25
C. Louise R. Close Living Trust 1.68 5.00 11.60 $18.26
c/o George Brittner 2.00 20.00 $22.00
Copa De Oro Land Company 162.50 1,625.00 $1,787.50
eSolar Inc.; Sierra Sun Tower, LLC 5.7 18.83 38.28 $62.82
Gorrindo Resourceful LLC 314.50 3,145.00 $3,459.50
Granite Construction Company 63.00 630.00 $693.00
(Big Rock Facility)
Granite Construction Company -108.80 $-108.80
(Little Rock Sand and Gravel)
irma Ann Carle Trust, Irma-Anne 0.50 5.00 $5.50
Carle, Trustee
James and Diana Leer 0.50 5.00 $5.50
James and Elizabeth Bridwell 1.78 5.00 12.76 $19.54
Jane Healy and Healy Enterprises 350.00 3,500.00 $3,850.00
Inc.
Jeffrey and Nancee Siebert §3.00 530.00 $583.00
John and Adrienne Reca 125.50 1,255.00 $1,380.50
Land Projects Mutual Water Co. 306.77 3,067.70 $3,374.47
Leah Frankenberg 1.80 6.28 12.76 $20.94
LeClair Robert, Unini Marie 1.1 5.55 5.50 $12.16
Luis Hernandez 2.25 22.50 $24.75
Michael and Dolores A. 0.50 5.00 $5.50
Weatherbie
Noel Pool 1.90 6.28 12.76 $20.94
Randy Turk -13.60 $-13.60
Rose Villa Apartments -7.42 $-742
Ruth C. Findley 1.90 6.28 12.76 $20.94
Saint Andrew's Abbey, Inc. 51.00 510.00 $561.00
Service Rock Products, L.P. 133.50 1,335.00 $1,468.50
SGS Antelope Valley 94.34 285.00 658.35 $1,037.69
Development, LLC ”
Tierra Bonita Ranch 2.25 $2.25
Triple M Property Co. 28.55 94.14 191.40 $314.09
U.S. Borax 952.50 $952.50
William Fisher Memorial Water 8.02 27.88 52.33 $88.23

Company

Tuesday, April 9, 20119703:47 PM GMT-7

1/2

PAGE 85



CURRENT | 1-30 31-60 61-90 91 AND TOTAL
OVER
Total 1100 Overlying Production 2,871.14 17,676.51 17.56 1,364.81 $21,930.02
Rights
1200 Producers with Return Fiow $0.00
Rights
Antelope Valley Country Club 45.55 455.47 $501.02
Total 1200 Producers with Return 45.55 45547 $501.02
Flow Rights
1300 Small Pumpers $0.00
Charlie Tapia 139,035.00 $139,035.00
Johnny Zamrzla 273,165.00 $273,165.00
Long Valley L.P. ° 225.79 2,257.90 $2,483.69
Mark Ritter 337,065.00 $337,065.00
Olin Derrick 311,865.00 $311,865.00
Total 1300 Small Pumpers 225.79 1,061,130.00 2,257.90 $1,063,613.69
1500 State of California $0.00
California Department of 1.50 15.00 $16.50
Corrections and Rehabilitation
California Department of Military 1.50 15.00 $16.50
California Department of Parks and 4.50 45.00 $49.50
Recreation
California Department of 80.37 286.70 517.00 $884.07
Transportation
California Department of Water 52.00 520.00 $572.00
Resources
California State Lands Commission 513 18.30 33.00 $56.43
Total 1500 State of California 145.00 900.00 550.00 $1,595.00
1675 Supporting Landowners $0.00
(Formerly 2000)
Eyherabide Sheep Co., Eyherabide 6.00 60.00 $66.00
Land Co., LLC
Reesdale Mutual Water Company 11.50 115.00 $126.50
Total 1675 Supporting Landowners 17.50 175.00 $192.50
(Formerly 2000)
TOTAL $3,304.98 $18,751.51 $1,061,147.56  $2,257.90  $2,370.28 $1,087,832.23

Tuesday, April 8, 2019 03:47 PM GMT-7
18

2/2

PAGE 86



Antelope Valley Watermaster

PROFIT AND LOSS
January 1 - March 29, 2019

TOTAL
Income
Fixed Annual Administrative Assessments 386,853.55
Late Fees 3,465.30
Monitoring Well Application Fees 100.00
New Point of Extraction Application Fees 970.00
New Production Application Fees 2,350.00
Parcel Location Request 25.00
Replacement Well Application Fees 150.00
Small Pumper Qualifying Documentation Application Fees 3,150.00
Total Income $397,063.85
Cost of Goods Sold
inventory Shrinkage 0.00
Total Cost of Goods Sold $0.00
GROSS PROFIT $397,063.85
Expenses
2000 Contracted Administrative Services 13,063.08
2200 Information and Document Management 4,800.00
2300 Insurance Expenses 1,522.50
2400 Legal & Professional Fees 84,246.61
2800 Watermaster Engineer 63,548.10
2900 Watermaster Special Contract Sarvices 594.00
Total Expenses $167,774.29
NET OPERATING INCOME $229,289.56
Other Income
Interest Earned 17.55
Replacements Water Assessments 1,035,425.00
Temporary Water Transfer Request Fees 950.00

Total Other Income
NET OTHER INCOME
NET INCOME

$1,036,392.55
$1,036,392.55
$1,265,682.11

Accrual Basis Wednesday, April 10, 2019 04:598 PM GMT-7

19

n

PAGE 87



20

Regular Meeting
April 24,2019

2018 Production Report Update

PAGE 88



%CE 9T

%60°6S

%16°06

%Zv'S9

paje|duion
sjjoday

!

ot

0L

spoday
uolonpoid

61 S||I9M UoNINPOId MIN
[44 sanJed J3ylo
1T (€ 1qIyx3) suaanposd SulApang-uopn

Lot (v 3qmyx3) si23npoud SuiAlano

slaonpoid
JO 1IaquinN

uolyoNpod

pajaidwo)d

6102 ‘0l 1udy pajopdn

9}0PAN HOCSY UOLONPOId 8102

21

PAGE 89



Auedwo) 133eAN |ELIOWRIA] JAYSIY WRLIM

*0) Auadosd W 3jdu)

271 ‘youey asuuog

711 Auawdojaaag Asjjea adojauy $9§
*d"1 ‘SNpoId }I0Y IdNAIRS
sjuswpedy e||IA 350y

looyds Y34 puowesoy

(12gsueny e paniainy) eyuew pue Jies) \weq uep

B3} 3UUBLIPY Ppue UYOF :eIY

(Asadoud appae) a1uuo) pue [es paseyaund) [00d 30N :|00d
uone10d10) swalsAs uewwnig doiyuoN

2UNi "IN UIBJYIeY 15 ' A1Ia) ISni| 3|qRIOADY PTOZ ‘ZUNIA

SWEIIMIW "N SUBIQ PUE ‘N SIUUDQ SwWelfjiimdN
Auedwo) 19)epn eMNA Ouep]

Auedwo) Jajepn 01y 3Q ouey]

0D j9Ae1D pue pues 330la[r

4121337 °T JIGOY PUE 1UIUN Y SHE :HEPIT

Auedwo) 191 [emIN S[epuE)

(Aviadoid uewjyeg U39 Y3noq ) ZAPUBLISH SINT :23PUBLIBH
*3u| sasudidjul AjeaH pue A|eaj auer :Ajeayq

Siaquayueiy yeaq :3saquaruely

6702 '0T |4dY paiepdn (b 1q1yx3) ssadnpoad SuiApang

suoday uoidNpoig [enuuy 8Tz Sulpuelsing

Asjputd "3 yiny :Asjpuyy
71 JIMOJUNS PIIM3)qUIN] {IUj JejoSd
3711 “J3MO UNS BLBIS 'DU) Jej0S3

(@soy 0} Sunsajsuesl) 311 12MOIUNS UMEQ PaY ‘*IU| Jej0SD

Isn4) Suian asop °Y asinoy ) :3sop)
331N} ‘BPE) FUUY-BULY ‘ISNI] B|IED UUY Bwlj :3HE)
J71 H OV 00Z/smoiing

IPMPLE Y13GEzZ||3 PUE S3WIer |Iampug

271 s9iadoud asnoyijog

Auedwo) Ja3ep [emny 38l YIB)g
293sN4] ISUPILY UB|D ‘Isnif Jaulng
Auedwo) Jarep |eninpy 3oy Sig
Auedwo) Ja1ep [ENINY JoIXEQ

JT1 ‘T Youey sejos AY

Auedwo) Ja1ep [EMINN [-BNDY

271 ‘SIUaunSAAU] RRULAG SWepY
wW2)sAg JIJEeM LONBIDOSSY 1330S 109

22

PAGE 90



6T0Z 0T 1Ay paiepdn (€ 1qiyx3) sieonpoid Suihpiang-uon
Uoday uonanpoud |enuuy 8Tz Suipueising

23

PAGE 91



(pa1a33wu) smoy4 winjay dsje payiodu) 03 s3ySry qaim sodwing jlews

SanR0Jd O S QUM SI9mG

*JT1 ‘youey 13y A1
Auedwo) daays apiqesayA3 pue JT) “0) pue apiqesayAl ‘apiqesayA3 eyueny

Auedwo) sa3em [EN3NN 3jEPSaaY
sisumopuei Supuoddng

Aseypy jo Juawuedag

loaied Aemy3iy

uoneyjiqeyay pue suoiIaL) J0 Juswuedaq
uojissjuwo) spue aeys

uoneuodsues) jo Juswuedag

$321N053Y 1332/ O JUBWUedag

eluIofije) J0 33e3S

6T0Z 0T |0y Pa3epan SYSIY 43I POAISSY |esapay
senJed s + suoday ueKONpPoLd jenuily 8T0Z SUIplESAY

24

PAGE 92



6T0Z 'OT 11dy paiepdp uoi3anpoid MaN
uoday uondNpoid jenuuy 8102 Sujpueising

UDHONIISUOD JSPUR [JIIS 3L SHAM UOHOINPOId MBN JWOS T
3JON

(siPM 2) 1s1u} sohawum
Auoquy ‘s3sqam
{uornusuo) auoispoom) [ned ‘euedey
{uasaq ays 4o 35uLD) edaso) e
ew|y ‘Buoy

Piaeq ‘Zoudwif eseds3

BlEW ‘ejep uduuE) PQ

Pieuc)) ‘sdoa)

s ‘Agjouuo)

wehiep ' puowiiey ‘suific)
uenf ‘ojnse)

uenf ‘zuquy

Apsay 7 uent "audejy

(o]
N

PAGE 93



26

Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Minutes

PAGE 94



Antelope Valley Watermaster Board
Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, March 27 2019 —10:00 a.m.
Location: Antelope Valley — East Kern Water Agency
6450 West Avenue N, Palmdale, CA 93551

1) Meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m.
2) Pledge of Allegiance was led by Robert Parris
3) Roll Call

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis Atkinson, Landowners — Vice-Chairperson

Adam Ariki, Los Angeles County Waterworks District 40

John Calandri, Landowners

Kathy MacLaren, Public Water Suppliers

Robert Parris, AVEK Water Agency — Chairperson

Adrienne Reca — Landowners, Alternate

Phyllis Stanin, Todd Groundwater, Watermaster Engineer
Craig Parton, Price Postel & Parma LLP, General Counsel

4) Adoption of Agenda
A motion was made by Director Calandri, seconded by Director MacLaren and unanimously carried
to adopt the agenda.

5) Public comments for non-agenda items. — None

6) Special Presentations — None

7) Consent Agenda
A. Payment of the bills through February 21, 2019
B. Treasurer’s Report month ending January 31, 2019
a. Aging Summary
b. Production Report- Update

C. Minutes of January 23, 2018
A motion was made by Director Atkinson, seconded by Director MacLaren and

unanimously carried to approve the consent agenda.

8) Advisory Committee Report
Memo was reviewed and noted

9) Action Items

A. Well Applications i.e., Small Pumper Qualifying and Monitoring Wells
a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-04 Small Pumper Qualifying
well applications.
A motion was made by Director Atkinson, seconded by Director MacLaren and
unanimously carried to approve Resolution No. R-19-04

B. Well Applications i.e., New Production and New Point of Extraction

27

PAGE 95



a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-05 New Production and New

Point of Extraction Applications
A motion was made by Director Calandri, seconded by Director Ariki and

unanimously carried to approve Resolution No. R-19-05.

C. Transfers
a. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. R-19-06 Transfer of Production

Rights.
Director Calandri requeued himself for this item, Alternate Adrienne Reca filled in.

A motion was made by Director Atkinson, seconded by Director Ariki and unanimously
carried to approve Resolution No. R-19-06.

10) Administrator’s Report

11) Engineer’s Report — Phyllis Stanin
a. Meter Compliance Update
b. Rules and Regulations Update

12) Attorney’s Report — Craig Parton

Update on Appeals

Update on Known Producers Pumping Outside of the Judgment

Memorandum Re — Small Pumper Class Water Rights

Memorandum Re — what Limits the Judgment Puts on Small Pumper Class Pumping
Status of Storage Agreements

Update on Rosamond CSD/Desert Breeze

Update on Joshua Memorial Park (SCI)

®hoe e op

13) Board Members Request for Future Agenda Items
14) Adjournment — Meeting was adjourned at 10:51 a.m.

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Robert Parris, Chairman Date Patricia Rose, Secretary

28

PAGE 96



29

Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Advisory Committee Report

PAGE 97



ANTELOPE VALLE

Y
WATERMASTER BOARD
MEMORANDUM

DATE: April 19,2019
TO: ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER BOARD
FROM: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, Advisory Committee Chair
Derek Yurosek, Advisory Committee Vice Chair
VIA: Mr. Matt Knudson, Peter Thompson Jr., AV Watermaster Administration

RE: ADVISORY COMMITTEE INPUT FOR APRIL 24, 2019 AV WATERMASTER BOARD
(AVWB) MEETING

The Advisory Committee met on April 18, 2019 at 10:00 am at Quartz Hill Water District to
discuss potential action items at the AVWB meeting on April 24, 2019. Ten (10) of thirteen (13)
voting members attended the meeting cither in person or on the conference line to start the meeting.
The Committee discussed and took the following positions on discretionary action items from the draft
April 24, 2019 meeting agenda received April 11, 2019.

9) Action Items
A. Well Applications (Qualifying Small Pumper and Monitoring Wells)

The Committee had no comment on this item.

B. Well Applications (New Production and New Points of Extraction)

The Committee discussed the new points of extraction for LACWW 40. The Committee
expressed concern over the finding of no material injury determination by Todd
Groundwater. A Committee member was concerned about private wells near the Avenue
I and 60™ Street West and the creation of a new cone of depression in the area. The
Committee requests more information on how the determination was made.

The Committee had no comment on the residential new production. However, a
question was raised about how the availability of replacement water was going to be
determined and the effect on new residential producers if supplies are limited.

30

PAGE 98



ADVISORY COMMITTEE INPUT FOR APRIL 24, 2019 AV WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING

C. Transfer of Production Right

The Committee discussed the proposed transfer. The Committee requests clearer
language in the Watermaster Engineer letter related to the transferred water’s actual use.
The phrase “likely be used . . . offset replacement water assessments” is not clear. It
could mean the water will be pumped in-lieu of replacement water and the transfer is
priced lower than the replacement water assessment. It could also mean it will not be
pumped and will be left in the Basin for past over production.

D. 2018 Replacement Water Rate — Within Boundaries of Palmdale Water District and
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District

The Committee supported the amount of $415.00/AF proposed for this item.

E. 2019 Replacement Water Rate

The Committee supported the total amount of $948.04/AF outside the boundaries of the
AVSWCA and $451.11/AF within the boundaries.

The Committee also cautioned that more work is likely needed to implement these
assessments and charge producers. The issues discussed included the following:

1. A Watermaster contract with AVSWCA is needed to define amounts,
location, and method(s) of recharge;

2. The basis of the variable replacement assessment of $451.11/AF does not
currently include the cost of operating a recharge facility. That cost, if any,
should be addressed when setting future assessment rates;

3. All assumptions in the “Financial Analysis Study for Replacement Water
Assessment” (Study) should be clearly listed;

4. This Study should be adopted as a method as well as 2019 numbers. This will
allow the replacement water assessments to be consistently determined for the
years 2016, 2017, and 2018, and;

5. The Watermaster should request other methods of meeting replacement water
needs are reviewed including potential in-lieu deliveries.

31
PAGE 99



ADVISORY COMMITTEE INPUT FOR APRIL 24, 2019 AV WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING

F. Storage and Recovery Agreement and Report

The Committee noted the Rules and Regulations for this subject were already approved
and had no further comments on the draft agreement and forms.

G. Small Pumper Water Rights
Committee members discussed comments that have been submitted to the Watermaster
Attorney. The Committee recommends acceptance of the Attorney’s memo and
developing Rules and Regulations based on the memo.

H. Small Pumper Class Limits
The Committee discussed this memo including a perspective on how the Judgement’s
language was developed (i.e. reductions of individual small pumper limits were related to
drought conditions rather than additional class members). Committee members will
provide written comments and recommended the small pumper and default lists be re-
assessed and cleaned up.

I. Rules and Regulations Update

The Committee had no comment on this item.

11) Attorney’s Report and Assessment Relief Memo
The Committee discussed the appropriateness of reviewing the following individual
requests for relief from elements of the Judgement as they are not ready for AVWB

consideration and action. Therefore, the Committee took no position on the WAGAS,
Derrick, or Ritter requests.

¢. Update on WAGAS Land Company
No comment.
AVWB Assessment Waiver Authority — Derrick and Ritter Requests

The Committee discussed the Watermaster Attorney memo and agreed with its
conclusions and recommendations.

32

PAGE 100



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-07
Small Pumper Qualifying Documentation

33

PAGE 101



1931400 s JuawW3pnr ay3 Jo U0132as Yaym uo Suipuadaq ssadwing [[ewss umouy ,

AV C'eL

AV 1¥'908¢E

AdV ¥'0STS

uoidnpold

|PJOL

(pJeog Jaisewsdlem Aajjep adojsjuy Aq panoidde)

: Eh)
AV TT 5|@dJed 19 siadwind jews SuiAyeny panosddy
MY T s|o2ed Z/TE «(IuBWSpnr ayl Jo £€'1°G uoi}aas Jad) siadwing jjewS umouy
MY ZI s|sdied 6Tl +(3uswdpnr ayy u D, NqIyx3 12d) ssadwing jjews umou)y

uoijonpoid s1adwing
abpiany |[DWS JO JIaquInN

6102 ‘Ol ludy pajopdn

sladuwing ||PWIS 9|91SSOd

34

PAGE 102



{3unop uAjy) 3snuL Sunop
3sno '@ pleuoy ‘WYM
UA|3A3 )3 L3QOY ‘M

Asey g Auoyiuy “1sapp
yi1aqez)|3 '3 Weljjim ‘siNem
uenr ‘soqoje|iiA

Japuuaf g anbuuj ‘zanbzejaa
eJewe] 1§ sajey) ‘sodap
BUUY '§ UBNQO ‘IUBA

Juajo ‘@uep

B||IY ‘Jaun

33)3d ‘ouou)]

19)3d ‘uosdwoy)

uueor 'g 031 ‘yneqiyL

euuy ‘ajaals

eduol B uiqoy ‘Ayuieddi-1adog
essI9IN g ueaqg “Yuws

adueIne] ‘IBjaYS

piaeq ‘oynes

piaeq ‘o)aes

euuyof '3 sejdnog ‘vewsing
1snJ4 9qel0A3Y ||9mad Aueydaas :|jamogd
1SN4| 331314 €[|3 B pjeuog :3%idid
udJe)| 'g UIMB ‘421350
edej/oissQ

Awy g 3a1p 9yrewuyg

BpUI R WEIjIM 'SIAW

ueuaad) ‘Apoopy

SlIB|BA ‘eJaZ g uof JaA3N

Jow|3 ‘zawuey

snul Ajlwed 3pan

e(98uy '3 olduIpnId ‘apianepue]
paa4 ‘xouy|

puJag uiqoy ‘Ieneuy

uaydas ‘Jugjssiy

APYHA 'R UBlY ‘WnequaydsI
paeyaiy ‘apAH

6102 0T (4dy paiepdn
paaoiddy pJeoq - s;adwingd |jews SujApend

sluuaq ‘ydequiaH 1B UIGOY ‘uaploH
21q3Q '8 [SYISI3H IIIH

snaj Apwey Apaey aupio) :Apsey
ejawed 1 jueid ‘Apiey

331039 “iupanoo

eJpues '3 sswer ‘A4

|9jueq ‘ozuely

|Slueq ‘oduesy

yesoqaq B H¥aqoy ‘Pal4

B|[v '8 U3Jj3 ‘Zopueuldy

Auays 13 uol ‘ouetag

0921 ‘pan)

e|jaqes| ‘pjesd

uesns ‘piogmes)

0pJap|ID 7 ewneyj ‘eucio)
auudyie) ' paeyay ‘pesuo)
[PEYIN ‘voraddi

|4ed ‘uosjie)

31sXN0IS '3 03nH ‘uosapied

|1eo pue Au3] ‘ung

Juer ‘|oyauag

I5NJ} I|qE30A3LI| UOIFUIYSEA UUY
1SNJ] 3jqeI0AILI) UIBUlYSEM UUY
aupsuy) @ Auay ‘swepy

35

PAGE 103



6T0¢ '0T |udy paiepdn
(AdV € 190 Sujduing) JuawSpnf 34140 SPISING Sujdumg siaduing [JEWS uMou

ejjawed 3 Auuyor ‘ejzawez
Auuyor ‘epawez

{eidey sapeyd) -ouj sieyyoug erdey
Mep ‘Jaauy

¥4aa ‘ulio

AeSe ‘eujjoy

d1 ‘peoy Asjjep Suo

yauensed ‘Jeajpey

weypm “J3pia4d

36

PAGE 104



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-07

APPROVING APPLICATIONS FOR SMALL PUMPER QUALIFICATION,
REPLACEMENT WELL PRODUCTION FOR EXISTING PRODUCTION RIGHTS, OR
NON-PRODUCTION WELLS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE JUDGMENT;
ATTACHED EXHIBIT A

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment™), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, a process for considering and approving applications for small pumper
qualification, applications for replacement well production for existing production rights, or
applications for non-production wells is set forth in the Judgment and in the Rules and
Regulations contained in the Memorandum from Todd Groundwater to the Watermaster Board
dated March 2, 2018 and unanimously adopted by the Board pursuant to Resolution No. R-18-

05; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Staff may recommend to the Watermaster Board that
applications for small pumper qualification, applications for replacement well production for
existing production rights, or applications for non-production wells be denied or approved; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, the Watermaster Board must deny or
approve these applications consistent with the terms of the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Staff has reviewed all the applications listed on attached
Exhibit A and has made the appropriate determinations for either small pumper qualification, or
replacement well production, or non-production wells as required under the Judgment and the
Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Board has considered and adopts the determinations and
recommendations of the Watermaster Staff and is prepared to approve the applications listed on
Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watermaster Board unanimously
approves the applications for small pumper qualification, or replacement well production, or
non-production wells of those Parties or Persons whose names and information are listed on
attached Exhibit A to this Resolution as being consistent with the terms of the Judgment and
applicable Rules and Regulations.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-07 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held on April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

37

PAGE 105



Exhibit A Attachment to
Resolution No. R-19-07

APPROVING APPLICATIONS FOR SMALL PUMPER QUALIFICATION,
REPLACEMENT WELL PRODUCTION FOR EXISTING PRODUCTION RIGHTS, OR
NON-PRODUCTION WELLS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE JUDGMENT

APN# Request Type Use of Well Subarea Applicant/Property
Owner
3060-022-034 Small Pumper Domestic South East Edgar, Micheal Ann
Qualifying
3060-030-059 Small Pumper Domestic South East Richards, Monica
Qualifying

38

PAGE 106




Robert Parris -~ Chalr

~ WATERMASTER o v

EST. 2016 Landowner Representative
Adam Ariki

LACWW Representstive

John Calandri
Landowner Representative

Leo Thibauft
Public Water Suppliers Representative

Q ANTELOPE VALLEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 2, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Qualifying Documentation Findings
Ronald Sugaijski Trust (Micheal Ann Edgar)
APN 3060-022-034 (South East Subarea)

Watermaster Board:

Antelope Valley Watermaster Administrative Staff has determined that the above-mentioned
Small Pumper Qualifying Documentation of qualifying wells for domestic use at a single-family
home in the South Fast Subarea is complete. The applicant has been determined to be a member
of the Small Pumper class.

Sincerely,

— 0 E, fzpa,bu.ak
Angel Fitzpatrick
AV Watermaster, Administrative Assistant

P.O. Box 3025 « Quartz Hill, California, 93586 ¢ www.avwatermaster.net o (661) 234-8233
39

PAGE 107



SMALL PUMPER QUALIFYING DOCUMENTATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Please include an application fee according to the fee schedule posted on the Watermaster website:
https://avwatermaster.net. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR emall to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

* This form is to be used by private entities who believe they qualify as "Small Pumpers" in the Antelope Valley Groundwater
Adjudication and are not now on the "Small Pumper Class" list. Small Pumper Class is defined as: "All private (i.e., non-
government) Persons and entities that own real property within the Basin, as adjudicated, and that have been pumping less than
25 acre-feet per Year on their property during any Year from 1946 to December 23, 2015”. Any new production on a parcel that

was not pumped prigr to December 23, 2615 does not qualify to be in the Small Pumper Class.

Date 3})&5" /9 Well Site APN#_ .30 60-0O32=D3 ¢
Property Owner/Well Owner
Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address .
Property Address, if different than Owner’s Address ¢/ T({ ﬂﬂl&&“ﬁ?ﬁ Je Lintseocd G 33\_(43
Contact Phone Number & & (— 5 47— 24 Al Contact email v

Note: Legal notices under the Judgment will be sent to the above emalil address. You are required to keep this
information up to date. Please notify the Watermaster of any changes.

Parcel and Well

Please attach photographs showing property and existing well (cell phone photos can be emailed, if convenient)
Please attach an 84" by 11” paper site plan of the parcel {legible hand sketch or Google map acceptable) showing:
1. Location of parcel features, including major buildings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.

2. Location of the existing well(s) with estimated dimensions in feet from weil to nearest cross streets.

Please provide supporting documentation listed below, to the extent readily available:

e Documentation that the well was drilled on the property prior to December 23, 2015 (e.g., County well
permit, DWR Well Completion Report, etc.).

.e If sufficient documentation is not provided in bullet above, property owner agrees to allow Watermaster
Engineer or designated agent access to the property at a mutually-agreed upon time to physically inspect
the well and property.

e Uses of the existing well {for example, domestic, irrigation, livestock, etc.). Also provide an estimate of
annual household occupancy (number of residents), history of land irrigation and acreage, and history of
livestock/animals that resided on the property and that relied on the well during the period 1946 - 2015.

e Land deed/parcel information indicating use of land and/or historical aerial photographs of land showing
land use.

e Other pertinent information that demonstrates the use and production amounts of the well during the 1946
to 2015 time period.

Voluntary Information on Existing Well, if readily available:

Existing Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y) .3 °l=1)2 418 928 ° NOT MolE THA '\{
Existing Well pumping capacity pm Average annual production from Existing Well 3 acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agriculturalndustrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.)
Existing Well construction date_9 [2,; l o ':L\,- Casing Materials Py Casing Diameter A inches
Surface seal material and depthéseeg LWCE £ Screened interval_See UWOAR  feet below ground surface
Well Depth 1o0 feet Ground surface elevation 3 €L LWJC R feet above mean sea level
Depth to water &0 feet Is there a meteronthe well? _NoT” REQURED
Pleasggach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Re__‘go @ if readily available.

Page 1 of 2 Approved 02/27/19

40

PAGE 108



Signatures

| understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certify that | own the
property on which the well is located and it will be used for private (i.e., non-governmental) use. | also certify that the
existing well on the property has been pumping less than 25 acre-feet per year (AFY) during any year from 1946 to
December 23, 2015. | understand that if | pump more than 3 AFY from my property | may have to install a meter and
pay a replacement water assessment. | understand that these water rights are not transferable from the parcel. |
certify that | did not “opt out” of the Small Pumper Class during the Adjudication process. | further certify that the
information given in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is affixed with the intent to be enforceable.

@’554 sueceadon Dunalas Ao
3 19

H_-f l, £ .t ’. r - te

Signature of Property Owner/Well Owner

Signature of Consultant/Agent Date 32252 /i

To be completed by the Watermaster:
Watermaster Staff Approval Date
Watermaster Board Approval Date
Page 2 of 2 Approved 02/27/19
41

PAGE 109



%\J@WS peo-ceo-qnog NE 4@ 1o TUCT” poLUIX
r Vs @ 7

sealeqng u:m:-amm.“ms_ ALYMANNDOYO FITRISRIE " iy
pue eauy :o—ug—v=.°< i £ o s ) a.. A Wolpew
Aajjep 0&%-02..( ﬁ\d lmu\ ; jonpenby elwioyEen oo
L 9inbi4 aun f
" 810¢ r ,, Boly pajeapnipy Aejie sdojeiwy [ ]
“ uiseg Jejempunols) AsjieA adopjuy ; ?._
m seaeqng juawebeuepy [ ]
pusBeT
L ) ealegng X
9 O  seaynes
QO e .
IS 9 rs ”... f./
a A7 A i
g - \
g egiegnsg Aajep
g _ adojajuy [esusy
) .
f B \
i ~ \A1unop sgjebuy:so7 -W_.
B : ¥ IR = i e S —=—=="4in §
m (T i mo.ia:w .
I owe sioboy o= adojajuy 3sop .
; sbunds i
MOJ[IM TN
‘ S3IN W ofeag
! ]
M (] ) 8 0
: |
| : |
H T Hhgpaagy @
“ )
: .

42

PAGE 110



ANTELOPE VALLEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

@ WATERMASTER &5
EST. 2016 tsndowner Representative

Adam Arikl
LACWW Represantative

John Calandri

Landowner Representative

Leo Thibault

Public Water Suppllers Representative

April 2, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re:  Small Pumper Qualifying Documentation Findings
Monica Richards
APN 3060-030-059 (South East Subarea)

Watermaster Board:

Antelope Valley Watermaster administrative staff has determined that the above-mentioned
small Pumper Qualifying Documentation of qualifying wells for domestic use at a single-family
home in the South East Subarea is complete. The applicant has been determined to be a member

of the Small Pumper class.

Sincerely,

= ﬁpa. ek
Angel Fitzpatrick
AV Watermaster, Administrative Assistant

P.0. Box 3025 » Quartz Hill, California, 93586 ¢ www.avwatermaster.net ¢ (661) 234-8233
43

PAGE 111



SMALL PUMPER QUALIFYING DOCUMENTATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Please include an application fee according to the fee schedule posted on the Watermaster website:
https://avwatermaster.net. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to; infu@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

* This form is to be used by private entities who believe they qualify as "Smoll Pumpers” in the Antelope Valley Groundwater
Adjudication and are not now on the "Small Pumper Class" list. Small Pumper Class is defined as: "All private {i.e., non-

government) Persons and entities that own real property within the Basin, as adjudicated, and that have been pumping less than
25 acre-feet per Year on their property during any Year from 1946 to December 23, 2015”. Any new production on a parcel that

was not pumped prior to December 23, 2015 does not qualify to be in the Small Pumper Class.

pate_ 3/1C/17 Well Site APN#__ 300~ 0 30~ OST

Praperty Owner/WeII owner__Moalicrr RK{CHRRDS

Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address_((" 197 JJU (Pl +H 1l s QZD L-(TFL:E@DC:{’ Wﬁﬁﬁ

Property Address, if different than Owner's Address__ ( { 7S7 JUNIPep HieLS KJ) T Le, ROC,K ah

Contact Phone Number_Z(8 399 =3 ¢-4S Contact email M{gﬁl&gﬁ&ﬂw 43

Note: Legal notices under the Judgment will be sent to the above email address. You are required to keep thlﬁem_
information up to date. Please notify the Watermaster of any changes.

Parcel and Welt

Please attach photographs showing property and existing well (cell phone photos can be emailed, if convenient)
Please attach an 8%” by 11" paper site plan of the parcel (legible hand sketch or Google map acceptable) showing:
1. Location of parcel features, including major buildings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.

2. Location of the existing well(s) with estimated dimensions in feet from well to nearest cross streets.

Please provide supporting documentation listed below, to the extent readily availabie:

e Documentation that the well was drilled on the property prior to December 23, 2015 (e.g., County well
permit, DWR Well Completion Report, etc.).

e [f sufficient documentation is not provided in bullet above, property owner agrees to allow Watermaster
Engineer or designated agent access to the property at a mutually-agreed upon time to physically inspect
the well and property.

e Uses of the existing well (for example, domestic, irrigation, livestock, etc.). Also provide an estimate of
annual household occupancy (number of residents), history of land irrigation and acreage, and history of
livestock/animals that resided on the property and that relied on the weli during the period 1946 — 2015.

e land deed/parcel information indicating use of land and/or historical aerial photographs of land showing
land use.

e Other pertinent information that demonstrates the use and production amounts of the well during the 1946
to 2015 time period.

Voluntary Information on Existing Well, if readily available:

Existing Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y) _3% 4294 &+ °l=117. qi1qo43 & NotT To eXceed
Existing Well pumping capacity S gpm Average anr:uai production from Existing Well 3 acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agricu_lturaindustrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.)

Existing Well construction date Casing Materials_ STE& L Casing Diameter___ § s inches
Surface seal material and depth T Screened interval & feet below ground surface

Well Depth ATy ! feet Ground surface elevation % feet above mean sea level
Depth to water ey’ feet Is there a meter on the well? _NoT REQ uiRED
Please attach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Report, if readily available.
Page 1 of 2 Approved 02/27/19
44

PAGE 112



Signatures

| understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certify that | own the
property on which the well is located and it will be used for private (i.e., non-governmental) use. | also certify that the
existing well on the property has been pumping less than 25 acre-feet per year (AFY) during any year from 1946 to
December 23, 2015. | understand that if | pump more than 3 AFY from my property | may have to install a meter and
pay a replacement water assessment. | understand that these water rights are not transferable from the parcel. |
certify that | did not “opt out” of the Small Pumper Class during the Adjudication process. | further certify that the
information given in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is affix ith the intent to be enforceable.

Signature of Property Owner/Well Owner % Date 3/ /éa/ / ‘i
Signature of Consultant/Agent é{p‘l‘mﬁb M Date 3/ / é/ 9
[ L UU T T

To he completed by the Watermaster:
Watermaster Staff Approval Date
Watermaster Board Approval Date
Page 2 of 2 Approved 02/27/19
45

PAGE 113



G920

bgo -0ca-90N0¢
= 4

NIt Sfo vegovo s XU 1Oy

sealegng juswabeuepy
pue ealy uonespnipy
Aajjep adojojuy

UILFMANNOUD

L 2unBig

g8Logaunt -

L easeqng
O  jsezupnog
h:r-.\._r,. 0 - m.
1 o ' H:t s
= <@
G g % PR o,
gl <
mw‘ b
g ealeqng Asjjep
2 ; adojajuy jesuag
=
o
D

L
I

N e -
\ {ERENTTTIN T s
Eoae s ———. = & » -
M 1Pnpanby elusopeD) o o
i v pajeapnipy Asjiep edoeisy [ ]
|
| uiseq ssjempunois Asjjen adojejuy "
[ |
! seaseqng Juawebeuepy D
._r puab:
=
5
/.
./
\
A
J.
i
5
d
\
A e .|.|/J
e — S 4y A
ealeqng 1"
adojajuy 3sep
-
..vj
“. SOfIN w efeog
e —__ —]
J]8 0
I
N
Phoap e #

46

PAGE 114



47

Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-08
New Production and
New Point of Extraction
Documentation

PAGE 115



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-08

APPROVING APPLICATIONS FOR NEW PRODUCTION AND NEW POINT OF
EXTRACTION PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE JUDGMENT; ATTACHED
EXHIBIT A

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, a process for considering and approving applications for new production
and new point of extraction is set forth in the Judgment and in the Rules and Regulations relating
to new production and new point of extraction contained in the Memorandum from Todd
Groundwater to the Watermaster Board dated March 2, 2018 and unanimously adopted by the
Board pursuant to Resolution No. R-18-05; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Engineer is authorized under the Judgment to recommend
to the Watermaster Board that applications for new production or new point of extraction be
denied or approved, and that approval may be pursuant to certain conditions such as payment of
a replacement water assessment; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, the Watermaster Engineer is required
to make certain findings and to consider, investigate and recommend to the Watermaster Board
denial or approval, or approval with certain conditions, of these applications consistent with the

terms of the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Engineer has reviewed all the applications listed on
attached Exhibit A and has made the appropriate findings, including that the applicant has a right
to produce groundwater under the Judgment or otherwise agrees to purchase replacement water,
that all conditions for new production or new point of extraction are met under the Judgment and
the Rules and Regulations, and that no Material Injury will result from the proposed production;
and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Board has considered and adopts the findings and
recommendations of the Watermaster Engineer and is prepared to approve the applications listed
on Exhibit A pursuant to any conditions recommended by the Watermaster Engineer and so
noted on Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watermaster Board unanimously
approves the applications for new production or new point of extraction of those Parties or
Persons whose names and information are listed on attached Exhibit A to this Resolution as
being consistent with the terms of the Judgment and applicable Rules and Regulations.

48

PAGE 116



I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-08 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held on April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

49
PAGE 117



Exhibit A Attachment to
Resolution No. R-19-08

APPROVING APPLICATIONS FOR NEW PRODUCTION AND NEW POINT OF
EXTRACTION PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE JUDGMENT

APN# Request Type Use of Well Subarea Appllc(a;nt/Property
wner
3307-014-052 New Production Domestic Central AV Espinoza, Leticia
3384-007-007 New Production Domestic Central AV Ming, Lin
. Los Angeles County
3105-009-901 . . Special .
3105-009-902 New Point of Extraction District Central Subarea WaterwN(gkjf (;)1stnct
. Los Angeles County
3105-009-901 . . Special .
3105-009-902 New Point of Extraction District Central Subarea Waterv;;);kzg)lstnct

50

PAGE 118




TODD il

GROUNDWATER

April 8, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: APN# 3307-014-052 Espinoza New Production Application Findings

Watermaster Board:

Todd Groundwater has determined that the above-mentioned application for New Production
in the Central Antelope Valley Subarea for domestic use is complete. The applicant does not
propose to build a home on the property at this time and will use the well for landscaping
(trees) and possibly animals to improve the value of the parcel. The information provided
indicates that the New Production will be used in a manner consistent with California best
water management practices. Given the small amount of proposed production (<3 AFY) and the
obligation to pay a Replacement Water Assessment, Todd Groundwater finds that the potential
for Material Injury as defined in the Judgment is negligible.

Sincerely,

Al &, i
Phyllis Stanin
Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com
51

PAGE 119



NEW PRODUCTION APPLICATION
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Please include an application fee according to the fee schedule posted on the Watermaster website:
https://avwatermaster.net. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster

Mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

pate_ S -S8-19 Proposed Well Site APN#_ 22077 - O ) 4 .05

Property Owner/Well Owner. Leticia ESDINnoZA :
Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address_| 0D A France. Driva

Contact Phone Number - 2 Contact email o Al m_[_com
New Well Latitude/Longitude {or x, y

'En-(b?ox;Valley Subarea: :ﬁﬁ[@‘t Bﬂ*ﬂu ope

Use of New Well (Agricultural, Industrial, Municipal, Monitoring, etc.) D DW_'\_Q_S'& \O.

If Domestic well, will well be used to supply one single family household only? Mo

Do other wells exist on this property? Yes/No. If Yes, indicate if and show on Site Plan.
When will a meter be installed on the well? _{.aD hewnr +he well 1= oa

New Production \requests are to include the following (Section 18.5.13 of the Judgment):

1.

Payment of an application fee sufficient to recover all costs of application review, field investigation, reporting, and hearing,
and other associated costs, incurred by the Watermaster and Watermaster Engineer in processing the application for New
Production. Please attach a check to this application submittal for the fee associated with a New Production application
as per the fee schedule posted on the Watermaster website. Check can be made out to Antelope Valley Watermaster,

Written summary describing the proposed quantity, sources of supply, season of use, purpose of use, place of use, manner of
delivery, and other pertinent information regarding the New Production.
Maps! identifying the location of the proposed New Production, including Basin Subarea.

ell Infi tion? including proposed well design, estimated annual pumping, and agreement to install a meter in accordance
with the Rules & Regulations. Plus, a statement that once the well is installed, the applicant will provide water well permits,
specifications and well-log reports, pump specifications and testing results, and water meter specifications associated with the

New Production,

5. Written confirmation that applicant has obtained all necessary entitlements and permits including all applicable Federal, State,
. County, and local land use entitlements and other permits necessary to commence the New Production.

6. Written confirmation that applicant has complied with applicable laws and regulations including all applicable Federal, State,
County, and local laws, rules and regulations, including but not limited to, the California Enviranmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code §§ 21000, et. seq.).

7. Preparation of a water conservation plan, approved and stamped by a California licensed and registered professional civil
engineer with expertise in groundwater hydrology, demanstrating that the New Production will be designed, constructed and
implemented consistent with California best water management practices.

8. Preparation of an analysis of the economic impact of the New Production on the Basin and ather Producers in the Subarea of
the Basin.

9. Preparation of an analysis of the physical impact of the New Production on the Basin and other Producers in the Subarea of
the Basin.

10. A written statement, signed by a California licensed and registered professional civil engineer with expertise in groundwater

hydrology, determining that the New Production will not cause Material Injury. Material injury could be in the form of

significant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels, 2. Reduction of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded

1 Maps are to include North arrow and scale, location of proposed well with dimensions in feet from well to nearest cross streets,

and location of site features, including major buildings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.

2 please attach a diagram showing proposed well construction, including maximum well depth, casing diameter and materlals,

ground surface elevatlon, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity. A completed DWR Well Completion Report is
required to be submitted to the Antelope Valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Page 1 of 2 Approved 02/27/19

52

PAGE 120



water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5. Depletions of interconnected surface water such that beneficial uses are impacted.
11. Written confirmation that the applicant agrees to pay the applicable Replacement Water Assessment for any New Productian.
12. Qther pertinent information which the Watermaster Engineer may require.

In addition, all New Production applicants who are not Partles to the judgment® are to comply with Section 20.9 of the
Judgment, consult with the Watermaster Engineer, and seek the Watermaster's stipulation to allow them to Intervene to
become hound by the Judgment prior to commencing Praduction. The non-Party applicant must flle a mation to
intervene with the court that Includes reference to their effort to obtain the Watermaster’s stipulation to the
intervention. It is strongly recommended that the non-Party appiicant consult with a lawyer to assist them with
compliance with Section 20.9 of the Judgment. If applicant helleves they are part of the Non-Pumper Class (see footnote
below) and therefore do not need to intervene in the judgment, please provide supporting documents or statements
demonstrating adherence to items 1-6 in the footnote.

SIGNATURES

| understand and agree to be bound by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment and to pay the
applicable Replacement Water Assessment for any New Production. | certify that the information provided on this
Request for New Production is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether original,
alectronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is afflxed with the intent to be enforceable. | understand that
it is my responsibility to notify the Antelope Valiey Watermaster of any changes in any of the information provided
on this form within 15 days. | also understand that additional information may be required if there is a suspected

potential for a material injury as gefined in the Judgment. —
Signature of Applicant Date
- e o

To be completed by the Watermaster:

Watermaster Engineer Approval %‘W A /4@«-4/\—) Date L'/-ﬂf/ / 7

Watermaster Board Approval Date

NOTE: This application is not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted to the
appropriate well permitting agency (e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the well is to be instailed within

the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area.

3 An applicant may already be a Party to the Judgment if they are part of the Non-Pumper Class (Willis Class) if they meet the
criterla described In Section 3.5.22 of the Judgment, as follows:
1. They are a private party and not a “gavernmental” entity.
2. They (or thelr successor in interest—see na.4 below) own real property within the adjudicated Basin and were not
pumping water at the time of the Judgment being entered as of December 2015.
3. They (or their successar in interest—see no. 4 below) did not pump water on their property “at any time during the
five Years preceding January 18, 2006.”
4. Non-Pumper class status applies to thase who are successors In title or interest (via gift or purchase or inheritance or
otherwlse) to a Non-Pumper Class member’s land that meets the abave criteria.
5. Note the term "Non-Pumper Class Member” does not apply to those who opted out or to those connected to a
municipal water system, public utility, or mutuat water company from which they receive water service. Also, their land
cannot be considered “improved” by the Assessor's Office of Los Angeles or Kern Caounty, unless the person declares
under penalty of perjury that they do not pump and have never pumped water on those properties.
6. Finally, the Non-Pumper Class does not Include anyone individually named in the Public Water Suppliers’ cross-
complaint unless thase persons opted into the Non-Pumper Class.
Page2of2 Pending Approval 02/27/19

53

PAGE 121




i‘ Antelo e Valley

nglneerl s
.. @@é

APRIL 4, 2019 REF NO: L19-056

TODD GROUNDWATER
2490 MARINER SQUARE LOOP, SUITE 215
ALAMEDA, CA 94501

ATTN: KATHERINE WHITE

RE: CONSTRUCT REPLACEMENT WATER WELL ON A VACANT LOT
LETICIA ESPINOZA
1805 LA FRANCE DRIVE
BAKERSFIELD, CA 93304

DEAR MS. WHITE,

THE APPLICANT/OWNER HAS PROVIDED A WATER CONSERVATION PRACTICES FORM FOR A
SINGLE FAMILY HOME. HOWEVER, THIS IS A REPLACEMENT WELL ON A VACANT LOT. BASED ON
THIS FORM AND THE ESTIMATED ANNUAL WATER USE, THE POTENTIAL POR THE NEW WATER
PRODUCTION WELL TO CAUSE MATERIAL INJURY IS NEGLIGIBLE,

RESPECTFULLY,

VICE PRESIDENT

129 West Pondera Street L.ancaster, California 93534 - (661) 948-0805 - (661) 945-8170

JN19-037
54

PAGE 122



Water Conservation Practices for Single Family Home
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Date & - &=\ _ Proposed Well Site APN#_?_).?)DJLO_\&“_’OSZ._ _—

Property Owner/Well Owner_\.e\\C o E<Pwnnza Fe A

Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address 205 La Frowoe, Dt

Contact Phone Numbe r_Ugf_pj\?;_"l \- (p5\A&- Contact emailmk&w Q1 Cavra)-Cops

Use of New Well {Agricultural, Domestic, Industrial, Municipal, Monitoring, etc.) DMoomesac.
Estimated annual pumping from New Well 2 \/2 acre-feet/year and well capacity 5{) gallons/minute

Briefly describe how use was estimated {attach back up information as necessary) a

Ionorty end Lo Spmp B
Square footage of home o IR Eptet 15 L 2P0 NED AT L et [ ez Aow 7l
Lot/ParcelSize 7 M2 fAc es, T Jdi )
Number of full bathrooms MMLA -
Number of half-baths __ L/ -
Is there (or will there be) a pool? _f‘!_(»'___Size of pool - (gallons)
Is there (or will there be) a spa/hot tub? _ A Size of spa/hot tube e
Area to contain irrigated landscaping _ Mo iR’ s A - 552) square-feet
Description and area if each landscaping type LA ( DAL ‘z_l_agi, R ) e I‘\ )
Will there be any fruit trees? Type and how many? _{‘\’{-' vt sl s SR s Ay TIES Freag

Please provide details on potential water use other than small domestic household inside use and outside irrigation as
described above. This could include water for farm animals, etc. o

Water Conservation Checklist ,
Please indicate which of the following measures will be used: L)/J IWULA//«( (_5E£ At D v i :,)

[ eNerGY STAR® water-conserving appliances installed, e.g., dishwasher, washing machine appl.

L] water-efficient showerhead using conventional aerator or venturi technology far flow rate < 2.5 gpm fixture

[J water-efficient sink faucets/aeratars < 2.2 gallons/minute

[ uitra-tow flow (< 1.6 gpm/flush) toilets installed

D Low-volume, non-spray irrigation system installed, e.g., drip irrigation, bubbiers, drip emitters, soaker hose,

stream-rotator spray heads

O weather-based irrigation controllers, e.g., computer-based weather record

[ collect and use rainwater as permitted by local code

O Separate and re-use greywater as permitted by local code

| Composting or waterless toilet as permitted by local code

O Drought-resistant, native plants {site-appropriate)

O Xeriscape landscaping

d Evapotranspiration-based irrigation controller with a rain sensor

D Soil moisture sensor based irrigation controller

Page 10f2 Approved 3/28/18

55
PAGE 123



Please provide additional details here /7% /o fop  Jerl iy Jrigie s pifondf cp A [ 4701946
. L’f._’_;r{"; ,'.'.i"l.-!."‘. '-‘_;'IJ_ . .:}i‘.:'.."‘ﬁ.’:"!_\-;':.-"-""' "j"; ‘/.--.:‘-f.f’ 4 ‘.:r/-?'u"" /3 [ [ e i) L. (4 ’U WAV TR
73 / ,', et PR .-’.'fl"' LI e B oAl jf';; esdD DS !,_ 7 /'/l W,
T 7 ==
SIGNATURES

| understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certify that the
information provided on this Water Conservation Practices for Single Family Home form is correct to the best of my
knowledge and that the signature below, whether original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is
affixed with the intent to be enforceable. | understand that it is my responsihility to notify the Antelope Valley
Watermaster of any changes in any of the information provided on this form within 15 days.

Signature of Applicant Qﬁﬁ;;(?_é%wg__ S Date_._‘f__/;ﬁ;l_/:.{_ﬁ =

Page 2 of 2 Approved 3/28/18

56
PAGE 124



Leticia Espinoza & Jose Luis Armas, Husband and Wife
Well Statement

Dear Antelope Valley Watermaster, we thank you for the help and opportunity you have
given us in this situation. We bought this property as a future investment, when this property was
first bought it originally had a functional well. Unfortunately, someone trespasscd onto the
property and destroyed the inside of the well by filling it with metal debris and trash making the
well unusable and unfixable. Without a well on the property, the property is worth significantly
less than when we had originally purchased the parcel. At the moment, we do not have plans to
build a home or any structures onto the property. We originally used the parcel for personal
family use such as, visiting the parcel during the weekends as a small family camping trip or as a
personal getaway for vacations if we did not want to travel far. Some of the future plans we have
for the property include planting a few fruit trees and non-produce trees to make the property
Jook nicer and increase its value for the future. Another plan we have for the future of the parcel
would be to eventually introduce some animals on to the property.

The main reason we would like to build this is well is mostly as a personal investment for
our family, we thank you for the help and opportunity you have given us with the circumstances

of our situation and we hope you will be willing to help us with this project.

Sincerely, Armas Family.

57

PAGE 125



New Production Application for Domestic Wells Responses

1. Payment of an application fee sufficient to recover all costs of application review, field
investigation, reporting and hearing, and other associated costs, incurred by the Water
Master and Water Master Engineer in processing the application for New Production.
Please attach check tot this application submittal for the fee associated with a New
Production Application as per fee schedule posted on Watermaster website.

Payment will be attached to this document.

2. Written summary describing the proposed quantity, sources of supply, season of use,
purpose of use, place of use, manner of delivery, and other pertinent information regarding
the new production.

The New Production will be used mainly for domestic purposes, the New Production will be
used year round and an estimate of how much will be pumped is . LD AFY The
place of use will be on the property.

3. Maps identifying the location of the preposed New Production, including Basin Subarea,
The map identifying the location of the proposed New Production is attached to this document.

4. Well Information including proposed well design, estimated annual pumping, and
agreement to install a meter in accordance with the Rules & Regulations. Plus, a statement
that once installed, the applicant will provide water well permits, specifications and well-
log reports, pump specifications and testing results, and water meter specifications
associated with the New Production.

Well information is attached at the end of this document.

5. Written confirmation that applicant has obtained all necessary entitlements and permits

Including all applicable Federal, State, County, and local land use entitlements and other
permits necessary to commence the New Production.

I will obtain all necessary entitlements and permits, except for the final County permit to install
the well. That permit will be obtained after getting the Watermaster permission to New
Production, Once approved, 1 will Obtain a well permit from the County and retain a qualified
driller with a California License C-57, who will secure any additional permits needed to drill my

well, including the completion of a department of Water Recourses Well Completion Report

6. Written confirmation that applicant has complicd with applicable laws and regulations

including all applicable Federal, State, County, and local laws, rules and regulations,
including but not limited to, the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources

Codes 21000, et. Seq.).

58
PAGE 126



I will comply with all applicable rules and regulations. Drilling of my domestic well qualifies for

a Categorical Exemption under CEQA

7. Preparation of a water conservation plan, approved and stamped by a California

licensed and registered professional civil engineer with expertise in groundwater
hydrology, demonstrating that the New Production will be designed, constructed and
implemented consistent with California best water management practices.

This New Production will be put to reasonable and beneficial uses on my property where the

well is located. It will only be used for domestic use.

8. Preparation of an analysis of the economic impact of the New Production on the Basin

and other Producers in the Subarea of the Basin.
The economic impact will be minimal since production will be less that SAFY and I will be
paying a replacement water assessment to have an equal amount of water imported and

recharged into the Basin.

9, Preparation of an analysis of the physical impact of the New Production on the Basin

and other Producers in the Subarea of the Basin.
The Physical impact on the Basin will be minimal since the production will be less than 2 AYF

and I will be paying a replacement water assessment to have an equal amount of water imported

and recharged into the Basin.

10. A written statement, signed by California licensed and registered prefessional civil
engineer with expertise in groundwater hydrology, determining that the New Production

will not cause Material Injury. Material injury could be in the form of significant and

unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels, 2. Reduction of groundwater
storage, 3. Degraded water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5. Depletions of interconnected
surface water such that beneficial uses are impacted.

The production will be less than 9AF Y. It will not cause a material injury to the basin since a

replacement water assessment will be paid to have an equal amount of water and recharged into

the basin.

59

PAGE 127



11. Written confirmation that the applicant agrees to pay the applicable Replacement

Water Assessment for any New Production.
I the applicant, agree to pay the applicable Replacement Water Assessment for any New

Production

12. Other pertinent information which the Waters master Engineer may require.

60

PAGE 128



E . 1 ¢ ) Wy ALt ’J . Bt -
C’JI :.’zn.;,.- PR frers f._!r{f, G ety el _')_r_,:
——

: ¥ T c /
Ui Armineyni K Tine Tt (ALY —
T 005 Sk Sarface SAl e oo B

G prsefe
A P

. J . ,
St Aeirs mmitak

G B po s Ao
A SiGred o0 v N
. " ~ J "
Y SwR T Dlank Sas 2L L9
L '7f'
oot ’7: '
\

—:;"é, “river i VY doen W,“f’“ at ,,gj,l My

SorV Ve e |
e o Py - - -
WL I O~ LA S )‘:_/“ ¢
P
:
0y
! |
1
{

B o
BRI PV Qs cud destit el
A AY 3R 2

| 1 \ jus
AR ! .
]:}F LA i = ¥
6 A
SE D LMY N ik
a

LOLA RS e CEPRE e )
# 144 .:":r/r.'c nwe I‘L‘.il',-‘:'lb-’-' Qv‘ )'4;/(5:’/ ¢ e B

P A I e

61

PAGE 129



R

——— w‘

L
3 P

, 2ude. foeed
5 A s
( W7 82 0r2¢"
‘k‘\\__\__-__ __-/”

33070 -052

I re !J«_l \"y /mﬁ- 273 f'cf: et cu/“
SYruchiures €r S se 57t>/:‘h’

/-"""'_“-—\._‘

e b 33,20 ‘9“0//"; welt! g
117¢ 5 oy 16" ‘l
‘."‘"'-.._______,.-.-_.,..__— —— _....-

-k
62

PAGE 130



ol
Lo Wel |

o4 LACoumnt

el BooalH Lo e
T, .8 y v,
3 - H ; \; " v
» P @
" - ]
¥ =y ¥ 1 ¢
. " -I ) Vivaw 2 -

63

R

() Locakion of Foposed New Rroduct

Q) Existing Well -

PAGE 131



i &\
; S|
s Bt b
[ 1 : = |
r'zBBDTH e s:l‘ Ellm—] =
| oo EE?@*EE?(J: e :éﬁﬂcﬁiﬁﬁmé 4l
=== ""_7"_"__1""'* [ T _--ﬁ
il jo ! e | w.o'@' shojie e |
| _——-,————l..-__L_ e |..‘,..{§,, 'i:._.._'1 LE
fel jo ! aﬁﬁ.&ﬁﬂ?.&f‘s‘r io e
Q x"_'_'_! g G i
jle==r= R : IR e =
W) @ ! BEREICE = =
O [ e e L S e o ey o gEEI
3 Ho : | 8 O i
| e L o ¢
flo | ® | e o
----- iy e ey et - e f bt
| A | i |
Haal e | T 7 J S -
fielio o 1o | 10 g
A A S T4 1Y S
I~ e
S |
% |
——e
|
|
e
[
Ei(’ﬂ -_'E“-i-
LAt g
1 ;
|
|
oL
|
|
|
ol
|
t |
| U OUP—— W— | ¥
S : g
i i i sg 1 , 1 3:;
i

64

PAGE 132



instant Transaction History Report

For Property Located At:
VAC/NVIC 90TH STE/AVE F8, REDMAN CA 935356

APN: 3307-014-062 H
Owner Name: ESPINOZA LETICIA C 0 re LO g I C

Transaction History Record # 1

Sale
Sale Recording Date: ~ 02107/2017 Sale Price: $40,000
Sale Date: 02/02/2017 Sale Price Type: FULL
Rec. Document #: 154727 Multi / Split Sale:
Sale (nstrument #: 000000154727 Document Type: QRANT DEED
Sale Book / Page: Title Company: CHICAGO TITLE CO
Buyer1: ESPINOZA LETICIA Corporate Buyer:
Buyer2:
Buyer3:
Buyerd:
Seller: CASA GRANDE INDUSTRIES INC
Transaction History Record # 2
Sale
Sale Recording Date:  02/07/2017 Sale Price:
Sale Date: 02/03/2017 Sale Price Type:
Rec. Document #: 154726 Multi / Split Sale:
Sale Instrument #: 000000164726 Document Type: QUIT CLA!M DEED
Sale Book / Page: Title Company: CHICAGO TITLE CO
Buyeri: ESPINOZA LETICIA Corporate Buyer:
Buyer2:
Buyerd:
Buyer4:
Seller: ORTIZJOSELA
Transaction History Record # 3
Sale
Sale Reconding Date:  01/21/2010 Sale Prica: $35,053
Sale Date: 01/15/2010 Sale Price Type: UNKNOWN
Rec. Document #: 87757 Mulii / Split Sale:
Sale Instrument #: 000000087757 Document Type: TRUSTEE'S DEED (FORECLOSURE)
Sale Book / Page: Title Company: ORANGE COAST TITLE CO
Buyert: CASA-GRANDE INDS INC Corporate Buyer: Y
Buyer2:
Buyer3:
Buyerd:
Seller: WOLF FIRM

Recording Information for LOS ANGELES, CA
Standalone

Sales Marigages Morigages Assignments Releases Foreclosures
History Start Date 01/01/1849 08/01/4980 02/01/1987 01/02/2004 12/08/2004 09/01/1980
Recording Through Date 03/13/2010 03/13/2019 03/13/2019 03/13/2019 03/13/2019 03/13/2018
1ovaesnd 1 e 't
WEE b Sl nght e ieed
65

PAGE 133



oximate Location of (APN-3307-0_o62

sesieqng juawebeuey

MIALYVAMONNOAND

pue ealy uoyedpnipy N \.“ Q O i .
Kajjep adop@uy e B e j pnpanby eluONED = .
ainbGy
V u_ 810¢ sunr ealy pajedipnipy Asjen edopiuy [ ]
ujsegq 1elempunols) Aajjep adoje)uy sy
"
o seaJEqNS Juswalbieuepy _ _
=~ .““ ._
e - e § pusbay
_.,.
@ ealeqng i)
, Q yse3 yinos i
SN o o gt /
-'N.— D. /./
c! ‘ .
m : .:.—w.»b.n.n—, . -
ol : ./
[ .
g ! ! 1
g £ eareqns AajjeA i
_..W m \
m ] “
%! :
| i
: A
& —=
: et R, e sy m—— S 4 4
ﬂ . N i ST eaeqng "
1e> i = adojejuy 3sam
h | L]
..\\I.l-/'.
SN Ui 6fedS
e —]
8 0

ERCRITE EY T

" ni

[CC IO

u
CRGTTS T

th g

-z

66

PAGE 134



TODD il

GROUNDWATER

April 4, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: APN# 3384-007-007 Ming New Production Application Findings

Watermaster Board:

Todd Groundwater has determined that the above-mentioned application for New Production
in the Central Antelope Valley Subarea for domestic use at a single-family home is complete.
The information provided indicates that the New Production will be used in a manner
consistent with California best water management practices. Given the small amount of
proposed production (<1 AFY) and the obligation to pay a Replacement Water Assessment,
Todd Groundwater finds that the potential for Material Injury as defined in the Judgment is
negligible.

Sincerely,

Ao G Harin?

Phyllis Stanin

Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com

67

PAGE 135



NEW PRODUCTION APPLICATION
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Attach application fee of $750 for review and processing: Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwater masler.nel
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

Date__ Nov. 11, 2018 Proposed Well Site APN#__3384 007007
Property Owner/Weli Owner__Lin Ming
Property Ownar/Wel! Owner Malling Address 425 Keiffer Dr. Rincon, GA 31326 :

Contact Phone Number (912)665-0051 Contact email M xlhm figd hotn ailcum

New Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y) 31.704267, 117.988154 antelope Valley Subarea: _Lancaster

Use of New Well {Agricultural, Domestic, iIndustrial, Municipal, Monitoring, etc.) D om estic

1f Domestic well, will well be used to supply one single family household only? Yes/Na. Yes

Do other wells exist on this property? If Yes, indicate if active, inactive, or abandoned and show on Site Plan.
When will a meter be installed on the well? As soon as the well is constructed.
New Production requests are to include the following (Section 18.5.13 of the Judgment):

1. Payment of an application fee sufficient to recaver all costs of application review, fleld investigation, reporting, and hearing,
and other associated costs, incurred by the Watermaster and Watermaster Engineer in processing the application for New
Production. This payment is currently set at $750. Please attach a check to this application submittal, Check can be made
out to Antelope Valley Watermaster.

2. Wrltten summary describing the proposed quantity, sources of supply, season of use, purpose of use, place of use, manner of
delivery, and other pertinent information regarding the New Production.

3. Maps!identifying the location of the proposed New Production, including Basin Subarea.

Well information? including proposed well design, estimated annual pumping, and agreement to install a meter in accordance
with the Rules & Regulations. Plus, a statement that once the well is installed, the applicant wilt provide water well permits,
specifications and well-log reports, pump specifications and testing results, and water meter specifications associated with the
New Production.

5. Written conficmation that applicant has obtained all necessary entitlements and permits including all applicable Federal, State,
County, and local land use entitlements and other permits necessary to commence the New Production.

6. Written confirmation that applicant has complied with applicable laws and regulations including all applicable Federal, State,
County, and local laws, rules and regulations, including but not limited to, the California Environmental Quality Act {Public
Resources Code §§ 21000, et. seq.). .

7. Preparation of a water conservation plan, appraved and stamped by a California licensed and registered professional civil
engineer with expertise in groundwater hydrology, demonstrating that the New Production will be designed, constructed and
implemented consistent with California best water ma nagement practices.

8. [Preparation of an analysis of the economic impact of the New Production on the Basin and other Producers in the Subarea of
the Basin.

9. Proparation of an analysis of the physical impact of the New Production on the Basin and other Producers in the Subarea of
the Basin.

10. A written statement, signed by a California licensed and reglstered professional civil engineer with-expertlse in groundwater
hydrology, determining that the New Production wlll not cause Material Injury: Material injury could be in the form of

significant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels, 2. Reduction of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded
water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5. Depletions of interconnected surface water such that beneficial uses are impacted.

ex

1 Maps are to include North arrow and scale, location of proposed well with dimensions in feet from well to nearest cross streets,
and location of site features, including major buildings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc. )
2 please attach a diagram showing proposed well construction, including maximum well depth, casing diameter and materials,
ground surface elevation, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity. A completed DWR Well Completion Report Is
required to be submitted to the Antelope valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Page 1of 2 Approved 06/27/18

~

68

PAGE 136



11. Written confirmation that the applicant agrees to pay the applicable Replacement Water Assessment for any New Praduction.
12. Other pertinent information which the Watermaster Engineer may require.

in addition, all New Production applicants who are not Parties to the Judgment are to comply with Section 20.9 of the Judgment,
consult with the Watermaster Engineer, and seek the Watermaster’s stipulation to allow them to intervene to become bound by the
Judgment prior to commencing Production. The non-Party applicant must file a motion to intervene with the court that includes
reference ta their effort to obtain the Watermaster’s stipulation to the intervention. It is strongly recommended that the non-Party
applicant consult with a lawyer to assist them with compllance with Section 20.9 of the Judgment.

SIGNATURES .

| understand and agree to be bound by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment and to pay the
applicable Replacement Water Assessment for any New Production. | certify that the information provided on this
Request for New Production is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether original,
electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valld, and is affixed with the intent to be enforceable. | understand that
it is my responsibility to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes in any of the information provided
on this form within 15 days. | also understand that additional information may be required if there is a suspected

potential for a material injury as defined in the judgment.
Signature of Applicant m Date '2// 2/!8

To be completed by the Watermaster:

Watermaster Engineer Approval Date )

Watermaster Board Approval Date

NOTE: This application is not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted ta the
appropriate well permitting agency {e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the well i5 to be installed within
the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area.

Page 2 of 2 Approved 06/27/18

-~

69

PAGE 137



Water Conservation Practices for Single Family Home
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Date_1/3/2019 Proposed Well Site APN# 3384-007-007

Property Owner/Well Qwner Lin, Ming

Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address_423 Keiffer Drive Rincon, ca 31326 -
Contact Phone Number 912-665-0031 Contact email_puhao husng@gmail.com

Use of New Well (Agricultural, Domestic, Industrial, Municipal, Monitoring, etc.)
Estimated annual pumping from New Well 0.25 acre-feet/year and well capacity 6 gallons/minute
Briefly describe how use was estimated (attach back up information as necessary) Domestiv

Square footage of home 3,000

Lot/Parcel Size _9 Ares -
Number of full bathrooms 3
Number of half-baths N/A

is there {or will there be) a pool? _N Size of pool N/A {gallons)

is there (or will there be) a spa/hot tub? _N size of spa/hot tube _N/A _
Area to contain irrigated landscaping 5,000 square-feet

Description and area if each landscaping type Grass

Will there be any fruit trees? Type and how many? Notat the beginning, may grow a few in the future,

Please provide details on potential water use other than small domestic household inside use and outside irrigation as

described above. This could include water for farm animals, etc. _1. May build 2 famm if water level high. 2. May have visitors during
holidays.

Water Conservation Checklist

please indicate which of the following measures will be used:
ENERGY STAR® water-conserving appliances installed, e.g., dishwasher, washing machine appl.
water-efficient showerhead using conventional aerator or venturi technology for flow rate < 2.5 gpm fixture
Water-efficient sink faucets/aeratofs < 2.2 gallons/minute
Ultra-low flow (< 1.6 gpm/flush) toilets installed

¥} Low-volume, non-spray irrigation system installed, e.g., drip irrigation, bubblers, drip emitters, soaker hose,
stream-rotator spray heads

D Weather-based irrigation controllers, e.g., computer-based weather record
[ colléct and use rainwater as permitted by local code

D Separate and re-use greywater as permitted by local code

O Composting or waterless toilet as permitted by local code
Drought-resistant, native plants (site-appropriate)

D Xeriscape landscaping

D Evapotranspiration-based irrigation controller with a rain sensor

D Soil moisture sensor based irrigation controller

Page 1 0f 2 Approved 3/28/18

70

PAGE 138



Please provide additional details here

SIGNATURES

} understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication ludgment. 1 certify that the
information provided on this Water Conservation Practices for Single Family Home form is correct to the best of my
knowledge and that the signature below, whether original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is
affixed with the intent to be enforceable. t understand that it is my responsibility to notify the Antelope Valley
Watermaster of any changes in any of the information provided on this form within 15 days.

Lin,Ming/#-% Date 1/9/2019

signature of Applicant

Page 2 of 2 Approved 3/28/18

71

PAGE 139



[=

Dok Cngisetot

March 21,2019

Todd Groundwater
2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215
Alameda, Ca 94501

Subject: New Production Application
Applicant:  Lin Ming
APN: 3384-007-007
Address: 425 Keiffer Dr. Rincon, CA 31326
Contact: (912)665-0051

Duke Engineering has reviewed the above-mentioned application, and it is of our opinion that the application for
a New Production well will not cause Material Injury. The water demand is for domestic use at (1) 3,000 SF

Single-Family Household, which will also be used for Outdoor Irrigation of Landscaping (Trees and
Ground Cover). The applicant has provided an Estimate Annual Water Demand of 1 AFY as shownon the Water

Conservation Practice Form.

Thanks,

Ryan Duke PE

44732 Yucca Avenue * Lancaster CA 93534 = Phox;E: 661.952.7918 ¢ ryan.duke@duke-engineering.com

PAGE 140



Additional Responses for New Production Application for $mall Domestic Wells

Ming Lin

2. The new production will be put to use on a single family home, estimated about .5 af
per year and well pump capacity pumping will be approx. 10-15 gpm. It will be used year round
thru all seasons.

4. See previously included well design. Annual pum ping is estimated at .5af/per year.
Water meter will be installed by an approved installer. Well completion report and pumping
info will be provided at completion of well.

73

PAGE 141



Responses for New Production Application for Small Domestic Wells

5. Written confirmation that applicant has obtained all necessary entitiements and permits including all
applicable federa), State, County, and local land use entitlements and other permits necessary to commence
the New Production.

| have obtained all necessary entitlements and permits, except for the final County permit to install the well.

That permit will be obtained after getting the Watermaster permission to New Production. Once approved, |

will obtain a well permit from the County and retain a qualified driller with a California License C-57, who

will secure any additional permits needed to drill my well, including the completion of a Department of

Water Resources Well Completion Report.

6. Written confirmation that applicant has complied with applicable laws and regulations including all
applicable Federal, State, County, and local laws, rules and regulations, including but not limited to, the
California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §§ 21000, et. seq.).

| have complied with all applicable rules and regulations. Drilling of my domestic well qualifies fora

Categorical Exemption under CEQA.

9. Preparation of a water conservation plan, approved and stamped by a California licensed and registered
professional civil engineer with expertise in groundwater hydrology, demonstrating that the New
Production will be designed, constructed and implemented consistent with California best water
management practices.

This New Production will be put to reasonable and beneficial uses on my property where the well is located.

it will anly be used for single-family domestic uses. | have attached a completed Water Conservation

practices for Single Family Home Form.

8. Preparation of an analysis of the economic impact of the New Production on the Basin and other
Producers in the Subarea of the Basin.

The economic impact will be de minimis since production will be less than 1 AFY and | will be payinga

replacement water assessment to have an equal amount of water imported and recharged into the Basin.

9. Preparationofan analysis of the physical impact of the New Production an the Basin and other
Producers in the Subarea of the Basin.

The physical impact on the Basin will be de minimis since production will be less than 1 AFY and | will be

payinga replacement water assessment to have an equal amount of water imported and recharged into the

Basin.

10. A written statement, signedby a California licensed and registered professional civil engineer with
expertise In groundwater hydrology, determining that the New Production will not cause Material
Injury.

The production will be less than 1 AFY. It will not cause a material injury to the basin since a replacement

water assessment will be paid to have an equal amount of water imported and recharged into the Basin.

74

PAGE 142



ABUNDANT WATER WELL, INC.

Lick 981850

P.0. BOX 700

LEONA VALLEY CA 93551
(661) 713-3443

PROPOSED WORK:
DRILL 12 %” BORE HOLE

APPROX: 400°
SET 5 SDR17

CASING WITH MILL

CERT PERFORATION .032
CENTRALIZERS PLACED AT 6’ AND

51’ BG

#5 BIRDS EYE PEA GRAVEL

FROM BOTTOM TO 50’ BGS

TREMIE PUMP 10 SAC CEMENT BGS
SEAL 50—’ WITH7 X 7’ X 6”
REINFORCED SLAB

AIRLIFT WELL MINIMUM

OF TWO HOURS

NAME: Ming Lin
APN#: 3384-007-007

BORE HOLE

3’3

50

/

75

.\
L A A AA A K

\>< el ><'\

PUMPED10 sac
CONCRETE

/

/

3/8 PEA GRAVEL

MIL PERF
CASING

SDR 17 .032

PAGE 143



§ e
)
Ve
b

I Avenuel I r‘:‘"-f,i.'”:.“." L Avenue!l

AN 2284-007-007

76

PAGE 144



Instant Transaction History Report

For Property Located At:

VAC/COR AVENUE 1/80 DRT, ROOSEVELT CORNER CA 93535
APN: 3384-007-007

Owner Name: LIN MING

Transaction History Record # 1

Sale
Sale Recording Date:  10/26/2018 Sale Price:
Sale Date: 10/23/2018 Sale Price Type:
Rec. Document #: 1000995 Muiti / Split Sale:
Sale Instrument #: 000001090985 Document Type:
Sale Book / Page: Title Company:
Buyer1: LIN MING Corporate Buyer:
Buyer2:
Buyer3:
Buyerd:
Seller: ACEHCAP LLC

Transaction History Record # 2

Sale
Sale Recording Date:  01/11/2013 Sale Price:
Sale Date: 12/27/2012 Sale Price Type:
Rec. Document #: 52014 Multi / Split Sale:
Sale Instrument #: 000000052914 Document Type:
Sale Book / Page: Title Company:
Buyert: ACEH CAP LLC Corporate Buyer:
Buyer2:
Buyer3:
Buyer4:
Seller: ACEH CAPITALLLC

Transaction History Record # 3

Sale
Salse Recording Date:  06/11/1984 Sale Price:
Sale Date: Sale Price Type:
Rec, Documnent #: 6689662 Muitt / Split Sale:
Sale Instrument #: 000000689662 Dooument Type:
Sale Book / Page: Tile Company:
Buyert: CHANG JAVIER O Corporate Buyer:
Buyer2: CHANG YVONNE
Buyer3:
Buyer4:
Seller:

Finance
Finance Status: Mtg Loan Type:
Mtg Recording Date: 06M11/1984 Mtg Rate Type:
Mig Document #: Transfer Type:
Mtg Document Type 1: Mtig Term:
Lender: : Mtg Rate:
Loan Amount: $59,133 Borrower Vesting:
Borrower 1: CHANG JAVIER O Trustee Name:
Barrower 2: CHANG YVONNE
Borrower 3:
Borrower 4:

Fonwnse ) By Goene

77

L
Yl

CoreLogic

$74,000
FULL

GRANT DEED
FIDELUTY NATIONAL TITLE CO

$204,714
FULL

TRUSTEE'S DEED (FORECLOSURE)

Y

$56,500
PARTIAL

DEED (REG)

PRIVATE PARTY LENDER

RESALE

PAGE 145



A\hi.;\/\u

[ ow-Lo0 - h8=e (VG QM.‘ Lio1)vog [ T) U TIAY )

sealeqng juswebeuep ALYMANNOHD T

ue ealy u f
P v uonedipnipy I ﬂ Q OLA

A3|jep adojsjuy —_—

| ainbiy g8L0¢Z aunr

TIEEtS

ealeqns
jse3 yynog

San Bernardina Caunty

- b m e
P AN

o e

L

3 oo, L adies

[
L

pnpanby epuoyes

EdJY pajeoipnipy Aajiep adosiuy —
UISeg Jajempunois Aajjen adojajuy

->—a

| sealeqng awabeuep D
] puaba
.,
A\
.’
A
\
- -—/-
ea.eqng Asilep pal i
adojajuy jenuan o N
Lo
ol v . 3y
A ks R . ,G_UI ._-/.h.r
v % easeqng A .
adojsjuy ysepm R "
- 8 .
N
soUn Ui sieog |
——— =]
Vi g 0

i
LB LT

e et

78

PAGE 146



QD

April 4, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: APN# 3105-009-901 and APN# 3105-009-902 Los Angeles County Waterworks District No.
40 New Point of Extraction Well Applications

Watermaster Board:

Todd Groundwater has determined that the above-mentioned New Point of Extraction Well
Applications for an Exhibit 4 Party in the Central Subarea are complete. Los Angeles County
Waterworks District No. 40 would like to construct two new production wells to an
approximate depth of 500 feet on Avenue H and 50 Street West in Lancaster to optimize the
District’s production capacity. It is anticipated that each well will have a capacity of 1,000 gpm
and each will produce 1,200 AFY.

The new wells appear to be more than 3.5 miles from the nearest agricultural wells and about
2.6 miles from public water supply wells. Assuming a depth of 500 feet, it appears that the new
wells will be screened above deeper clay layers at this location. Given these conditions and the
small number of nearby wells, it is unlikely that use of the new wells will adversely impact the
beneficial uses of existing wells. The new wells will be used to recover the District’s current
groundwater production rights, which have been incorporated into the Native Safe Yield;
accordingly, the new wells do not represent new production and will not create overdraft
conditions in the basin. The proposed wells are within the area of historical subsidence but are
outside of the area where the highest historical subsidence has occurred — which is also an area
with existing District wells. These two new wells allow a re-distribution of production over a
slightly greater area and outside of the concentrated area of historical subsidence, which may
be more beneficial to the basin than using existing wells for the District’s full production rights.

In the absence of a numerical tool to assist with a Material Injury analysis, the above review is a
reasonable approach to assessing potential impacts associated with these welils. Recognizing
that the District will simply be shifting a portion of its annual production (totaled about 17,400
AFY in 2018) to these new wells, Todd Groundwater finds the potential for Material Injury as
defined in the Judgment to be negligible.

Sincerely,

At 4 Hanins

Phyllis Stanin
Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com

79
PAGE 147



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

“To Enrich Lives Through Effective and Caring Service"”

900 SOUTH FREMONT AVENUE
ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91B03-1331
MARK PESTRELLA, Direclor ‘Telephone: (526) 438-5100

http://dpw.lacounty.gov ADDRISS ALL CORRESPONDFENGE T:
P.0. BOX 1460
ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91802-1460

IN IEPLY PLEASE

RAEFER TO FILE WW-3
March 18, 2019

Ms. Phyllis Stanin

Antelope Vailey Watermaster
P.O. Box 3025

Quartz Hill, CA 93586

Dear Ms. Stanin:

LOS ANGELES COUNTY WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 40, ANTELOPE VALLEY
APPLICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION
WELLS IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY

The purpose of this letter is for the Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40,
Antelope Valley (District), to apply for permission to construct and use two new
groundwater extraction wells within the boundaries of the Antelope Valley Groundwater
Basin (Basin). The District's groundwater production from these proposed wells and its
existing welis will not exceed the production rights to which the District is entitled under
the provisions of the Judgment and Physical Solution in the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases (Judgment).

By way of background, the District encompasses roughly 554 square miles of land
located in Northern Los Angeles County, most of which overlays the Basin. The District
has a water supply portfolio consisting of groundwater pumped from the Basin by
approximately 44 District-owned active wells along with purchased imported water from
the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK).

On December 23, 2015, the Court entered the Judgment. Among other things, the
Judgment sets forth the groundwater production rights of the parties to the action and
physical solution to maintain and manage the Basin. The Judgment provides the
District with groundwater production rights, including a nonoverlying right to
6,789 acre-feet/year, the right to produce a percentage of the unused Federal

80
PAGE 148



Ms. Phyllis Stanin
March 18, 2019
Page 2

production right, and imported water return flows. The Judgment also provides the
District with the ability to carry over and store nonproduced groundwater rights as well
as store imported water within the Basin to be produced at a later time. Additionally,
Separate and apart from the Judgment, the District and AVEK have a lease agreement
under which AVEK leases a percentage of its groundwater production rights to the
District.

The District proposes to construct two new groundwater wells on Avenue H and
50th Street West in Lancaster as shown on the enclosed exhibit. The new wells will
optimize the District's capacity to produce its adjudicated groundwater rights by, among
other things, allowing the District to produce its in-lieu rights during dry years and as
needed to maintain system integrity. This will increase water supply reliability and
drought preparedness in the event of an interruption to or reduction of State Water
Project deliveries or any other impacts on imported water conditions. The District is
finalizing the design of the wells and secks to start construction of the project by
June 2020.

Since the District will continue to produce groundwater within its adjudicated production
rights pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, the new wells will not cause significant or
unreasonable material injury to the Basin or other parties to the Judgment.

Enclosed please find two applicatons and a check in the amount of
$700 for payment of application fees for the new groundwater extraction wells,

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Greg Even, Waterworks Division, at

(626) 300-3302 or geven@dpw.lacounty.qgov.

Very truly yours,
MARK PESTRELLA

Director of Pu%‘
<S}(,eu:»t\ RIKI
Assistant Deputy Director

Waterworks Division

SS:ea

h:\wwhome\admin\stters\2018\r1 81 - groundwater extraction walls.doc

Enc.

81
PAGE 149



NEW POINT OF EXTRACTION APPLICATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Attach application fee of $350 for review and processing. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster
{Application fee is reduced to $150 for Small Pumper Class members pumping a total of <3 AFY)

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

*This form is to be used by applicants with existing production rights to install a new well at @ new point of extraction as defined by the
Judgment. Please use the Replacement Well Application If the proposed well will be within 300 feet from an existing well from which the
rights to produce groundwater originate. If new production rights are being requested, please use the New Production Application.

Date__March 06, 2019 Well Site APN#_3105009901

Property Owner/Well Owner Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40, Antelope Valley
Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address___1000 S. Fremont Ave, Alhambra, CA 91803

if different than Owner's Address 4820 West Avenue H, Lancaster, CA 93536

Property Address,

Contact Phone Number_(626) 300-3350 - Contact email__lduong@dpw.lacounty.gov

Owner's name as Appears in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment_Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40
Production Rights as fisted in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment _6,789.26 acre-feet/year

Drilter Information
Drilling Company_T0 be determined when project is awarded to contractor.

Drilling Company Address
Drilling Company Phone Number Drilling Company email

Existing Well Information, if applicable and if not already provided to the Watermaster Engineer
Will the New Well replace an Existing Well? No  Existing Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y)
Will the New Well be used in order to stop shating a well? Please provide a copy of the shared well agreement.
Estimated future annual production of the Existing Well once the New Well has been constructed
Will the Existing Well be destroyed? If not, why not?
Existing Well pumping capacity gpm Average annual production from Existing Well acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agricultural, domestic, industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.)

Status (active, inactive)

Existing Well construction date Casing Materials Casing Diameter inches
Surface seal material and depth Screened interval feet below ground surface
Well Depth feet Ground surface elevation feet above mean sea level

Depth to water feet
Please attach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Report, if available.

Page 10of 2 Approved 06/27/18

82

PAGE 150



New Well information
WiIll this be a New or Replacement Weli? New Distance from Existing Well (please use the New or Replacement
Well Application for Existing Production Rights form if the distance will be within 300 feet)
New Well Latitude/Longitude {or x, y) 34.7178618", -118.2193197°

Use(s) of New Well (agricultural, domestic, Industral, municipal, monitoring, etc.) Special District

Estimated New Well pumping capacity 1,000 gpm Estimated annual production from New Well 1,200 acre-feet/year
Do other wells exist on this property? _No_Ifves, Indicate if active, inactive, or abandoned and show on Site Plan

Will a meter be installed on the well at the time of construction? _Y8S _ if not, when will the meter be installed?

Proposed New Well Construction

Please attach a diagram showing proposed well construction, including maximum well depth, casing diameter and
materials, ground surface elevatlon, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity. A completed DWR Well
Completion Report Is required to be submitted to the Antelope Valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Site Plan
Please attach an 8%” by 11” paper site plan (legible hand wiltten on Google map acceptable) with a north arrow and

approximate scale to this application showing:
1. Location of site features, Including major bulldings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.
2. \Locations of proposed well and existing well(s) with dimenslons in feet from wells to nearest cross streets,

Material Injury (written statement not required for Small Pumper Class members requesting a combined total of <3 AFY)

ﬂ A written statement describing how the New Point of Extraction will not cause Materlal Injury. Materlal Injury could be in

the form of significant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels such that neighboring wells are
impacted, 2. Reduction of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5, Depletions of
interconnected surface water such that beneficial uses are Impacted, or other adverse physical impact to the basin or

to another Producer.

Signatures

| understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment.'| certify that the
information given in this application Is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valld, and Is affixed with the intent to be enforceable. 1
understand that It is my responsibility, as the well owner, to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes
in the purpose or pumping capacity of this well, from which, is indicated on this application. | also understand that
additional Information may be required if there is a suspected potential for a material injury as defined in the

Judgment. W
signature of Property Owner/Well Owner___ Date 3 / I / /?

[ oy
Signature of Well Driller Date
Signature of Consultant/Agent Date
To be completed by the Watermaster: .
Watermaster Engineer Approval Z§ ,é &:VLA'&; Date '% 46[ / 2
Watermaster Board Approval Date

This application is not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted to
the appropriate well permitting agency (e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the well

is to be installed within the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area.

Page 2 of 2 Approved 06/27/18

83

PAGE 151



= —

STV13d T¥1S303d T13M GNY ROLLO3S TEM

“TT3M 3HL 40 NOLLONXLSNOD ONI¥NA

b6-¥ B £6-F ST1AM 'ILIS 1T73IM

Q3NIV180 V1iva INIWILYTd ¥3HLO B SITdWVS H3HINDY

907 IYIASAHJOTID 907 NOLIVIWHOS NO 43sva IONVYHO

1S3IM 133ALS H10S ANV H INNIAY

01 1L03r4ans 34V NOJYIH SONILLIS NOISIQ TV JLO0N -

e A 3 O P IV §9Y 0 LS

LT WMy Tt ST 0 L P i

NOILOMYISNOD 404 LON
SNV1d %06

>
SELL P IR . P e |
— e
Ee e e e

TRAEY) P LASLNGY DAY K TR &

- :
P A R A
VO Y Cu LT TRRGO SN GAY DWEVI T 7
WA L Ly EOS Y MO Dl 8

B

]

&
A

b=l
NvY1d V1S303d T13m

2,7
e LTy ey s
w‘mb._.._- WIS

‘S3LON TwdINID

e
PREE

v

SIN
0-2 NOILO3S

P L

BT 1 e Tar

it ¥

—_SiN |
Jivi3ad 3aind
BNISYD TIEM TWIIdAL

T

-9 NOILO3S

. |

b~

T Y Wrg i
R

e
N e g

byl

R ad

v 1 U Ml 3 e e

Tulisayve.a

TVHITLS W OYE LN

Y NLO4
ey PeTa VoA VALYY e

84

PAGE 152



AT O LT 0 e T SRR Ty e

oD
..11‘-! T U pemTIG

TV RGeSV S TN At EERET

AT (3 W W
N NP

L W o T R L e =
— = 10 ©OIITAE 227 1Tr G I RROQU & " ITMEIS 4O S201 OL Bt¥id SnCK 15 MYl 55T Gl
aus X _ghﬂgguhgn?ﬁgshhgﬂgﬁﬂuadug SV B RO
NYId P » oE=.l x:ﬁ?lﬁﬁ»ﬂﬂ:ﬂ»ﬁ“‘ggigaﬂnl;g!;g
¥6-7 2 £6-v STIIM 'ILIS 1AM e o o ey LT o T wawse 1) 20 WAL 735 G
NV1d 3LIS
1S3M 13341S H10S ANV H INN3AY 4 JION NOILSINNOONI LN
et s v S Eee e A S LY igmea
@!Ill.'l A AN
. = i
NOLLOMYLSNOQ H0d JON e e e e T
SNV 1d %06 = o Ty )
AN 8 el T Beoked L uu..m.T
TIV13d NISvE NOLUN313d 2249 i ey
= tered ' .l...l\. N )
N Lk -
A2 SN E.V.h.r' ._ -2 i ERARS
\r/ NOILD3S \.W.P:sﬁ... T ST SR
[, R
- S — ] 5
= iREERER
. ox o3
!ddﬁﬁh?yﬁ)&k
. i
WL e T
)/.ul.do.)
- =3
"
2 s s
5 Lt e AL =
o ek Vi)
= T e e
&) L n,—.mwo.o_w,.
o T TNGTIL I
= k) e NLEIATY
NE q-.._ﬂ.-oi ugn o F Fomest e oy i
3 S e e s e
" _
] : .
;& -4 F =
= 4 — bz cR o T TR
E B A H  anNaAv
9 e W P TRy —— e p———
< In _ i 1
O mdNDY I YA ATV LS YIRS TY ._ 5 o
See—— |H..\W\.”.WHIV|1HH»I e e e e = — e
T Wl ARG PR O uM0dYE" r.._u ) wm 4
OF = .k “ZIHOH T YOS RTINS = =
Vo4 epa
ERlEel-K]

85

PAGE 153



L B et = e | T

SHYI3Q ANV 'NOLLITS ‘Nvid
DNIdkd IDUVHISIA TIEM

8-+ B €6-F STIIM '3LIS TTIEM
1S3M 13341S HIL0S ANY H INNIAY

i ST 0 LGAUNVIIG ATTIEIY G0 5O NG

b =.2fL - 3TVAS

NVY1d - STIVA3Q ONidid 39dUYHISI T19Mm

LS ¥ SO B T I LN B0 LSRG O, Ya.

NOILONYLSNOD HOd LON
SNV1d %06
SN
3did 13318 0L NOILJ3NNOD
JTvi3a
TToa Snd r

T

SIN

dv13dNVS
87lvi3d

B2 AT OV ¥ T e Mm
NG anavi o4
TEMIDS INTIA Tivd £
NN Furd TAUGAWD L
NS5 £ HL 3 TwA ISYTRY iy CFe-d THY TIVIAHOW.Z £
POFTIO6 USATYD ¢ @)
casn N @
Ve 233 NGLLYH L3N Aeid AR TNI0HY BYZTY 07 30UA HSING ACOXS LHOM b
AT O M0 AL T340 38 1TYHE BYIS @15 L 30 35V L 1iOH4 D L¥ L7l
M T UL ¥ 0L T,5 X .9 Fubth AUSUINDD Gh5T-00352 SAAL HOIHL 3 2V LUIWIRCD &9
DB HEAGOD H7E 4T £ NOIETINSACD
X LB HE IYA TIVE SSVUE & TN ISCTO K 61k 'ONNSNG 230N SE X4 AE
e 0N D
20130 73S vl SRS £
SNV ND WAOHS SV LEIDXT 96 NV BLS =3d TVASI0Td CHv V1S T2 Lo
R ML L e 0D LTl
A0 ¥ D 05 KOS TS IS 8 B
LLaA Y 1D TLS M3 INCANS 3ald T2
amst 2o fy
Yo IS WHTNYL 0 Y WO IKIIIM LS MOEE Sy Us A (L
05119 QISKVLI'S 9 TR LHOEM QIS ‘MOHTE SeUS F L5
52170 0Ny 14 154 002 ‘3470 U @ {3
ST T QIIVE IATYANIAAD A (F
251 13 SOMYL OVIE Wi 1O-drS 3 5}
TYND3 CACHaY ATNESY dO BELLLIMNT L S1-HL UMY P01 SELLTYPITAS WRLVAM HE3ANKTH 8 ()
2 DVLSQ HBe 3 1CTvTrL W
B4 W IV (LY ¥3d STLENNANOT T HIW NELAGIY ONNEAOD SONVIA X1 8 {L
@23 TINA NN 52 0 Sebd 1S B
GY2H 299G HL ONY 2Hnd

CUNRT 370 WD L T AT o O S RHI SR gD

UL _PENTA BT
*2uy7A €T FEML DNIINNGE -
“E31G 5T MOLS L

p-3

Tyt
e'd [ o |

eVl T

LT Tea AN SAITT | CERTO MM N1

A4 =20 WIS
iI0ud - SvI3G ONidid JoMHoSIa T .. T
o o ELEE 3 s~
/ 3 A L |

S GO WL
RIS

1 | y

R SATVA WNNOVA [3SVE 134 dIV ._ _ _ \ 7

S g THM d330 o IR Y |i|11.._|..
. viv130 i il e e

— 330 LA TRUS
SEINLS T

ovesaaees ™

QYIS FU=yINOD W

FRELFIR Y

2L 33 TG X e 8 paves
SNLAL G O s NI IAGST T By

SRR

~

e e e T

FEruONT.Y

e S

86

PAGE 154



| Ob-b00-S0IE N J© \\_ﬂc.%g@) 3®§.§9\Q®®

sealeqng juowlebeuey dALTMANNON D o \ s i
pue easy uociedpnipy I ol n\f o R —_
Aajjep adojsjuy il . Pnpanby euoye) =
} 34nbij 810¢ sunr | es1v paeoipnipy Asiien sdomiy [
| wiseg smempunc.s Asyep sdojeiuy -
; seaieqng juawabeueyy D
L
S L i
s . S < S ./.
paJeqng ! * i
Jse3 yinog i
ﬁ:._ i ‘.
\
21 k
g! -
m ! 2P = \
g
.m ' £ - !
g eaieqns Asyen T (X , |
& adojajuy [enusg ; g A |
c . t o e .
i iy % : :
H! =S //‘, \
R . f - \
07 sajebuy-soq 2 > 3 A : > > .o./.,.. —
P = T R R et S e R — ‘n
i : . - ﬂ. ~- hur_so EW! o BaJeqnsg . 11
— aF Nﬂ L) y s v afa adoiaiu a ¢
£ oyeyssaboy o.n NG e DRIV i,
i T 2 : IR e s
- 1 o i A ¥ ;
b SO ..; - ..}
VL R e
_“.”.y. _.n e s
| s weeog
——— —]
) hR: _ 0
k . . N
* e Pl gy _ @
i L

87

PAGE 155



NEW POINT OF EXTRACTION APPLICATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Attach application fee of $350 for review and processing. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster
{Application fee is reduced to $150 for Small Pumper Class members pumping a total of <3 AFY)

Please mall to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: infa(avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with gquestions.

*This form is to be used by applicants with existing production rights to install a new well at a new point of extraction as defined by the
Judgment. Please use the Replacement Well Application if the proposed well will be within 300 feet from on existing well fram which the
rights to produce groundwater originate. If new production rights are being requested, please use the New Production Application.

Date ch 06, 201 Well Site APN# 31065009902

Property Owner/Well Owner Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40, Antelope Valley
Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address_ 1000 S. Fremont Ave, Alhambra, CA 91803
Property Address, if different than Owner’s Address 4820 West Avenue H, Lancaster, CA 93536

Contact Phone Number{626) 300-3350 Contact email_Iduong@dpw.lacounty.gov
Owner’s name as Appears in Antelope Valley Adjudication JudgmentLos Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40
Production Rights as listed in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment 6,789.26 acre-feet/year

Driller information
Drilling Company_To be determined when project is awarded to contractor.

Drilling Company Address
Dritling Company Phone Number Drilling Company email

Existing Well Information, if applicable and if not already provided to the Watermaster Engineer
Will the New Well replace an Existing Well? __NO__ Existing Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y)
Will the New Well be used in order to stop sharing a well? Please provide a copy of the shared well agreement.
Estimated future annual production of the Existing Well once the New Well has been constructed
Will the Existing Well be destroyed? If not, why not?
Existing Well pumping capacity gpm Average annual production from Existing Well acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agricultural, domestic, industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.)

Status (active, inactive)
Existing Well construction date Casing Materials Casing Diameter inches

Surface seal material and depth Screened interval feet below ground surface

Well Depth feet Ground surface elevation feet abave mean sea level

Depth to water feet
Please attach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Report, if available.

Page 1of2 Approved 06/27/18

88

PAGE 156



New Well Information
Will this be a New or Replacement Well? New Distance from Existing Well (please use the New or Replacement
Well Application for Existing Production Rights form if the distance will be within 300 feet)

New Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y) _34.7185823°, -118.2178976"

Use(s) of New Well (agricultural, domestic, Industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.) Special Dstrict

Estimated New Well pumping capacity __1,000 gpm Estimated annual production from New Well 1,200 acre-feet/year
Do other wells exist on this property? _NO_If Yes, Indicate If active, inactive, or abandoned and show on Site Plan

Will a meter be installed on the well at the time of construction? _Y@8_ If not, when will the meter be installed?

Proposed New Well Construction

Please attach a diagram showing proposed well constructlon, including maximum well depth, casing diameter and
matetlals, ground surface elevation, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity, A completed DWR Well
Completion Report Is required to be submitted to the Antelope Valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Site Plan

Please attach an 8%" by 11” paper site plan (legible hand written on Google map acceptable) with a north arrow and
approximate scale to this gpplication showIng: :

1. Locatlon of site features, Including major bulldings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc,

2. Locatlons of proposed well and existing well(s) with dimenslans in feet from wells to nearest cross streets.

Material Injury (written statement not required for Small Pumper Class members requesting a combined total of <3 AFY)

ﬂ Awritten statement describing how the New Polnt of Extraction will not cause Material Injury. Material Injury could be in
the form of significant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels such that neighboring wells are
impacted, 2. Reduction of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5, Depletions of
interconnected surface water such that beneficial uses are impacted, or other adverse physical Impact to the basin or

to another Producer.

Signatures

{ understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certify that the
information given in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
origlnal, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valld, and is affixed with the Intent to be enforceable. |
understand that it is my responsibility, as the well owner, to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes
in the purpose or pumping capacity of this well, from which, Is indicated on this application. | also understand that
additional information may be required if there Is a suspected potentlal for a material injury as defined in the

Judgment. M
Signature of Property Owner/Well Owner, F Date 3// g / 17

Signature of Well Driller e Date

Signature of Consultant/Agent Date
To be completed by the Waterman%‘ ; i
Watermaster Engineer Approval 'M /4 M Date / 4’/ / 7
Watermaster Board Approval ) Date

This application is not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted to
the appropriate well permitting agency (e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the weil
Is to be installed within the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area. :

Page 20f2 Approved 06/27/18

89

PAGE 157



SWVI3Q WLSI03d TEM ONY NOLLD3S TT1am

Y6+ 8 £6-F STTIM "2LIS TTIM

1S3M 133MLS HI0S ANV H INNIAY

TP T 23 AU EFE ST 3 AT

ﬂ'ﬂm.g.ﬁléauig
£9 ]

NOLLONYLISNOD HOH LON
SNYd %06

.n..lL .ﬁ% — nlt

d.lﬂ!-ﬂ.-... L

A L

TYITIA3Y 1 D3m0 4G KELSALGTD
319733 [OY: SIS Gt SNIdw L 30
VAN ¥ ST TS SR 0N DG TIY %
TR e T TR e Gl

AR —p iy Sl

T v 1t 5 Oy T AL YIRS O
AR OIN BelarO? L1 Metaircs CTOADT TTY S2kOnG

SIUON TvH3ANTD

o=
NY1d Tv1S3d3ad T13m

TP oY Brares
DOOCT W R 7

OxCre; 41 < B
ATWTIE L e €47

e A e O
ey
Wi

v
SPULTVAY E3BA0T VTR A ML T L

“TI3M FHL 40 NOILLONALSNOD ONIENA
d3ANIV180 Y1va INFWILHI HIHLO ? ST 1dWVYS ¥3JINTY
D01 YIASAHAOIO D01 NOILYWHOA NO A3SVE JONVHO

01 123reNs 3uv NOIHIH SONILLIS NDISIA TTV 310N . o [/Ll

SIN

3-0 NOILD3S

R
SIN J.nl||
Jiv.L3d 39109
ONISVYO TI3M TWIIdAL
£
. f
3 1o o2
.5 |E.22.
R
BHE
ammwm wmmmwm
LR
378 _mm
i

_
4,__

|
i
_
|

s e

et sy

PRIt Y erh

.l-nﬁumﬂ
hrat B W G A VT
4t e e

T

e

s oy bt v

BT T
T BT S =

ik on B T

[__

e P,

-
f/...|. TR

Aasinzeaten

MDY Y
e

[
——ir

A
s i

90

PAGE 158



NYid 2US

$6-¢ ¢ £6-¥ ST13M ALIS T1EIM
1S3 15224 S HL0S ONY H 3NNIAY

A Y RS ;Ngljﬂgs
20 |

OE=.) SRy WA RO RN O TAOCRLY AOA T SO T iii‘;ﬂ;g
:Q;G.Evﬁ 20 M NOLPS UM SSMYCUOSOV S SN I SHIGNL T DY SIEXL RSN

NV 1d LIS e HELVTIVASM et Mzval Bl o0 BT AeS RLLA
4 2LON NOLLISNNOJNIIRI

oo TR O SRR LTI 201 ) ALY

NOILONYLSNOD dO4 LON
SNV %06

SIN
SIV13a Nisva NOLIN313a

PAGE 159

91

i
i
_?
id
T
&
!
B @eRaQ

res
. T TUC 1 ML TG L YT S
e ]

T PG P B0V AU Wl

L AT e E e T B AL e 0 AN B R
IV IO N DITY N TULITA

2geranct, st LIS ARG WGy GRY LN G-I UL T

JA Ve W WA ZUTCUS LS L

R EnNEAY T

e R e N . SIaE
32 TAC33 TAOYT O A WA SENT e T A1 LA ALAGLE

LM Y DL STV 1 e KO0 ) LT Lidm o)
b S AT T

5
HHSEHLODE -é'l{'J". 7
e

e AT 43 s 43~/

Lﬁdhb...:\“.lilﬂil[t

W @il W

T ol ¥y ™
ety "

DA WS Tl TLOW AO0TE D552 Gl ——te—— Nﬂ \ II =%
Oy P  CRMETEE I ISR PEC SVE W N
roveire IS TS 2 RN U\ EDY
- B VA P
P T | 07 = .1 "ZINOH 3 TvoE

o € FH08d r : iog oo sa=g T
# s.m..,;e iy

LIV OY RO >

BHE

20T (1) A B LGNS M (Y. b TIEUL Ta L TLLITI) T NS FYHED IAEaE

0
|
|

TT YV TIAT GRS TG AT b L s (1)

TSI RY TR ESNGS




SVL30 GNY ‘NOLLO3S NV I

—— s

ONIdid 39HYHOISIA T1am

¥6~¥ 2 £6-% ST1IM ‘3LIS T13IM

1S3M L33:LS HLOS ANV H 3NN3IAY

b=, 2 TWIS

AT § O T S L B G (PR T v
T A TR P AR VXD LT Y O a0

NY1d - STIV130 ONIdId 39UYHISIA T13M

NOLLONELSNOD H0d LON
SNVId %06

B %

SN

3did 3318 OL NOLLOANNOD
J1ivi3adg

M B .-M;N;f.f:! l\\\\\\.

SIN

]

N
15U AT U L.wl_ﬂl. =

s T TI3M d33a
awagsiaLey v iv.i3d
S1N
VLTINS
8Iviad

7§32 NIIDAZLENT D Feld “IN-G ONPDET H7ETH P8 SULONS HSH
2WH G K920 GL Q34275 IR 1VHS §11 653 2L 10 TEVE 3H K

miirﬁmm«»uzd:ﬂu m
SKY 4 NIINYOME 5V LIRTKE 72 WKV CL5 U3d THLSEGEa ONY EVIS 1TV §F
LERA RYhd JIS HEd US07E ASNRRL *0

OND I DE RIS Ad WS e 1)

av W NV CLS Y3d LHD4chS Jar §0

)
S20 12 7BONYL 134 U AT 3UVD 6 m
52172 TNV 3ATYRRTI0 0 14
VO TR T AMNTIG B Y
“9ADE CRASHadV AINZDT £ WALLASNVAL 518l ONY 70 (I SSLYITIAS MaLYW 3134 M0 3 1)
ERUAESERTFELCh S TN O
5447 Y14 ALS 234 ST INMENID TR 2 MM HEL= N ONLINGT ANV 1S X5
9% B1T (MIEINSZ0 Ddd LS Lel
@73 ITDEIT ANy anid (1)

GG ISFE S TS TRTEEE w45 1 3 RO UDOIGNG D

IATVA WNNOVA ZSVET3N HIY

MILUATHRL TIADT
VILovat M4 I SUONACS — — SSTUB LA UL AN
e 3L SUINC 6 b

P TR EATAA L
__..»? YT Y VA e

_ |
_ | o

F*ra A S TR

=210 ' TIVIS
F40Md - STV.13d ONIdid IOIVYHDISIA T13IM

wl'i %J/m !

- v 2
’ H | §
1
~ 40w A D T
FAS S53TNVIS T
‘L 3en: ool Y r
— wﬂmzh ’-
RO —38% @A FLS
SRS - §

VA3 AN I././fl
LT s, Y J

}fﬁfh}ﬂ‘-&%\l&d:n

1955578 Tighs
FUILLS QRY INLIl CRATEEaA0 Y T o Wndnlwnﬁh

o

SR

92

PAGE 160



COb-ooa-gaS NdY J9 HOIFORo T rpeuixavdoy)

7

3MOJIIM

Hhem oo ag

sealeqng Eo.ﬁmu.“u: UALYMANNO YD g :
pue easy uonesipnipy l ey " el
Kajjep onmo_wu:< : Q M.L mU.?I q.ss.umzovrm_se__mo #I..
L s4nbi4 aun 1 o
810¢ sunr | ey psieoipnipy Asyen sdoey [
|
_ uiseq Ja)empunog Aajjen adojaiuy >
“., SESIEqNS Juawebeuey
S | =
" _ pusta
3
- “ -/
L \
= . N
S : ,.,
ol /
Z ,
m«_ Blyann? ..,
[« 3] '
2 \
E! . \
g eajeqns AajeA. @ .
£ , : L
L adojauy |esjuas :
2 -
g ; t R > .
s = g V% ._
! . TN Qunog seeBuysoy AT At T Wik, 3 - .,.._
_tla...l r.Wr , i x— .. huc_._ﬂu : . " .. .....l.?x!!l!lsl;f.i.\,.l,.-«v.qr.......li‘lfn!hrlul.__...-ll.l |||0|L,t_|/w_
m -T%I.. ., ; Kooy na mﬂ-dw + . ..-..r . = a o n ugﬂaﬂ-w ’ a ol i
16T eyepsiboy o= A = adojajuy JsoMm -
L \GA s oF Foy” esieqns .
sBuudg

¥ s

i SN U ojedg
|

| 8 0

—

93

PAGE 161



TODD il

GROUNDWATER

April 4, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: APN# 3105-009-901 and APN# 3105-009-902 Los Angeles County Waterworks District No.
40 New Point of Extraction Well Applications

Watermaster Board:

Todd Groundwater has determined that the above-mentioned New Point of Extraction Well
Applications for an Exhibit 4 Party in the Central Subarea are complete. Los Angeles County
Waterworks District No. 40 would like to construct twa new production wells to an
approximate depth of 500 feet on Avenue H and 50t Street West in Lancaster to optimize the
District’s production capacity. It is anticipated that each well will have a capacity of 1,000 gpm
and each will produce 1,200 AFY.

The new wells appear to be more than 3.5 miles from the nearest agricultural wells and about
2.6 miles from public water supply wells. Assuming a depth of 500 feet, it appears that the new
wells will be screened above deeper clay layers at this location. Given these conditions and the
small number of nearby wells, it is unlikely that use of the new wells will adversely impact the
beneficial uses of existing wells. The new wells will be used to recover the District’s current
groundwater production rights, which have been incorporated into the Native Safe Yield;
accordingly, the new wells do not represent new production and will not create overdraft
conditions in the basin. The proposed wells are within the area of historical subsidence but are
outside of the area where the highest historical subsidence has occurred — which is also an area
with existing District wells. These two new wells allow a re-distribution of production over a
slightly greater area and outside of the concentrated area of historical subsidence, which may
be more beneficial to the basin than using existing wells for the District’s full production rights.

In the absence of a numerical tool to assist with a Material Injury analysis, the above review is a
reasonable approach to assessing potential impacts associated with these wells. Recognizing
that the District will simply be shifting a portion of its annual production (totaled about 17,400
AFY in 2018) to these new wells, Todd Groundwater finds the potential for Material Injury as
defined in the Judgment to be negligible.

Sincerely,

A pl 0 4 Hlarinr

Phyllis Stanin

Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com

94

PAGE 162



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

“To Enrich Lives Through Effective and Caring Service”

900 SOUTH FREMONT AVENUE
. Al HAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91803-1331
MARK PESTRELLA, Director Telephone: (626) 458-5100

http://dpw.lacounty.gov ADDRISS ALL CORRESPONDENCE: TO:
P.O BOX 1460
ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 918021460

IN REPLY PLEASE

REFER TO FILE: WW-3
March 18, 2019

Ms. Phyllis Stanin

Antelope Valley Watermaster
P.O. Box 3025

Quartz Hill, CA 93586

Dear Ms. Stanin:

LOS ANGELES COUNTY WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 40, ANTELOPE VALLEY
APPLICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION
WELLS IN THE ANTELOPE VALLEY

The purpose of this letter is for the Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40,
Antelope Valley (District), to apply for permission to construct and use two new
groundwater extraction wells within the boundaries of the Antelope Valley Groundwater
Basin (Basin). The District's groundwater production from these proposed wells and its
existing wells will not exceed the production rights to which the District is entitied under
the provisions of the Judgment and Physical Solution in the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases (Judgment).

By way of background, the District encompasses roughly 554 square miles of land
located in Northern Los Angeles County, most of which overlays the Basin. The District
has a water supply portfolio consisting of groundwater pumped from the Basin by
approximately 44 District-owned active wells along with purchased imported water from
the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK).

On December 23, 2015, the Court entered the Judgment. Among other things, the
Judgment sets forth the groundwater production rights of the parties to the action and
physical solution to maintain and manage the Basin. The Judgment provides the
District with groundwater production rights, including a nonoverlying right to
6,789 acre-feet/year, the right to produce a percentage of the unused Federal

95

PAGE 163



Ms. Phyllis Stanin
March 18, 2019
Page 2

production right, and imported water return flows. The Judgment also provides the
District with the ability to carry over and store nonproduced groundwater rights as well
as store imported water within the Basin to be produced at a later time. Additionally,
separate and apart from the Judgment, the District and AVEK have a lease agreement
under which AVEK leases a percentage cf its groundwater production rights to the
District.

The District proposes to construct two new groundwater wells on Avenue H and
50th Street West in Lancaster as shown on the enclosed exhibit. The new wells will
optimize the District's capacity to produce its adjudicated groundwater rights by, among
other things, allowing the District to produce its in-lieu rights during dry years and as
needed to maintain system integrity. This will increase water supply reliability and
drought preparedness in the event of an interruption to or reduction of State Water
Project deliveries or any other impacts on imported water conditions. The District is
finalizing the design of the wells and seeks to start construction of the project by
June 2020.

Since the District will continue to produce groundwater within its adjudicated production
rights pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, the new wells will not cause significant or
unreasonable material injury to the Basin or other parties to the Judgment.

Enclosed please find two applicatons and a check in the amount of
$700 for payment of application fees for the new groundwater extraction wells.

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Greg Even, Waterworks Division, at

(626) 300-3302 or geven@dpw.lacounty.gov.

Very truly yours,
MARK PESTRELLA
Director of Pu%
<({‘(;nu:utx RIKI
Assistant Deputy Director

Waterworks Division

SS:ea

hi\wwhome\admin\letters\2018\Ir161 - groundwater extraction wells.doc

Enc.

96
PAGE 164



NEW POINT OF EXTRACTION APPLICATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Attach application fee of $350 for review and processing. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster
{Application fee Is reduced to $150 for Small Pumper Class members pumping a total of <3 AFY)

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

*This form is to be used by applicants with existing production rights to install @ new well at a new point of extraction as defined by the
Judgment. Please use the Replacement Well Application if the proposed well will be within 300 feet from an existing well from which the
rights to produce groundwater originate. If new production rights are being requested, please use the New Produgtion Application.

Date__March 06, 2019 Well Site APN#_3105009901
Property Owner/Well Owner__L0S Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40, Antelope Valley

Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address___1000 S. Fremont Ave, Alhambra, CA 91803
Property Address, if different than Owner’s Address _ 4820 West Avenue H, Lancaster, CA 93536

Contact Phone Number_(626) 300-3350 Contact email_Iduong@dpw.lacounty.gov
Owner’s name as Appears in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment_L0s Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40
Production Rights as listed in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment _6,789.26 acre-feet/year

Driller Information
Driliing Company__T0 be determined when project is awarded to contractor,

Drilling Company Address
Drilling Company Phone Number Drilling Company email

Existing Well Information, if applicable and If not aiready provided to the Watermaster Engineer
Will the New Well replace an Existing Well? __NO _ Existing Well Latitude/Longitude {ar x, y)
Will the New Well be used in order to stop sharing a well? Please provide a copy of the shared well agreement.
Estimated future annual production of the Existing Well once the New Well has been constructed
Will the Existing Well be destroyed? If not, why not?
Existing Well pumping capacity gpm Average annual production from Existing Well acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agricultural, domestic, industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.) :
Status (active, inactive)
Existing Well construction date, Casing Materials Casing Diameter inches
Surface seal material and depth Screened interval feet below ground surface
Well Depth feet Ground surface elevation feet above mean sea level
Depthtowater__ feet

Please attach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Report, if available.

Page 10f2 Approved 06/27/18

97

PAGE 165



New Well information
WIHl this be a New or Replacement Well? New Distance from Existing Well (please use the New or Replacement
Well Application for Existing Production Rights form if the distance will be within 300 feet)

New Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y) 34.7178818°, -118.2193197°

Use(s) of New Well {agricultural, domestic, industrial, municipal, menltoring, etc.) Special District
Estimated New Well pumping capacity __1:000 _gpm Estimated annual production from New Well 1,200 acre-feet/year
Do other wells exist on this property? _No_fYes, Indicate if active, inactive, or abandoned and show on Site Plan

Will a meter be Installed on the well at the time of construction? _Y8S _ If not, when will the meter be Installed?

Proposed New Well Construction

Please attach a diagram showing proposed well construction, including maximum well depth, casing dlameter and
materlals, ground surface elevation, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity. A completed DWR Well
Completion Report is required to be submitted to the Antelope Valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Site Plan

Please attach an 8% by 11” paper site plan (legible hand wiitten on Google map acceptable) with a north arrow and
approximate scale to this application showing:

1. Location of site features, including major bulldings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.

2. Locatlons of proposed well and existing well(s) with dimensions in feet from wells to nearest cross streets,

Material injury {written statement not required for Small Pumper Class members requesting a combined total of <3 AFY)

=) A written statement describing how the New Point of Extraction will not cause Material Injury. Material Injury could be in
the form of significant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels such that neighboring wells are
impacted, 2. Reductlon of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded water quality, 4. Land subsidence, 5. Depletions of
Interconnected surface water such that beneficial uses are impacted, or other adverse physical impact to the basin or
to another Producer.

Signatures

1 understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certify that the
information given In this application Is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
original, electronic, or photocopled, is authorized and valid, and is affixed with the intent to be enfarceable. |
understand that It is my responsibility, as the well owner, to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes
in the purpose or pumping capacity of this well, from which, Is indicated on this application. | also understand that
additional Information may be required if there is a suspected potential for a material injury as defined in the

Judgment. W
Signature of Property Owner/Well Owner, Date 3/ / 3/ /?

[ &4
Signature of Well Driller Date
Signature of Consultant/Agent Date
To be completed by the Watermaster: / Z; =
Watermaster Engineer Approval Date 5 ‘f// 7
Watermaster Board Approval Date

This application Is not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted to
the appropriate well permitting agency (e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the well
Is to be installed within the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area.

Page 2 of 2 Approved 06/27/18

98

PAGE 166



_ |
e
SIVLZA 153034 T13M GNV NOLLD3S T13M “TI3M IHL 40 NOLLONHLSNOD 9NIHNA mﬂwﬁg
E Q3ANIVLE0 VY1va INIWILYId HIHLO B STT1dWVS H3JINDY X
‘rwm_v\ﬂﬂwmmwmwmmh..r_w% ﬁ_,m‘m_\h m_ Mrmb>m>< 901 IVIISAHAOZO 90T NOILYINHO4 NO d3Svd JONYHO W - —
01 123rans Ty NOFHIH SONILLIS NDISTA TV “ILON . e b sy
e rre S 5 i A SR 07 80 A AR | _ 1 T oy
U”.u [ |
NOILONFLSNOD 304 LON TR R RIS n\\_\ b
SNV ld %06 e .
SN |
o v.13d 3dIND 7
ONISYI TT3M TWOldAL

S1a

(3ELON TYHENED

JLnL =2
NV1d W1S303d T1am

PAGE 167

99




R T e e T L T O P ————

Nvd 34US

¥6-% 7 £6-¥ ST13M 3LIS TIIM
1S3IM 133MLS HL0G ANV H 3NNIAVY

SETrPn § i AN SN W T DO,
£ T e 3 NI ) ATTIONY L 4T A

[40] _
NOILONHLSNOD ¥Od LON
SNV 1d %06

ety SN

=)
gz

NOILO3S

SIN

Jiv13d NISvE NOLLN3L3Q

w.v..a._gu. 4

£k U €11 QRN 60 Y0¥ 34T TORBA T Sin @ OO TAWA AT agliira
e S A M S LW SR

QD B DEOY P TS X I

ST ¥ W Da T AT LITIEIATUS Iy 1 S

O = .1 ZINOH FTVDS
Judoud

.« BRT - H FI N I3
JOEIOOEDOACARHADEN § VOYBOD

100

PAGE 168



C ] L I T P
SV.LIA ONV ‘NOUDIS ‘Nvid
ONIdId JTUVHISID TEM
t6 ® €6-v STIIM 'ILIS T1IM

L1S3M L3381 H10S ONV H INNIAY

SR § - LTI BT e D e el T
Weinie S o LRI KTy ) 00 AL

e e

——= =] =

= u2i 39S

NV1d - ST'vi30 ONIdid 398VvHOSIA T1aM

vJ _
NOLLIMMLSNOD d04 LON
SNY1d %06

SIN

3did 13318 01 NOILOINNOD
Q7ivi3a

MA_aNy-L WA
HA7M RO IFNL DHKINCS =
REENSF Y Dl

e

SIN @/\I/

d¥L T1dWVS
47viad

88—

e

)
_

.1@
i

«ur?n...qunwr
DRINOS SO LTI 3
CHARIZE WA TVE 2
Tacdki hnd FAUS AW0 S
NATHIS 0B ALY SAITA TSYITE MY (0 JaY JITRIINON.T
ACET .6 US'AvEL
o3sn Lon 65
Y Le ¥3d BILLYILTN I Dok HOHHD CNNLHY MVETE 19 32A0Ed HSNIZ A50H3 (MY
AH QR 1D O TRAG TS U TS BYIE 37T THL 40 Z5VH 3L RO T 1Y 030yl
HEH UM 0 KR D% 21 WM ZUTUONCD 00S2-0-025E BdA }OHL 4 BVIS Au5uned 6
DME/LL EFaaC) T 40 £ NOESTdnCD

WEVLIO S e e

FHI M NDISAIHE 5 10X 03°M IV QLT &34 TYAS3a3d ONY BYTS T13m
158 NY I (LG 3 N0 LSl

DAZ 2TWT 6 1S Zde IS §

L AVNYIS IS B34 140440 Sdd

._,E.sm>1>w§.7u=
ﬂ.ﬂnwnzﬁmw:?._gumzuk
25113 30RO NO 115 o m

TYNE ALK Sy AINZSY N HELLUNSNIAL SLEL ONY 2 115 3L VR3S MALVM 23134 MO 5

O HY.H0 H34 270GY Tk oL (K,

Bl Y12 QLS &3z 532 INNGNOT TTOG M H LV Y2 L4VOV INIINDD ISR Y5 .2
42D T N SET e 188 (2

AVIH FTETHOTH QN N

b S I 5 ST T P TR WY VI ] [ e e

SIN
o momee s T © FATIVA NNNJVA ASVATIY MV
! T113M d433Q

vviag

()

.Ln [

o =&V Ao

FUH0Ud - STV.LIA ONIdId IOHVHISIF T13M

Az UQEI‘
WE AevareeT

5V OTEE MR
rERAEEY

aean e hewt

[ttt

.‘«} rnrn_:g-ﬂ
Lt »a.—.dLm ‘

WAIG e

P
A

mhatem

Q.
@-H

CI3§30TMHG
TN Sh e CANSSTRGEY | ¥
Tuow

AT BRI

o

&
(01

]

T WA B
=

e T i

Auferd Shye L

/ ETRaan >
ey )
Tyt

s

101

PAGE 169



| OL-b00-S0IE NG F© MQ.%;QQQN\.VN\GE.QQ@%

sealeqng juawsabeuepy
pue easy uonedipnipy
Kajjep adojsuy

L ,—Jm...

} ainbi4

g

San Bernardino Connty

'
)
|
5
i

D,

AALVAATNNOUD A S _ 1 jh
B [N YT bl
L___lalele} —
s < 2 e ) jonpenby BLIOHED) oo
810¢ aunr
ealy pajeoipnipy Aasjjea sdoje)
w uw ]
f| wsea rmempunoin Aayen adojsjuy b
__ seaseqng juawabeuepy D
i : puaba
-jl‘| " v/
eajeqns v ;
)se3 ynos S
Y P - b o3
.t..rE A
LpinE=) q— \
5 = wlrames R \
.. ~ / ".
2 1 1
easeqns Asgea 0 (H :
adojajuy |esusy 3 f,. y
* T -
b - /} /
on sajabuy'soy . a2 W‘NJ
= ...- - - - - v 5 . = e 2 T B 4, |
PN ..,A....S..,u,o wiey et & ¢ " paleqng a2 v “q |
b . 7 ado|ajuy 3sapp !
=3, y
.I\\...I!lr
SN ul 81eog
—— __—|
i 48 0
[
n J z
BLIE LU Plag gy «

102

PAGE 170



NEW POINT OF EXTRACTION APPLICATION*
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Attach application fee of $350 for review and processing. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster
(Application fee is reduced to $150 for Small Pumper Class members pumping a total of <3 AFY)

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

*This form is to be used by applicants with existing production rights to install a new well at a new point of extraction as defined by the
Judgment. Please use the Replacement Well Application If the proposed well will be within 300 feet from an existing well from which the
rights to produce groundwater originate. If new production rights are being requested, please use the New Production Application,

Date__March 06, 2019 well Site APN# 3105009902 B
Property Owner/Well Owner Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40, Antelope Valley

Property Owner/Well Owner Mailing Address_ 1000 S. Fremont Ave, Alhambra, CA 91803
Property Address, if different than Owner’s Address 4820 West Avenue H, Lancaster, CA 93536

Contact Phone Number{626) 300-3350 Contact email_lduong@dpw.lacounty.gov
Owner’s name as Appears in Antelope Valley Adjudication JudgmentLos Angeles County Waterworks District No. 40
Production Rights as listed in Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment 6,789.26 acre-feet/year

Drilter Information
Drilling Company_To be determined when project is awarded to contractor.

Drilling Company Address
Drilling Company Phone Number Drilling Company email

Existing Well Information, if applicable and if not already provided to the Watermaster Engineer
Will the New Well replace an Existing Well? __NO__ Existing Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, y)
Will the New Well be used in order to stop sharing a well? Please provide a copy of the shared well agreement.
Estimated future annual production of the Existing Well once the New Well has been constructed
Will the Existing Well be destroyed? If not, why not?
Existing Well pumping capacity gpm Average annual production from Existing Well acre-feet/year
Use(s) of the Existing Well (agricultural, domestic, industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.)

Status (active, inactive)

Existing Well construction date Casing Materials Casing Diameter inches
Surface seal material and depth Screened interval feet below ground surface
Well Depth feet Ground surface elevation feet ahove mean sea level

Depth to water feet
Please attach a copy of the DWR Well Completion Report, if available,

Page 1 of 2 Approved 06/27/18

103

PAGE 171



New Well Information
Wil this be a New or Replacement Well? New Distance from Existing Well (please use the New or Replacement
Well Application for Existing Production Rights form if the distance will be within 300 feet)

New Well Latitude/Longitude (or x, Y) 34.7185823°, -118.21 78976°

Usels) of New Well (agricultural, domestic, Industrial, municipal, monitoring, etc.) _Special District
Estimated New Well pumping capacity 1,000 gpm Estimated annual producton from New Well 1,200 acre-feet/year
Do other wells exist on this property? _No_f Yes, Indicate if active, inactive, or abandoned and show on Site Plan

Will a meter be Installed on the well at the time of construction? _Ye8 [f not, when will the meter be installed?

Proposed New Well Construction

Please attach a diagram showing proposed well construction, Including maximum well depth, casing diameter and
materlals, ground surface elevation, screen intervals, and estimated pumping capacity. A completed DWR Well
Completion Report Is required to be submitted to the Antelope Valley Watermaster upon completion of well.

Site Plan

please attach an 84" by 11" paper site plan (leglble hand written on Google map acceptable) with a north arrow and
approximate scale to this application showlng:

1. Locatlon of site features, including major buildings, landscaped areas, all existing wells, roads, etc.

2. Locatlons of proposed well and existing well(s) with dimensions In feet from wells to nearest cross streets,

Materla! Injury (written statement not required for Small Pumper Class members requesting a combined total of <3 AFY)

‘ Awritten statement describing how the New point of Extraction will not cause Material Injury. Material Injury could be in
the form of signlficant and unreasonable 1. Chronic lowering of groundwater levels such that neighboring wells are
Impacted, 2. Reductlon of groundwater storage, 3. Degraded water quality, 4. Land subsldence, 5. Depletions of
interconnected surface water such that beneficlal uses are impacted, or other adverse physical impact to the basin or
to another Producer.

Signatures

{ understand and agree to ablde by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. | certlfy that the
information given In this application is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature below, whether
original, electronic, or photocopled, Is authorized and valid, and is affixed with the Intent to be enforceable. |
understand that it Is my responsibility, as the well owner, to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes
in the purpose or pumping capacity of this well, from which, is indicated on this application. | also understand that
additional Information may be regquired If there Isa suspected potential for a material injury as defined in the

Judgment. M
signature of Property Owner/Well Owner ) Date 3/18 / /7_

Z

Signature of Well Driller Date

Signature of Consultant/Agent Date
To be completed by the Watarman% : o
Watermaster Engineer Approval r,&éu-) ,d M Date / 4// i
Watermaster Board Approval ) Date

This application s not for a well construction permit; a completed and approved application must be submitted to
the appropriate well permitting agency (e.g., Kern or Los Angeles Counties) for a well construction permit, if the well
is to be installed within the Antelope Valley Adjudicated Area. .

page 20f2 Approved 06/27/18

104

PAGE 172



PAGE 173

105

Y EEECr eI " e ————— —
— o B
SW.130 VISICI4 TEM ANV NOLLOZS TEM “T13M 3HL 40 NOILLONALSNOD ONMNG .
$6-¢ 9 £6-b S1TIM 'ALIS T1aIM G3NIV180 Viva INSWILY3d H3HLO0 ¥ ST 1dINVS Y3HINoV 00 NOLDOJS
1SIM 1330S HLOS ONY H IANIAY _ 9071 WIISAHAOIO 9071 NOLLYWHO4 NO a3sva JONYHI — o
_ aa!i-.......i..:ii_.“_.!.a.. 0L 123rans Jxv NOIH3H SONILLIS NDIS3A 1Y *F10N. R [|] emp i
[N S 7 LS TS B D AT = (N it n//_ I — . T —=
0] e men
NOLLONHLSNOD HOH LON rmamT TSR ||
SNYd %06 R il
e L — I =
R s s RABRERASE SR RCAEGELNE]
EESTERRRE _EmREREans | SNISVO THEM TVOIdAL
T T T T R A I e AW T
AR LT e e S 7 4 AT e KD s T T a i
B T T 3G LTS Tt H 5
oo iyt e 3SR i o
:$ON WHINSS i i
[z |4
v =2 s | &
NY1d Tv1S3Ad3d T13m
o - —
Tl et O T | = L
Iluh(..-.n.‘[ 1L -H\H . = _ 1 T ¢
FETTLL W s S =
i ST e S T
] T 3
| o : H
o e e it
LN a
b kel 1 .___//.r.llm.u..m.ﬁd_u
cwu s . ¢ e Ll 7
O F T SnRO! LY AN Y e TS
"34 Servrast Doy e
il N e e ‘
T Ve Trl ) I
* TR LGN BTt
*, ‘u.lvlﬁua‘ﬁ
Blaww o SCLLITIOOT
ol Rt
YT T T L
s e
SIN
el
i3t
| <32
"
 }
/ o TCRA




7 v am | mobwese ain | soeees w24 Droke

i

NYd 3US

$6-¥ 2 £6-F ST13M '3LS T13M

1S3IM 133HLS HLI0S ONV H ANNIAY

NOILONY1ISNOD ¥0O4d LON
SNV1d %06

51K
qVL3a NISYE NOLN3LIA

i AU R In AT ANE T 4 FRTNEDY: AL T 3T v
G PO RTINS N U]

I N N G
290 3 LY DT Vem w o LaeTEIE 1 (D

1 WO £ QEIT v 8 M wWDE 2 (O

BT TRESTTA NV S0 PSR S

LE=. .
NY1d 3LIS
- = ~

@.\“ <@

el il
T o T

@) Tlean
0% =} ZIYOH :FT¥IS

TI08d

106

PAGE 174



T B e T Do O e ) B —
5TY.L3A ONY 'NOLLIIS 'NYId

ONIdid 3OUVHOSIA T13m

¥6-t ® €6-F ST1IM 'ALS T1aM

1S3M LA3HLS HL0S ANY H 3NNIAY

T8 I (O LI DD TTTRRAY BT 2 ALOETY

LTV § e AT BT D L otk v

NOLLONYLSNOD ¥Od LON
SNV1d %06

SIN

A =2/ FTWDS
NV1d - STIV130 ONidld 30AvHOSIQ T13M

e BT AU I ANDA
;T Els semevIs 2

i
3did 13348 0L NOILLOINNOD |
2v13ag *

SiN

IATVA INNNDVA [B3SVIIIY WiV
T1EIM 4330
v vi3d

SIN @ﬁ
dvl NdWVS

dvL3a 5
& TFVRA. gt

o3l

qu&Zqunmrﬁ
ur_r:.vuu:ﬁz_u.»m
GAADDZ "IVIVA T L

TN z9d GRSAYI T

NTIHOS HNE HLW, IATYAISTTTRR 97 LEed [ BY STV ARG 2

JADATI 6 IS AT 2

cIsn_on

SNV 3d HOUVALING A 3xkz AINIS (NS T YURTY 12 JUADod KR 1N AOUAT IO v

244 O MAD 04 G2 TE 73 THIZ BVIS "S5 L 10 25V L HONE £ LY 130V1d
HETW TAlM G X 66 X B R 9 MUM ZUTNDNCO (ORZ7IOTRE e LHIDU & YOS IIDINAG ED

YIS WI2A0D L 40 E NIISSTIITII

AT 1IN AT IAVATVE 3R7RA e TN 350 11084 BRHS E ¥IOrY T BT R

SN Low %
BI¥130 375 &9l SNFAWS

ERVL WO ST O A LA SR LR WA TSR DY YIS TIAY,
L WA R R WIS AR

DN ¥ WD OV KO “ddtd US A

L4 R L MO L S D

o= ins

3L 10 Q3TN IS ¥ WD LFGEM SIS MOETZSpTUS.E

T DTNV 0 ! T JHTUAUDLE MOTTE S OLES

YOI ALNCrad ATNISY B MALUMSNEIL S| ML GNY VIR SEUTVDEHS ¥V 815 MO
57Vi20 d34 13TV -1
304 ANV (LS M3y S0 ORNAT 2D TTRDS S MU MEL4Y0V SNTHNC0 39NV X614 .2 G
JV NI 1IVA MA ST 3d4d LE 3 w
NI ICANMOTLY OMY ATt

GRS e S0 ST WIELIW O S II0R ROOGIETY

= 20 3TVIS

AT BN
=

f-

1

FH0¥d - STiv.L3A ONIdid JOAVHOSIA TI3IM T

AV EETRE ao.ﬁl/_
..,;...-.._?nll/._

PR .i

IR VILLNTT RO
TRARAGE

= .

.
0y

1

MG Bk

e o

NI/ _
L ! ____ _
o1 AT Sae Rt | BEAVEIAL TV AE

/

f— . N _-
v VTR PR e

T T
SO LI QNY DN TNIGYD-37

WETLE: =

>

Tl

e e

107

PAGE 175



COb-b00-GAC NdH 49 UOIFT20] 73U Xavddy)

W s

W
TV

o oy By kS

by

sealeqng juswebeueyy HOLVAAANOOY O e g - T
pue easy uonesipnipy L Felatey - SRS
K3|jep adopjuy - RN AU_LI __ PNpanby BILIOYIED =
ainby {
b ' 810¢ 8unr | esry paeapnipy Asjjep edojewy []
._F uiseg 19)empunois) Aejiea edojBuy w
... seaseqng juswebeuew [
= puabsy
- ../.
X ealeqng . N E
- 9 segynog < %
iy = == ...
spd \
>t Y N
€ i . s .
m y i r_._tﬂ..... . \
gl A, ] '
gi : )
B! 4 e N \
g: easeqns AajeA @ v A .
T adojajuy |enuag =
o
8i J t e W
' . - . - \
.“ ' ) ..F__._o..o.réﬁm:(\m.o._ = ,..DIIFP ’ ¢ \
e o i R ... : S
H SRR < - P SR T N Awnog ealeqng o "
| g easeqng N . .
w = - oyeqsisboy ..h.o. 2'e 5 adojajuy 3s9M & .
A”_' : \r* -.. . ..._. & 74 .
:..w..ﬁ«... H s % A .
1 ' SA|IN | oleag

l——_—]
8 0

T -

-‘—z-——

108

PAGE 176



Regular Meeting
April 24,2019

Resolution No. R-19-09

Transfer Applications
109

PAGE 177



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-09

APPROVING APPLICATIONS FOR TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF
THE JUDGMENT; ATTACHED EXHIBIT A

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, a process for considering and approving applications for transfers is set
forth in the Judgment and in the Rules and Regulations relating to transfers contained in the
Memorandum from Todd Groundwater to the Watermaster Board dated May 14, 2018 and
unanimously adopted by the Board pursuant to Resolution No. R-18-19; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Engineer is authorized under the Judgment to recommend
to the Watermaster Board that applications for transfers be denied or approved and that approval
may be pursuant to certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Judgment, the Watermaster Engineer is required
to make certain findings and to consider, investigate and recommend to the Watermaster Board
denial or approval, or approval with certain conditions, of these applications consistent with the

terms of the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Engineer has reviewed all the applications listed on
attached Exhibit A and has made the appropriate findings that all conditions for transfers under
the Judgment and the Rules and Regulations have been satisfied, and that no Material Injury will
result from the proposed transfers; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster Board has considered and adopts the findings and
recommendations of the Watermaster Engineer and is prepared to approve the applications listed
on Exhibit A pursuant to any conditions recommended by the Watermaster Engineer and so

noted on Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watermaster Board unanimously
approves the applications for transfers listed on attached Exhibit A to this Resolution as being
consistent with the terms of the Judgment and applicable Rules and Regulations.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-09 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

110
PAGE 178



Exhibit A Attachment to

Resolution No. R-19-09

Approving Applications for Transfers

Pursuant to the Terms of the Judgment

» Parcels Water
Original Type of | Amount | Original Parcel(s) .
Proglllcer Rt Transfer | (AFY) (APN#) Tm”fe"e‘d 0
(APN#)
One-Time 3220-006-097 3005-004-081
Craig and Marta | Antelope Valley | Transfer 400 3384-001-001 3005-003-028
Van Dam Country Club of 2018 3384-001-003 3005-003-028
Carryover 3005-003-029

111

PAGE 179




TODD Il

GROUNDWATER

April 2, 2019

Robert Parris, Chair
Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Van Dam to Antelope Valley Country Club Transfer

Watermaster Board:

Todd Groundwater finds that the attached application for a one-time transfer of 400 AF from
Craig and Marta Van Dam to the Antelope Valley Country Club is complete. At the end of 2018,
the Van Dams had 922.2 AF of Carry Over water.

Recognizing that this is a one-time transfer within the Central Antelope Valley Subarea and that
this water will likely be used by the Antelope Valley Country Club to offset replacement water
assessments, Todd Groundwater finds the potential for Material Injury as defined in the
Judgment negligible.

Sincerely,

Al & Hrtn
Phyllis Stanin
Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com

112

PAGE 180



TRANSFER REQUEST FORM
ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

Please include an application fee according to the fee schedule posted on the Watermaster website:
https://avwatermaster.net. Make check out to: Antelope Valley Watermaster

Mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to: info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions. Tronsfer Requests review could take up to 60 days.

PERMANENT TRANSFER? __ Yes orNo or TEMPORARY/ONE-TIME TRANSFER? ﬁ'@or No

o

IF TRANSFER DUE TO CHANGE IN LAND OWNERSHIP, PLEASE ATTACH DEED AS PROOF OF SALE OR A PRELIMINARY TITLE

REPORT
Date Requested__March 3. 2019 Amount Requested ___ 400 AF Carryover acre-feet

If Temporary, Calendar Year(s) to be Used 10 year period starting in 2019

Which Party will be paying the annual Administrative Assessment(s) for the transfe

rred water? /A - Carryover

Is either Party a member of the Antelope Valley United Mutuals Group? Yes or No

TRANSFER FROM (SELLER/TRANSFEROR):

Name Craig & Marta Van Dam street Address 7316 W Avenue D-8

City Lancaster State Ca Zip Code 93536

Phone email avfarming@yahoo.com

APN#(s) where transfer originates (i.e., production well Jocation(s))

3220-006-097, 3384-001-001, 3384-001-003,

H 3220-006-097, 3384-001-00 001
APN#(s) (or water supply service area) where groundwater was used 7, 3384-001-001, 3384-001-003,

TRANSFER TO (BUYER/TRANSFEREE):

Name Antelope Va"ey Counw Club Street Address 39800 Country Club Drlve
City Palmdale State CA Zip Code 93551
Phone (661) 947-3142 email deanavcc@gmail.com

Note: Legal notices under the Judgment will be sent to the above email address. You are required to keep this
information up to date. Please notify the Watermaster of any changes.

APN#(s) (or water supply service area) where transfer will be pumped and used
3005-004-081, 3005-003-026, 3005-003-027, 3005-003-028, 3005-003-029

Antelope Valley Country Club

Purpose of Transfer:
O Permanent Transfer resulting from Property Sale/Transfer [PLEASE ATTACH DEED OR PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT]

O Additional Source of Water
@ Other, explain 400 AF of 2018's Carryover Water

Water is to be Transferred from/to: (transferred water retains its original water type):

0 Current Year Production Right: amount acre-feet
[A Carry Over Water: amount 9222 f.axm\cﬁb\e,} acre-feet
O Storage: amount acre-feet
O Other, explain

(Transferred water retains its original water type —e.g., transferred Carry Over Water remains Carry Over water)

Page 1 of 2 Approved 02/27/19

113

PAGE 181



WATER QUALITY AND WATER LEVELS (not required if transfer is in assaciation of change of land ownership)

Are Parties aware of any water quality is uesﬁ'neatfixist in either the area transferred from or to? __Yes oy/ :;2

If yes, please explain: 2ed aQrtne ey A ml U remt

Please provide groundwater elevations in the areas affected by the transfer.

Are Parties aware of any water level issues that exist in either the area transferred from or to? __ Yes orfflo/
If yes, please explain:

MAPS

ﬂ Please include a map of the area where the water was used by the Transferor and a map of the area where the water is
intended to be used by the Transferee. Include locations of production facilities involved in or affected by the Transfer. This
map can include all possible locations of past source and use and future source and use.

SECURITY INTEREST OR LIENHOLDERS

For Permanent Transfers, please provide a list of all parties with a recorded security interest, deed of trust or a lien in such
real property or in crops growing or to be grown thereon, and attach copies of written notices to such parties and copies of

return receipts.

The transfer shall be conditioned upon:

1. Transferee shall succeed to the right of Transferor under the terms of the Judgment.

2. Transferee shall only use Transferred waters for reasonable and beneficial uses.

3. Any Transferee not already a Party to the Judgment must intervene and become a Party to the Judgment.
4. Al applicable assessments (Administrative and Balance) and transfer fees are paid in full.
5

If the Watermaster determines that the transfer has resulted in a material injury, the parties will be required
to work with the Watermaster Board to mitigate that material injury.

6. For Permanent Transfers, the Parties agree to duly record in the office of the appropriate County Recorder a
document reflecting the Permanent Transfer reflected in this Transfer Form.

SIGNATURES

| understand and agree to abide by the terms of the Antelope Valley Adjudication Judgment. I certify that the
information provided on this Transfer Request Form is correct to the best of my knowledge and that the signature
below, whether original, electronic, or photocopied, is authorized and valid, and is affixed with the intent to be
enforceable. 1 understand that it is my responsibility to notify the Antelope Valley Watermaster of any changes in any
of the information provided on this form within 15 days. I also understand that additional information may be

required if there is a slm/ﬂe/d‘ﬂﬁentiawwm injury as defined in the Judgment.
Signature of Transfero S ) Clesat) Date - 5 /?

Lo
Signature of Transferee Dﬁ’ | { Date_7—//~/ 7

To be completed by the Watermaster:
Watermaster Engineer Approval Date
Watermaster Board Approval Date
Page 2 of 2 Approved 02/27/19
114

PAGE 182



Transfer from Craig & Marta Van Dam

APN 3220-006-097

APN 3384-001-001

115

PAGE 183



APN 3384-001-003

116

PAGE 184



Transfer to Antelope Valley Country Club
APN 3005-004-081

APN 3005-003-026 APN 3005-003-027

117

PAGE 185



BROOKSIDE LABORATORIES,

**%* WATER ANALYSIS REPORT **

REP Consulting
12380 Duquette Ave NE
Hartville, OH 44632

Submitted By: REP Consulting, Inc.

INC.

File Number:
Date Received: 6/16/2017
Date Reported: 6/19/2017

21016

Lab Number
Sample Location

1518

ANTELOPE VALLEY

Sample Description c.cC.
WELL

pH 8.09
Hardness {(ppm) 131.73
Hardness (grains/gal) 7.70
Conductivity {mmhos/cm) 0.78
Sodium Adsorp. Ratio 3.93
Adjusted SAR 6.64
Adjusted RNa é 36 pHcol 8.0 is neutral,
pHc ‘.7 i o i5ig oy (e N
N esidual Sodium Carbonate (RSC) 3 53 Anything below this is a big depositor.

(ppm) meg/1 lbs/ac in
Calcium (Ca) 45.76 2.28 10.38
Magnesium (Mg) 4.20 0.35 0.95
Potassium (K) 2.10 0.05 0.48
Sodium (Na) <70 103.70 4.51 23.52
Iron (Fe) < 0.10
Total Alkalinity (CaCo03) 147.56 33.47
Carbonate (Cco3) 17.14 0.57 3.89
Bicarbonate (HCO3) 140-180 145.20 2.38 32.93
Hydroxide (OH) marginal 0.00
Chloride (Ccl) 67.40 1.90 15.29
Sulfur as {804) 101.22 2.11 22.96
Salt Concentration (TDS) 496.64 112.64
Boron (B) 0.08 0.02
Cation/Anjion Ratio 1.03

COMMENTS:

The sodium is a little on the high side but

can be controlled with gypsum. The

problem with both greens and fairways is

the potash levels have fallen too low.

Whenever you let the base sauration levels

of sodium exceed potash, the osmotic

pressure causes the moisture to move out

of the plant.

118

Reviewed by: /4_

PAGE 186



Welenco, Inc.

: I L
GU vd — g)a,c/ | Wellbore VideoReport | 4 piision of Water Well Technology, Inc.
Company é&ﬂﬂg_ﬁ)).ﬂ? C(') Job Ticket qu"' Run No. ’
Address ‘Well No. l‘}
City State Zip Survey Date .,7.) 12:
Requested by/Dlh JUJ PO. Well Owner
Copy to ’ Camera CLVE)‘-') \ X3
Reason for Suyvey, C‘ZE,JEBA -TJ“?F A Zero Datum O (‘, l
Operator Mﬁb&ﬁﬁlﬁ Well Depth Vehicle No. '07)
N
Location A V. ( ol Conse C.mmE_T_Clu a)
l i
Casing 1.D. at Surface A4 LD. Reference ,_mJ_QE(I Build—UpM&ﬁAﬁ-__
TRUE
SELECTED WELLBORE SNAPSHOTS DEPTHS WELLBORE/CASING INFORMATION
() ipmm— ), |
. i LYY ¥
Survey Start Time: kv"_],p) e l L .) : s g LE \f?l
Survey End Time: 4oy |5 : b
o 552 [Sidees ; c )
2, 3,0 - ,..—- '
) 55+ |19 u e ERAS -
W8.08039 , —
iz &
O
z\.l(}‘ ;
330 | 5:descan CAsmo.
810 [9descsn Cosie
O |Sidescan Casin
Ao SAmm_Cas-m
0 — .-‘-.- ‘ —
QA8 ST 49
S [}
o | i nlonooowsiensocom el com
-mail; g -mail: dsc ;
WeIen(_?QL’ncf Phone: (gnog 5.9914 Water Well Technology, Inc. Shof,'e; (goo;wg%.?a@gg s
5201 Woodmere Dr. | Fax: (661) 834-2550 119 P.0. Box 519 | Fax: (916) 480-0839
Eniv Naleen M A NEEND PA Pavienabae ]l ia dT94490

Ralkarefiald NfA Q2212 | PA Mantraniar | in #799279

PAGE 187



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-10

2018 Replacement Water Assessment
PWD and LCID

120

PAGE 188



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-10

ADOPTING REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENTS FOR YEAR 2018 FOR
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT AND LITTLEROCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Judgment provides that the Watermaster shall calculate, assess and
collect Replacement Water Assessments pursuant to Section 9.2 of the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster has taken and considered public comment on the issue and
has calculated that a Replacement Water Assessment of $415 an acre foot for Producers within
the service area of the Palmdale Water District, and a Replacement Water Assessment of $415 an
acre foot for Producers within the service area of the Littlerock Irrigation District, are consistent
with the terms of the Judgment and are based on the actual cost of Replacement Water, including
Watermaster spreading costs; and

WHEREAS, these Producers will also be responsible for applicable Administrative
Assessments in addition to a Replacement Water Assessment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wastermaster Board unanimously
adopts a Replacement Water Assessment for Year 2018 in the amount of $415 an acre foot for
Producers within the service area of the Palmdale Water District, and a Replacement Water
Assessment in the amount of $415 an acre foot for Producers within the service area of the

Littlerock Irrigation District.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-10 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

121

PAGE 189



Regular Meeting
April 24,2019

Resolution No. R-19-11
2019 Replacement Water Assessment

122

PAGE 190



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-11
ADOPTING REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENTS FOR YEAR 2019

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment™), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Judgment provides that the Watermaster shall calculate, assess and
collect Replacement Water Assessments pursuant to Section 9.2 of the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster has taken and considered public comment on the issue and
has calculated that a Replacement Water Assessment of $451 an acre foot for Producers within
the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (“AVSWCA”) boundaries, and a
Replacement Water Assessment of $948 an acre foot for Producers outside the AVSWCA
boundaries which is reflective of the proportional share of State Water Project fixed costs
applicable to those Producers outside the AVSWCA boundaries, are consistent with the terms of
the Judgment and are based on the actual cost of Replacement Water, including Watermaster
spreading costs; and

WHEREAS, these Producers will also be responsible for applicable Administrative
Assessments in addition to a Replacement Water Assessment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wastermaster Board unanimously
adopts a Replacement Water Assessment for Year 2019 in the amount of $451 an acre foot for
Producers within the AVSWCA boundaries, and a Replacement Water Assessment in the
amount of $948 an acre foot for Producers outside the AVSWCA boundaries.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-11 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

123

PAGE 191



ANTELOPE VALLEY

STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

Financial Analysis Study for
Replacement Water Assessment

Final Report / March 6, 2019

= RAFTELIS

124

PAGE 192



125

PAGE 193



=~ RAFTELIS

March 6, 2019

Mr. Matthew Knudson

General Manager

Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association
2029 East Avenue Q

Palmdale, CA 93550

Subject: Financial Analysis Study for Replacement Water Assessment
Dear Mr. Knudson,

Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) is pleased to provide this Financial Analysis Study for Replacement
Water Assessment Report (Report) for the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA). The
primary objective of the study was to perform a financial analysis of the imported water costs associated with
AVSWCA'’s groundwater basin recharge, and to develop Replacement Water Assessment fees to be assessed to
property OWRets or agencies outside of AVSWCA's service area.

This Report summarizes the key findings and recommendations related to the financial analysis conducted as part
of the study. It has been a pleasure working with you, and we thank you and other key staff from Antelope Valley-
East Kern Water Agency, Littlerock Creek Irrigation District, and Palmdale Water District for the support
provided during the course of this study.

Sincerely,
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc.

ey
7
\ "“}\ " .,.:;‘{n--_._z‘ w‘__’ﬁw
Sudhir Pardiwala Charles Diamond
Executive Vice President Consultant

445 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 2270
Los Angeles, CA 90071

www.raftelis.com

126

PAGE 194



Table of Contents

INTRODUGTION c.vvooeeeessesesesssos 2248558555555 R R EREE RS 33 4 1
METHODOLOGY 8 ASSUMPTIONS ....ccovvrummmmmamsssmmmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssissss s ssssssesses 1
ANALYSIS & RESULTS ovvevcvoeeeesesseseesssssssssssassasssssssssssst st s s s s 3
R o GO e LR\ = qum———————E R 5
APPENDIX B: SWP FIXED COSTS — LCID ..oormrmrrereeeeserssenssssossrsssssssssrsssssmsssssasamsssasssss s 8
APPENDIX C: SWP FIXED COSTS = PWD .ocuvumnnnimneresssssscssssssssss s s 11
List of Tables

TABLE 1: ANNUAL COST ESCALATION ....cvovveevceesresesesmssssreseassssssssersssssssssssssssmssssssssenessssessies 2
TABLE 2: TOTAL SWP DELIVERIES THROUGH 2017 IN ACRE-FEET .oooocovevmmmmimimmmnesveresssses 2
TABLE 3: PRESENT VALUE OF SWP FIXED COSTS.oooovniimmmiminssissssssssssssssmssnssis s 3
TABLE 4: CALCULATION OF UNIT RATE TO RECOVER SWP FIXED COSTS .ucoourivesssscsseses 3
TABLE §: PROPOSED REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT FOR OUTSIDE USERS.....4

List of Figures
FIGURE 1: PROPOSED REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT FOR OUTSIDE USERS .4

127

PAGE 195



Introduction

The Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association (AVSWCA) is a joint powers authority created in 1999
to optimize the use of water resources and to protect surface water and groundwater storage within the Antelope
Valley. AVSWCA's three member agencies include the Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK),
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District (LCID), and Palmdale Water District (PWD). Each of the member agencies has
a contract with the California Department of Water Resources for entitlement to and delivery of imported water
from the State Water Project (SWP).

The AVSWCA's service area lies within the adjudicated Antelope Valley Groundwater Basin. As part of the
adjudication judgement, the Antelope Valley Watermaster is tasked with determining the amount of imported
Replacement Water from the SWP to be used to recharge the groundwater basin in order to ensure that that the
basin’s Total Safe Yield is not exceeded. Imported SWP water to be utilized as Replacement Water will be
purchased from AVSWCA's member agencies or other entities. AVSCWA is therefore interested in determining
the per acre-foot (AF) cost for Replacement Water Assessments to be charged to groundwater producers within
and surrounding its service area who do not have any entitlement in the SWP or rights in the Groundwater Basin.

Property owners subject to the proposed Replacement Water Assessments that reside within the service areas of
AVSCWA'’s three member agencies contribute to the recovery of SWP capital costs through property taxes.
However, property owners outside of the three member agencies’ service areas (herein referred to as “Qutside
Users”) do not own any entitlement rights and do not contribute to SWP costs. Therefore, it is appropriate for
Replacement Water Assessments to be charged to Outside Users who are not SWP members or own rights in the
Groundwater Basin. Although AVSWCA has preliminarily set the Replacement Water Assessment fee for
groundwater users within its member agencies’ service areas at $415 per acre-foot for 2018, Replacement Water
Assessment fees for Outside Users have to be developed.

The AVSWCA engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (Raftelis) in 2018 to conduct a Financial Analysis
Study for Replacement Water Assessment (Study). The primary objective of the Study was to conduct financial
analyses necessary to develop the proposed Replacement Water Assessments for Outside Users related to
AVSWCA'’s groundwater recharge activities. This Financial Analysis Study for Replacement Water Assessment
Report (Report) details the analysis performed by Raftelis as well as all results and recommendations.

Methodology & Assumptions

METHODOLOGY

Based on discussions with staff from each of AVSWCA’s member agencies, Raftelis recommends establishing
Replacement Water Assessment fees for Outside Users based on fixed cost payments made by each member
agency to the California Department of Water Resources for the importation of SWP water as well as the variable
cost associated with delivering Replacement Water. The member agencies and the property owners within their
service areas continue to fund the fixed costs associated with importing SWP water. Therefore, if any SWP water
entitlement of the three member agencies is utilized as Replacement Water by Outside Users, it is reasonable and
equitable for the Outside Users to pay a Replacement Water Assessment based in part on the investments of the
SWP members. AVSWCA’s member agencies have been paying the capital costs of the SWP since the 1960s. The
present value of those investments in the SWP should be accounted for in determining a fair price for the
Replacement Water,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS STUDY FOR REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT 1
128

PAGE 196



The primary steps required to calculate the proposed Replacement Water Assessment to charge to Outside Users
are outlined below:

| Calculate the unit rate designed to recover SWP fixed costs:

a) Determine the present value of SWP fixed costs through 2017 (delivery data, used in the analysis,
was available through 2017) for all three member agencies as defined in Tables A, C, D, E,F, and
G of each member agencies’ water supply contract with the California Department of Water
Resources. The SWP fixed costs included are the Capital Cost Component of the Transportation
Charge, the Minimum OMP&R Component of the Transportation Charge, Delta Water Charges,
Water System Revenue Bond Surcharge and Off-Aqueduct Power Facilities costs. The capital
costs in each year is then converted to 2018 dollars using an average cost escalation factor of 3.9
percent which is equal to the average annual increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) between
1962 and 2017 as shown below in Table 1.

Table 1: Annual Cost Escalation

Annpal Cost Escalation  3.90%  Average CFI from 1962 to 2017

b) Calculate the fixed payment per acre-foot by dividing the result from Step la by total SWP
deliveries received through 2017 across all three member agencies. This number represents the
value of the SWP delivered water in dollars per acre-foot. This would represent the approximate
value of purchasing SWP water entitlement and the corresponding deliveries.

7 Calculate the unit rate designed to recover variable water costs:
a) Take the existing Untreated Water Availability Charge rate in dollars per acre-foot for agricultural
water delivered under terms of water service agreements through AVEK-owned facilities and
adjust to account for 10% water loss due to leakage.

3 Add the SWP fixed cost unit rate from Step 1 and the variable cost unit rate from Step 2 to determine the
Replacement Water Assessment for Outside Users to be charged by AVSWCA.

The following key inputs were utilized to calculate the proposed Water Replacement Assessment fees presented in
this Report. Firstly, total SWP deliveries through 2017 to each member agency are shown below in Table 2.
AVEK and LCID first began receiving SWP water in 1972, while PWD began receiving SWP water in 1985.
Information on SWP deliveries was provided to Raftelis by member agency staff.

Table 2: Total SWP Deliveries through 2017 in Acre-Feet

Member Agency SWP Decliveries

AVEK 2,242,419 AF
LCID 13,310 AF
PWD 338,659 AF

2 ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION
129

PAGE 197



Analysis & Results

This section outlines the calculation of the proposed Replacement Water Assessment for AVSWCA. Table 3 below
shows the determination of the present value of total annual SWP fixed cost payments for each member agency
through 2017. As stated previously, SWP fixed costs included in this analysis are the Capital Cost Component of
the Transportation Charge, the Minimum OMP&R Component of the Transportation Charge, Delta Water
Charges, Water System Revenue Bond Surcharges, and Off-Aqueduct Power Facilities costs. Each of these annual
costs in nominal USD are contained in Tables A, C, D, E, F, and G of each member agency’s Water Supply
Contract with the California Department of Water Resources. Raftelis then converted these costs into 2018 USD
assuming annual cost escalation of 3.90% (as shown previously in Table 1). Table 3 below shows a summary of
total SWP fixed cost payments through 2017 for each member agency in both nominal and 2018 USD. Please refer
to Appendices A, B, and C for detailed SWP fixed costs by year and category for AVEK, LCID, and PWD
respectively.

Table 3: Present Value of SWP Fixed Costs

Present Value of

Total SWP Fixed Total SWP Fixed
Cost Payments Cost Payments
Member Agency (Nominal) (2018 USD)

AVEK $518,309,936. $1,110,446,654
LCID $8,009,081 $17,901,835
PWD $77,203,475 $160,873,533

e $602,520,492 $1,289,222,022

Table 4 below shows the development of SWP fixed cost payments per acre-foot of delivery for AVSWCA's
member agencies. The present value of total SWP fixed cost payments (from Table 3) is simply divided by the
SWP entitlements in acre-feet (from Table 2) to arrive at unit cost per acre-foot. This result represents the unit rate
to recover SWP fixed costs as described previously in Step 1b on page 7. The SWP fixed cost unit rate constitutes
the first of two rate components used to determine the proposed Replacement Water Assessment.

Table 4: Calculation of Unit Rate to Recover SWP Fixed Costs

Mline | Deseription.________________|__Amount___L__Notee/Source_J

1  Present Value of Total SWP Fixed Cost Payments $1,289,222,022 Table 3
2 Total SWP Deliveries 2,594,388 AF Table 2

| 3 | SWP Fixed Cost Unit Rate $496.93 / AT | = [Line 1] / [Line 2]

The second of the two rate components used to determine the proposed Replacement Water Assessment is the
variable cost unit rate. This unit rate is designed to recover the variable cost of Replacement Water and is
determined by taking the 2019 Untreated Water Availability Charge rate of $406 per AF for agricultural water
delivered under terms of water service agreements through AVEK-owned facilities and adjusting to account for
an assumed 10% of water loss due to the recharge process. This calculation is shown in Equation 1 below.

Equation 1: Variable Cost Unit Rate 5408y AF $451.11/AF
Va =——— = .
qua 100% — 10%

FINANGIAL ANALYSIS STUDY FOR REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT 3

130

PAGE 198



The proposed Replacement Water Assessment for Outside Users is determined by simply adding the SWP fixed
cost unit rate (from Line 3 in Table 4) to the variable cost unit rate shown in Equation 1. The proposed
Replacement Water Assessments for Outside is shown below in Table 5.

Table 5: Proposed Replacement Water Assessment for Qutside Users

1 SWP Fixed Cost Unit Rate $496.93 / AF Table 4
2 Variable Cost Unit Rate $451.11 / AF  Equation 1

Figure 1 shows the proposed Replacement Water Assessment per acre-foot, as determined above in Table 5. The
proposed Replacement Water Assessment of $948.04 per acre-foot is split relatively evenly between the SWP fixed
cost unit rate (52.4%) and variable cost unit rate (47.6%).

acement Water Assessment

Proposed Repl

Figure 1: Proposed Replacement Water Assessment for Outside Users

Replacement Water Assessment for Outside Users {$/AF)
948.04

$1,000
$900

$700

5500

5300

$200
$100

Total

W SWP Fixed Cost Unit Rate W Variable Cost Unit Rate

4 ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

131

PAGE 199



APPENDIX A: SWP FIXED COSTS - AVEK

132

PAGE 200



Tables A,C,D,E,F,and G
of the
Water Supply Contract
between
The State of California
Department of Water Resources
ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY
(In dollars excep! w here olherw ise noted)
Transportation Charge
Capital Costs (Table D)
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System
Calendar | Paymentof |Annualinterest| Component | Delta Water | Revenue Bond Off-Aquaduct
Year Principal Payment {Table E& G) Charges Surcharge |Power Facilitles ||
1960 - - - - -
1961 - - - - -
1962 = - =
1963 3,658 46,478 50,132 411,121
1964 7,020 75,472 - - - 82,492 651,106
1965 13,398 47,551 - . 60,948 463,010
1966 24,589 178,207 - 202,796 1,482,750
1967 47,671 250,086 - - - - 297,737 2,005,201
1968 77871 591,387 114,164 - - 783,222 5,304,717
1969 114,658 867,559 88,040 - 1,070,257 6,976,696
1970 152,774 1,166,568 135,082 - - - 1,454,422 9,125,081
1971 188,305 1,053,317 186,373 - 1,428,085 8,623,524
1972 211,795 1,406,105 377,265 160,756 - 2,155,921 12,629,912
1973 227,084 1,734,633 461,155 222,207 2,645,079 14,795,704
1974 239,569 1,690,415 164,921 270,090 - - 2,373,995 12,780,972
1975 253,219 1,507,558 574,928 319,822 - 2,655,527 13,760,026
1976 266,367 1,481,561 405,268 431,018 - - 2,584,214 12,887,880
1977 280,012 1,476,986 838,666 469,922 - 2,865,586 13,754,693
1978 294,057 1,496,160 693,608 600,180 . - 3,084,011 14,247,472
1979 309,317 1,480,783 712,340 720,173 - 3,222,613 14,328,955
1980 325,592 1,477,558 1,000,550 857,818 - 3,861,518 15,669,386
1881 351,120 2,268,108 733,695 1,355,100 - . 4,708,024 19,391,813
1982 366,401 938,765 1,436,719 1,651,434 - 4,203,319 17,019,738
1983 392,086 1,617,658 2,407,048 1,110,994 1,083,881 6,611,667 25,226,382
1984 421,808 2,625,413 2,004,478 450,405 - 2,499,848 8,001,952 29,384,923
1985 449,800 1,790,324 1,944,232 565,881 3,749,257 8,489,494 30,040,430
1986 475,597 1,745,690 2,206,227 635,066 - 3,169,857 8,222,437 27,970,361
1987 502,402 1,782,829 2,533,025 652,450 - 3,167,759 8,838,555 28,282,844
1988 527,761 1,813,260 2,193438 711,641 64,268 2,686,113 7,998,479 25,204,253
1989 553,780 1,824,886 3,103,094 2,083,593 205,068 2,357,669 10,218,490 30,991,144
1990 586,519 1,815,427 1,719,784 2,207,667 185,010 2,528,625 9,043,032 26,396,686
6 ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

133

PAGE 201




Tables A, C,D,E,F,and G

of the

Water Supply Contract

between

The State of California
Department of Water Resources
ANTELOPE VALLEY-EAST KERN WATER AGENCY

(in dollars excep! w here otherw ise noled)

Transportation Charge
Capital Costs (Table D) '
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System
Calendar | Paymentof |Annualinterest| Component | Dela Water | Revenue Bond | Off-Aquaduct

Year Principal Payment {Table E & G) Charges Surcharge |Power Facllities

1991 618,476 1,785,880 2,644,074 2454878 296,854 1,048414 8,848,376 24,858,983
1992 653,283 1,773,406 2,098,849 2,804,895 402,015 2,760,199 11,392,447 30,806,003
1993 688,496 1,666,608 2,667,884 2,811,318 424,871 3,560,487 11,818,764 30,758,188
1994 725604 1,639,187 2,822,014 2,694,116 424023 3,963,982 12,368,823 30,081,885
1995 763,215 1,652,147 3,088,320 2,883,156 500,084 4,324,009 13,210,831 31,848,649
1996 802,713 1,565,704 3,333,727 2,834,460 606,388 3,572,858 12,715,848 29,504,440
1997 842,729 1,624,187 3,322,103 3,133,957 626,151 3,411,379 12,860,506 28,943,327
1998 886,136 1,605,665 3,270,632 3,155,093 602,091 3,977,988 13,407,605 29,011,332
1999 929,568 1,693,859 4,080,298 3,262,870 826,108 3,696,973 14,399,668 29,788,448
2000 975,533 1,628,659 4,232,460 3,314,278 840,325 2,372,130 13,363,385 26,607,028
2001 1,022,242 1,512,697 4,040,411 3,315,004 925,355 2,680,895 13,496,604 25,863,580
2002 1,076,342 1,658,005 3,949,101 3,437,351 974,814 1,668,457 12,766,070 23,545,395
2003 1,130,557 1,679,003 5,598,522 3,365,016 1,015,066 1,445,146 14,133,300 25,088,621
2004 1,183,761 1,530,822 2,549,377 3,333,008 1,016,002 1,813,317 11,426 377 19,522,086
2005 1,239,565 1,489,361 2,664,386 3,461,814 959,268 2,047,638 11,862,032 19,505,685
2008 1,300,414 1,427,276 4,436,843 3,507,524 1,038,028 2,845,985 14,556,088 23,037,261
2007 1,366,303 1,373,827 4,762,823 3,855,524 666,215 2,990,954 15,015,646 22,872,574
2008 1,434,181 1,334,202 5,654,630 3,943,904 999 433 3,547,772 16,914,102 24,797,301
2009 1,503,269 1,373,641 3,726,039 4,310,140 1,080,062 3,357,450 16,350,601 21,660,342
2010 1,585,038 1,297,433 5,666,181 5,385,764 1,033,467 4,321,133 19,309,016 26,223,130
2011 1,872,991 1,250,140 4,229 644 5,928,431 1,116,181 4,952,964 10,150,341 25,031,412
2012 1,758,667 1,210,162 4,248,790 6,189,558 1,090,934 5,401,397 18,899,508 25,034,310
2013 1,812,060 1,128,915 6,343,666 6,550,942 1,186,868 2,663,236 19,585,678 23,714,508
2014 1,898,283 1,533,728 5,209,033 6,368,143 1,345,233 1,148,978 17,504,398 20,399,023
2015 1,954,611 1,479,001 9,320,182 8,666,793 1,288,246 530,003 23,238,926 26,065,298
2016 1,978,002 1,495,875 7,174,138 10,359,280 1,287,598 153,406 22,448,297 24,233 408
2017 1,906,927 1,461,139 5,510,660 9,976,357 1,186,800 120,731 20,162,614 20,848,956

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS STUDY FOR REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT 7

134

PAGE 202




APPENDIX B: SWP FIXED COSTS — LCID

135

PAGE 203



Tables A,C,D,E,F,and G

of the

Water Supply Contract

between

The State of California
Department of Water Resources
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District

{in dollars except where otharw Ise noled)

Transportation Charge
Capltal Costs (Table D)
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System
Calendar | Paymentof |Annualinterest| Component | Delta Water | Revenue Bond Oft-Aquaduct

Year Principal Payment (Table E& G) Charges Surcharge |Power Facilities |

1960 . . - 4 - -
1961 = - .

1962 » - - - .
1963 - - - . - - - -
1964 121 1,249 . - 1,370 10,813
1966 227 1,459 - - 1,686 12,808
1966 415 3,633 - . - 4,048 29,597
1967 809 4,875 . - = 5,684 39,909
1968 1,324 10,347 1,810 - - 13,681 91,883
1969 1,966 15,024 1,474 - . 16,464 120,362
1970 2,713 21477 2,255 - - - 26,445 165817
1971 3413 20,231 3,119 = - 26,763 161,609
1972 3,832 27,037 7,548 1,367 - - 39,784 231,21
1973 4,113 31,568 9,681 2,577 - - 47,839 267,597
1974 4,336 32,674 2,049 3721 - 42,780 230,316
1975 4,580 28,656 10,631 4,752 - 48,619 251,927
1976 4818 27,596 6,508 6,269 . - 45,194 295,375
1977 5,063 28,048 11,038 6,861 - 61,010 244,846
1978 5317 28,623 12,422 0,687 - - 56,049 258,934
1979 5,590 28,167 12,223 11,880 - - 57,868 257,307
1980 5,880 28,087 17,113 14,258 . - 65,336 279,604
1981 6,327 42,699 13,032 22,946 85,004 350,118
1982 6,605 17,926 26,245 26,335 - - 77111 305,686
1983 7,051 30,737 41,811 19,002 - 1,250 99,851 380,975
1984 7,664 48,791 34,781 20,719 - 77 111,932 411,039
1985 8,060 33,467 35,571 24,474 - . 101,672 358,994
1986 8,603 32,529 38,788 27,822 - 15,873 123,515 420,162
1987 8,046 33,733 44 658 29,064 - 95,994 212,395 695,387
1988 9,392 33,704 39,276 32,024 2,164 30,395 146,945 463,043
1989 8,846 34,245 56,576 36,301 3,763 50,948 191,679 581,334
1990 10,411 33,951 31,445 38,438 3,385 110,678 226,308 666,433

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS STUDY FOR REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT

136

9

PAGE 204



Tables A, C,D,E,F,and G
of the
Water Supply Contract
between
The State of Callfornia
Department of Water Resources
Littlerock Creek Irrigation District
(in dokars excepl w here otherw Ise noled)
Transportation Charge |
Capital Costs (Table D) I}'
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System

Calendar | Peymentof |Annual Interest | Component Defta Water | Revenue Bond | Off-Aquaduct | Paym |
Year Princlpal Payment (Table E& G) Charges Surcharge |Power Facilities || biamlt il m i
1991 10,942 33,581 46,035 40,793 5,236 85,111 201,708 566,687
1992 11,535 32,403 51,225 46,610 7,053 22,891 171,717 484,320
1993 12,141 30,180 48,657 46,720 7437 60,615 205,750 535,462
1994 12,784 29,831 53,958 44772 7.431 88,548 237,325 594,452
1995 13,436 30,107 51,818 47,814 8,768 43,802 196,037 472,602
1996 14,123 28,753 59,930 47,104 10,640 31,691 192,241 446,055
1997 14,821 29,517 64,464 52,082 10,972 24,319 196175 438,097
1998 15,579 29,173 68,055 52,433 10,550 30,365 196,165 421,608
1999 16,340 28,928 81,350 54,224 14,475 18,305 213,622 441,918
2000 17,148 27,846 79374 55,078 16,486 - 185,932 390,108
2001 17,970 27,200 67,726 55,090 16,224 - 184,210 353,002
2002 18,837 26,960 69,689 55,812 18,724 - 188,122 346,967
2003 19,745 25,148 114,340 54,735 17415 - 231,383 410,738
2004 20,674 24263 41,999 54,215 17.432 . 158,563 270,941
2005 21,648 23,526 37,282 56,310 16,457 - 155,223 255,246
2008 22,711 22435 75,875 57,053 17,809 - 195,883 310,018
2007 23,854 21,500 81,033 62,714 11,413 - 200,514 305,433
2008 25,037 20,813 106,363 64,151 17,175 1,845 235,384 345,000
2009 26,245 20,274 57,372 70,109 18,629 3,269 195,798 276,279
2010 27,659 18,849 107,466 87,605 17,731 177 259,487 352,403
2011 29,173 18,001 68,537 96,432 19,148 407 231,699 302,854
2012 30,653 17.281 72,780 100,679 18,453 485 240,351 302,370
2013 32,195 15825 116,168 106,557 20,052 3,270 294,097 356,097
2014 32,939 14,646 89,881 101,120 21,838 3,804 284,227 307,921
2015 33,976 13,707 161,605 137,621 20,924 2,214 370,046 415,052
2016 34,483 13,912 114771 164,497 20,895 746 348,304 377,081
2017 33,301 13,387 92,259 158,416 19,257 658 317,278 328,652

10 ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

137

PAGE 205



APPENDIX C: SWP FIXED COSTS — PWD

138

PAGE 206



Tables A,C,D, E,F,and G
of the
Water Supply Contract
between
The State of California
Department of Water Resources
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
{in dollars except w here otherw |se noted)
Transportation Charge
Capital Costs (Table D)
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System
Calendar | Paymentof |Annualinterest| Component Delta Water | Revenue Bond | Off-Aquaduct .
Year Principal Payment (Table E& G) Charges Surcharge |Power Facilities ||
1960 s . - 5 S .
1961 - - -
1962 - - - - - -
1963 - - - -
1964 946 8,222 - 9,168 72363
1965 1,796 10,440 - - 12,236 92,953
1866 3,323 24,593 * - - 27,9186 204,108
1967 6,457 34,366 - - - 40,863 287,556
1968 10,751 73,446 14,340 - - 08,537 667,385
1969 16,145 110,471 11,056 - - - 137,872 897 444
1970 22,300 153,980 16,870 - . 193,260 1,212,518
1971 27,837 147,486 23,402 - - 198,825 1,200,609
1972 31,440 193,968 52,963 13,021 - - 291,392 1,693,530
1973 33,743 220,289 67,837 26,131 - - 348,000 1,946,610
1974 35,597 233,427 16,870 39,631 - - 325,625 1,753,080
1975 37618 202,360 77,908 50,989 - 368,875 1,911,383
19786 39,567 199,484 49,562 67,581 356,204 1,776,445
1977 41,584 187,150 80,370 77.255 - 396,368 1,902,550
1978 43 662 201374 90,048 98,345 - - 433,428 2,002,348
1979 45810 198,167 90,841 117,285 452,203 2,010,665
1980 48,293 197,299 126,782 138,590 510,974 2,188,702
1961 52,024 303,742 94,787 211,396 661,949 2,726,464
1982 54,285 122,914 188,716 235,100 601,015 2,382,566
1983 59,032 214,456 310,207 163,925 - - 747620 2,852,406
1984 63,894 346,012 258,244 174,500 - 842,650 3,004,396
1985 68,768 233,039 250,837 200,605 - 157,601 919,850 3,251,098
1986 73,550 225,088 284,701 223,785 - 301,486 1,108,590 3.771,104
1987 78,481 229,358 328,728 228,654 - 258,719 1,123,950 3,679,840
1988 83316 229,980 270,456 248,146 16,240 126,639 974777 3,071,650
1988 87,966 231877 424,450 276,155 27,981 493,424 1,541,653 4,675602
1890 93,341 228,640 227818 289,119 24,956 545342 1,409,216 4,113,513

12 ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

139

PAGE 207



Tables A,C,D,E,F,and G

of the

Water Supply Contract

between

The State of California
Department of Water Resources
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

{in dollars except w here olherw ise noted)

Transportation Charge
Capital Costs (Table D)
Minimum
Annual OMP&R Water System
Calendar | Paymentof |Annualinterest| Component | Delta Water | Revenue Bond Off-Aquaduct

Year Principal Payment (Table E& G) Charges Surcharge |Power Faclllties |

1991 07,336 226,192 340,042 306,835 36,641 488,207 1,497,253 4,206,443
1992 101,682 220,395 380,756 350,587 52,160 367,996 1,473,576 3,084,527
1993 106,683 204,334 353,768 351,415 55,045 640,918 1712164 4,455 BB6
1994 112,034 200,467 300,680 336,766 54 968 678,876 1,773,801 4443018
1995 117,527 201,835 404,431 360,394 64,852 636,541 1,785,580 4,304,641
1996 123,261 191,420 442 B31 354,307 78,696 723,670 1,814,185 4,441,462
1997 129,259 195,880 478,826 391,745 81,146 648,652 1,825,508 4,300,033
1998 135,477 182,722 447,893 394,387 78,028 657,806 1,806,113 4,096,940
1999 141,897 190,166 607,048 407 859 107,060 710674 2,164,703 4,478,098
2000 148,667 363,992 685,260 510,073 121,888 257,146 2,087,036 4,155,371
2001 155,717 231,130 585,727 510,185 135,581 445872 2,074,212 3,974,820
2002 163,127 225,450 617,420 517,791 139,071 529,674 2,192,533 4,043,849
2003 170,744 213,868 961,287 506,894 144,812 277,984 2,275,589 4,039,485
2004 178,712 206,574 374,448 602,073 144,960 368,929 1,775,398 3,033,283
2005 187,084 200,581 367,640 521,475 136,853 400,828 1,814,461 2,983,863
2008 196,108 191,376 666,040 528,361 148,089 442278 2,172,252 3,437,928
2007 205,998 183,285 707,653 580,783 95,550 710,518 2,483,784 3,783,423
2008 216,175 177,549 925,863 594,098 144 009 1,052,126 3,100,818 4,559,219
2009 226,411 173,072 517,546 649,264 154,087 1,154 433 2,874,813 4,056,482
2010 238,646 160,980 888,664 811,293 147,438 810,142 2,058,173 4,153,234
2011 251,751 154,104 642,842 893,038 150,239 551,068 2,652,042 3,466,484
2012 264,471 148,214 624,548 932,373 154,732 1,072,349 3,196,687 4,021,549
2013 277,541 135,890 1,030,792 986,811 168,130 512,708 3,111,862 3,768,010
2014 283,992 125,785 771,792 036,466 183,142 348413 2,649,560 4,087,706
2015 292,536 117,698 1,383,482 1,274,493 175,577 131,952 3,375,839 3,786,529
2016 297,194 120,323 1,025,625 1,523,381 175,457 29,017 3,170,997 3,423,158
2017 288,693 114,988 786,871 1,467,071 161,746 21,152 2,840,521 2,951,301

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS STUDY FOR REPLACEMENT WATER ASSESSMENT 13

140

PAGE 208




Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-12
Storage and Recovery Agreement
Anmml Water Storage and Recovery Report

PAGE 209



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-12

ADOPTING A FORM STORAGE AND RECOVERY AGREEMENT AND A FORM
ANNUAL WATER STORAGE AND RECOVERY REPORT

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, the Judgment provides that the Watermaster Engineer shall prepare Rules
and Regulations relating to Storage Agreements; and

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2018 the Watermaster adopted Resolution 18-16 concerning
Rules and Regulations relating to Storage Agreements which Rules and Regulations were then
approved by the Court pursuant to its order dated August 9,2018; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 24, 2019 where the Watermaster
considered public comment on a form Storage and Recovery Agreement and a form Annual
Water Storage and Recovery Report, true and correct copies of which are attached to this
Resolution as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster hereby adopts the forms as found in attached Exhibit “A”
and wishes to direct that their contents be incorporated into the Rules and Regulations relating to
Storage Agreements which were adopted by the Watermaster pursuant to Resolution 18-16.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Watermaster Board unanimously adopts
the form Storage and Recovery Agreement and the form Annual Water Storage and Recovery
Report attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and hereby directs that Exhibit “A” be incorporated into
the Rules and Regulations relating to Storage Agreements adopted by this Board pursuant to
Resolution 18-16 on June 27, 2018 with modifications, if any, as directed by the Board after the

public hearing.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-12 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24,2019 in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

142

PAGE 210



ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER
STORAGE AND RECOVERY AGREEMENT

This Antelope Valley Watermaster Storage and Recovery Agreement (Agreement) is
made and entered into effective , 2019 (Effective Date) by and between the

Antelope Valley Watermaster (Watermaster) and (Applicant)

pursuant to section 14 of the Judgment and Physical Solution entered December 21, 2015

(Judgment).

RECITALS

A. The Applicant is a Party to the Judgment and identified on [STATE
WHERE IDENTIFIED, TYPICALLY WOULD BE EXHIBIT 3 OR EXHIBIT 4].

B. Section 14 of the Judgment provides that all Parties to the Judgment have the right
to store water in the Basin! pursuant to a storage agreement with the Watermaster.

C. Section 14 further provides that storage agreements shall not modify or limit the
operation of pre-existing banking proj ects{a1l.

D. fThe Applicant is operating a pre-existing banking project on the land depicted in
Exhibit A and legally described in Exhibit B, consisting of about ____ gross acres (Project)f[AzJ.
The facilities used for the Project are also shown on Exhibit A.

E. The Project operation is described in the following documents, which were
reviewed by the Watermaster Engineer: [LIST DOCUMENTS] A3]

F. The Project is [or is NOT] within an area of the Basin that has| historically
experienced subsidence, or which appears to be susceptible to subsidence.[as]

G. The Watermaster Engineer has determined, as required in Section 5(e) of the

Rules and Regulations, that the Project will not cause Material Injury on any Producer.

1 All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Judgment.

2018-11-07 Draft Watermaster Storage Agreement.DOCX
143

PAGE 211



H. The Watermaster Engineer has determined and the parties agree that the

Applicant currently has acre feet of water in storage as of the Effective Date. bf that
amount, acre-feet of Stored Water can be exported from the Basin.hASI
L The Applicant desires to enter into a storage agreement with the Watermaster

consistent with the Judgment and the Rules and Regulations for Storage Agreements, and subject
to the terms and provisions set forth herein.

J. By Watermaster Resolution No. , the Watermaster approved and authorized
its President to execute this Storage Agreement.bxq

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.
2 Project Losses. Unrecoverable Project losses, due to evaporation,
evapotranspiration, and other factors is estimated at 9% of the total water delivered for

recharge and the Applicant shall therefore be entitled to a credit of % of the water delivered
for recharge as water stored in the Basin and available for recovery.

3. No Material Injury. Tl“he Applicant shall not operate the Project in a manner that
causes a Material Injury upon any Producer.ia7]

4, Metering: If not already installed as part of a pre-existing banking program, the
Applicant shall install a meter or meters at the Applicant’s sole expense for the purpose of
accurately recording the amount of water delivered for recharge and the amount of water
recovered. Meters installations are subject to the approval of the Watermaster Engineer. The

meter(s) shall be maintained in good working order and regularly calibrated in accordance with

requirements of the Watermaster Engineer.

2018-11-07 Draft Watermaster Storage Agreement.DOCX 2

144

PAGE 212



5. Recovery. All stored water shall be recovered from the Project lands using
Project facilities as identified in Exhibit A unless a different place of recovery and/or different
facilities are authorized in writing by the Watermaster.

6. Project OperationsiAs]. The Project includes limitations on operations as
documented in the materials identified in Recital E which may inform the Watermaster
Engineer’s no Material Injury finding, including [FOLLOWING MAY VARY DEPENDING
ON THE SPECIFIC PROJECT]: (1) maximum amount of water to be stored; (2) maximum
annual recharge amount; (3) maximum annual recovery amount; (4) any "triggers" on limits for
recharge and recovery, like groundwater level impacts at monitoring wells.

7. Pre- or Post-Delivery of Replacement Water. Section 14 of the Judgment
provides that, pursuant to a Storage Agreement, a Party can provided for pre-delivery or post-
delivery of Replacement Water that can be credited to the Party's Replacement Water Obligation
at the Party's request. Pre- or Post-Delivery of Replacement Water will be made consistent with
the requirements in the storage Rules and Regulations. s}

8. Reporting. On or before [E.g. March 15] of the year following the
year in which water is recharged, the Applicant shall file an Annual Storage Agreement Report
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit C setting forth the amount of stored water as of
January 1 of the reporting year, the amount of new water recharged during the reporting year, the
source(s) of all water recharged during the reporting year, the recovery, use or disposition of all
water recovered during the reporting year, the location and purpose of use (if any), and any
monitoring data required under this agreement.

9. fSpecial Monitoring Requirements[[mol: The Applicant shall have the following
special monitoring requirements to demonstrate that operation of the Project does not cause a
Material Injury on any Producer:

2018-11-07 Draft Watermaster Storage Agreement.DOCX 3
145

PAGE 213



a. [LIST AS APPROPRIATE]

10.  Term. The term of this Agreement shall be perpetual unless terminated by the
Applicant on six months’ prior written notice, or by order of the Court for good cause.

11.  Successors and Assigns: This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, and
their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assigns, lessors and licensees.

12.  Inspection of Records and Facilities. The Watermaster shall have the right, on
reasonable advance written notice, to inspect the Project and related facility and the Applicant’s
records relating thereto.

13. Modiﬁcation of Storage Agreemenﬂmn]. If the Watermaster Engineer
determines, based on new information not reasonably available on the Effective Date, that the
Project will or may cause Material Injury to a Producer, the Watermaster Engineer shall notify
the Applicant to determine whether this Agreement and operation of the Project may be modified
to avoid such Material Injury.

WHEREFORE, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Dated: , 2018 Watermaster

By

Its President

Dated: , 2018 Applicant

By

2018-11-07 Draft Watermaster Storage Agreement.DOCX 4

146

PAGE 214



Advisory Committee
March 27, 2019

Draft Storage and Recovery Report
and Redline

147

PAGE 215



ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

ANNUAL WATER STORAGE AND RECOVERY REPORT

2018 Calendar Year
Submit by March 1, 2019

Please mail to: Antelope Valley Watermaster, P.O. Box 3025, Quartz Hill, California 93586 OR email to info@avwatermaster.net
Call Watermaster Administrative staff at 661-234-8233 with questions.

Reporting Party:
Contact Name:
Address:

Phone: email:

A. Ref Storage Agreement Dated:

B. Amount of stored water as of December 31 of prior reporting year in acre-feet

C. Source(s) and amounts of all water spread during the reporting year:

1. Source: Acre-Feet
2. Source: Acre-Feet
3. Source: Acre-Feet
4. Source: Acre-Feet

D. Total Amount of water spread during the reporting year in acre-feet

E. After applyinga % loss factor, the total amount of water recharged during the reporting period in

acre-feet is:

F. Total amount of stored water recovered during reporting year in acre-feet

G. Total amount of water stored at end of reporting year (B + E—F) in acre-feet

H. Total amount of this stored water that was banked for use outside Adjudicated Area in acre-feet

H-l. If water was recovered during the reporting year, state the place, well number, and APN(s), purpose and
amount of use, and specify the amounts delivered/used outside of the Adjudicated Area
1.

2.

L), If stored water was used to satisfy a Replacement Water obligation, state the Producer, place and APN(s)
and amount of use
1.

2.

K. Other Information (any monitoring data required under the agreement should be attached)

Drafl Annual Storage Report - Exhibit C Revd. 12-6-20482-28-19

148

PAGE 216



ANTELOPE VALLEY WATERMASTER

i certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information provided on this Report is true and correct.

Signature of Party Representative Date

Draft Annual Storage Report - Exhibit C Revd. 42-6-20482-28-19
149

PAGE 217



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-13
Memorandum Concerning
Small Pumper Class Water Rights

150

PAGE 218



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-13

ADOPTING MARCH 15, 2019 MEMORANDUM FROM GENERAL COUNSEL
CONCERNING SMALL PUMPER CLASS WATER RIGHTS

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, issues have arisen on how the Judgment should be implemented in relation
to the Small Pumper Class whose rights, duties and responsibilities are set forth in the Judgment;

and

WHEREAS, at the Watermaster’s direction, General Counsel for the Watermaster
prepared a memorandum dated March 15, 2019 concerning Small Pumper Class water rights that
addresses various issues in relation to the Small Pumper Class and that March 15, 2019
memorandum has been reviewed and commented upon by the Advisory Committee at its March
21, 2019 meeting and public comment on that March 15, 2019 memorandum has been taken and
considered at the March 27, 2019 meeting of the Watermaster Board and again at the April 24,
2019 meeting of the Watermaster Board; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster wishes to adopt the March 15, 2019 memorandum of its
General Counsel and to direct that it be incorporated into the final set of Rules and Regulations
that are being prepared for adoption by the Watermaster Board and approval by the Court.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wastermaster Board unanimously
adopts the March 15, 2019 Memorandum of its General Counsel concerning Small Pumper Class
water rights and directs that the memorandum be incorporated into the final set of Rules and
Regulations being prepared for Board adoption and approval by the Court.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-13 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

151

PAGE 219



PRICE, POSTEL & PARMA LLP

MEMORANDUM
TO: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board DATE: March 15, 2019
FROM: Craig A. Parton FILENO.: 23641-1

General Counsel to the Watermaster
Cc: Watermaster Engineer

SUBJECT: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Houscholds” and/or “Parcels”

I. Introduction

The Watermaster has recently encountered Small Pumper Class Members who own
multiple parcels, only some of which are improved with a well and/or a house. These Parties
take the position that each of their parcels should be allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year,
per Paragraphs 5.1.3 of the Judgment. Likewise, Small Pumper Class Members owning a parcel
improved with multiple wells or multiple houses, or even multiple improved parcels, may take
the position that they should be allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per bouse and/or per well.
Whereas in the past Small Pumper Class Members have demonstrated that each parcel they own
is improved with either a well or a house, this presents a new scenario that the Watermaster must
address on a consistent basis moving forward. The Small Pumper Class Members with
unimproved parcels are generally outliers within the Small Pumper Class, as they tend to be
agricultural operators and not representative of the class majority of residential users.

1I. Question Presented

What does the Judgment mean when it says that each Small Pumper Class “household” or
“parcel” may produce up to 3 acre-feet per year? In particular, what is the result when a Small
Pumper Class Member owns multiple parcels, but not all of the parcels are improved with a weli
and/or a house? May each parcel owned by the Small Pumper Class Member pump up to 3 acre-
feet per year, or only those parcels improved with a well and/or a house as of the date of the
Judgment? What if a single parcel is improved with multiple wells and/or houses, or a Small
Pumper Class Member owns multiple improved parcels?

III.  Brief Answer

The plain language of the Judgment is ambiguous, although the most reasonable
interpretation is that Small Pumper Class Members’ rights to produce groundwater only attach to
parcels improved with a well and/or a house. Completely unimproved parcels, even if

152

PAGE 220



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households™ and/or “Parcels”
March 15, 2019

Page 2

contiguous to a Small Pumper Class parcel improved with a well or a house, do not also have
water rights.

Iv. Legal Analysis

The plain language of the Judgment discussing Small Pumper Class water rights provides
very little clarity, as different sections suggest different conclusions. Most sections of the
Judgment reference only “household(s),” suggesting that water rights attach only to homes using
groundwater as of the date of the Judgment. Some sections reference only “parcel(s)” on which
water is pumped, indicating that the parcel must have been improved with an active well as of
the date of the Judgment. Other sections refer to “household(s)” or “parcel(s).” The below
analysis provides a recommended interpretation of each section of the Judgment that references
Small Pumper Class water rights.”

A. DEFINITIONS (3.5)

The Small Pumper Class is defined as those persons and entities that historically pumped
less than 25 acre-feet per year “on their property.” (3.5.44.) “[W]here two or more Small
Pumper Class Membets reside in the same household, they shall be treated as a single Small
Pumper Class Member for purposes of determining water rights.” (3.5.45.)

This language demonstrates that Small Pumper Class water rights attach to the household
(or the “property™) rather than the individual Small Pumper Class Members, but does not clarify
when and how water rights attach to a parce! owned by a Small Pumper Class Member. This
language does suggest that Small Pumper Class water rights are overlying water rights (i.e.,
historical pumping “on their property”), which are defined as “the owner’s right to take water
from the ground underneath for use on his land within the basin or watershed; it is based on the
ownership of the land and is appurtenant thereto.” (City of Barstow v. Mojave Water Agency
(2000) 23 Cal. 4th 1224, 1240.) Viewed as an overlying right, a Small Pumper Class water right
only attaches to a parcel if the water is actually pumped on that particular parcel. Other parcels
owned by a Small Pumper Class Member, but not improved with a well ot a household, would
unlikely hold an exercised overlying groundwater right under California law. This may also
explain the use of the term “household,” which was likely intended to ensure that each Small
Pumper Class house would also receive water rights despite no well existing on the parcel, or
when a single well on a parcel serves multiple homes thereon.

B. SMALL PUMPER CLASS PRODUCTION RIGHTS (5.1.3)

“Allocation of water to the Small Pumper Class is set at an average Small Pumper Class
Member amount of 1.2 acre-feet per existing household or parcel based upon the 3172 known
Small Pumper Class Member parcels at the time of this Judgment.” (5.1.3 (emphasis added).)

! All citations are to Paragraphs of the Judgment unless otherwise indicated.

163

PAGE 221



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households™ and/or “Parcels”
March 15, 2019

Page 3

“Any Small Pumper Class Member may Produce up to and including 3 acre-feet per Year per
existing household for reasonable and beneficial use on their overlying land.” (Ibid (emphasis
added).) This language again supports the position that Small Pumper Class water rights are
overlying water rights, and therefore attach only to a parcel improved with a house or a well that
was using or pumping groundwater as of the date of the Judgment (City of Barstow, 23 Cal. 4th
at 1240), not to unimproved neighboring parcels to which water is transported but on which no
water is pumped. Unfortunately, the fact that the average Small Pumper Class amount is based
on existing households or parcels, whereas only Small Pumper Class households may produce up
to 3 acre-feet per year, adds to the ambiguity on the face of the Judgment.

“A Small Pumper Class Member who is lawfully, by permit, operating a shared well
with an adjoining Small Pumper Class Member, shall have all of the same rights and obligations
under this Judgment without regard to the location of the shared well, and such shared use is not
considered a prohibited transfer of a pumping right under Paragraph 5.1.3.3.” (5.1.3.) This
language suggests that a Small Pumper Class Member who owns a parcel with a house but not a
well may hold a Small Pumper Class water right based solely on water pumped from an
adjoining Small Pumper Class parcel owned by a third party

“Should the Watermaster develop a reasonable belief that a Small Pumper Class Member
household is using in excess of 3 acre-feet per Year, the Watermaster may cause to be installed a
meter on such Small Pumper Class Member’s well at the Small Pumper Class Member’s
expense.” (5.1.3.2 (emphasis added).) This language, combined with the language in Paragraph
5.1.3, suggests that no single Small Pumper Class household may pump in excess of 3 acre-feet
per year, period. If each parcel owned by a Small Pumper Class Member were allowed to pump
up to 3 acre-feet per year, and a member owned three parcels but only one with a well, then the
Small Pumper Class Member household could technically pump up to 9 acre-fect per year
without being subject to Replacement Water Assessment. This interpretation does not align with
the language in the Judgment limiting each household to up to 3 acre-feet per year. The
omission of the word “parcel” from this language also indicates that the Judgment was intended
to limit each Small Pumper Class Member’s water rights, rather than broaden the water rights by
allowing each parce! to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year regardless of the existence of a well or a
house.

“The pumping rights of Small Pumper Class Members are not transferable separately
from the parcel of property on which the water is pumped.” (5.1.3.3 (emphasis added).) This
implies that it would be impossible to transfer a water right from a parcel that does not pump
water. Thus, the logical interpretation of this language is that parcels not improved with a well
were not intended to receive water rights, as the language focuses specifically on the parcel of
property “on which the water is pumped.” Because of the provisions of Paragraph 5.1.3
discussed above, this interpretation should not impact parcels that are improved with a house (or
houses) but pump water from a well on another parcel.

154

PAGE 222



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households” and/or “Parcels™
March 15, 2019

Page 4

Furthermore, “a Small Pumper Class Member may move their water right to another
parcel owned by that Small Pumper Class Member with approval of the Court.” (5.1.3.3.) This
again indicates that the Small Pumper Class Member’s ability to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year
is only associated with the parcel from which water is pumped, not other parcels owned by the
Small Pumper Class Member that are not improved with a well (or a house). In other words, if
Small Pumper Class Members® contiguous parcels were each given water rights, why would a
Small Pumper Class Member need to utilize this water rights transfer procedure?

“The pumping rights of Small Pumper Class Members may not be aggregated for usc by
a purchaser of more than one Small Pumper Class Member’s property.” (5.1.3.3.) This clearly
indicates that Small Pumper Class water rights attach to the land rather than the person or entity,
but does not clarify the household/parcel distinction. In other words, a Small Pumper Class
parcel cannot transfer its right to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year to another, separately owned,
parcel so as to increase the water rights on the second separately owned parcel.

“[A]ny additional household constructed on a Small Pumper Class Member parcel after
the Class Closure Date is not entitled to a Production Right as set forth in Paragraphs 5.1.3 and
5.1.3.1.” (5.1.3.5.) This language implies that Small Pumper Class parcels may have multiple
households, with each household allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year as long as the
houses existed as of the date of the Judgment. Likewise, Unknown Smail Pumper Class
Members are defined as, inter alia, “any unidentified households existing on a Small Pumper
Class Member parcel prior to the Class Closure Date” (5.1.3.6.), which also implies that a Small
Pumper Class parcel may contain more than one household, each allowed to pump up to 3 acre-
feet per year.

C. MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS (20.4)

“A Party simultaneously may be a member of the Small Pumper Class and hold an
Overlying Production Right by virtue of owning land other than the parcel(s) meeting the Small
Pumper Class definition.” (20.4.) This language implies the obvious conclusion that a Small
Pumper Class Member may own multiple Small Pumper Class Parcels, but again does nothing to
clarify whether each Small Pumper Class parcel must be improved with a well and/or a house in
order to receive a water right.

V. Discussion

The majority of the sections of the Judgment support allowing only households or parcels
with wells and/or houses to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year. However there is little clarity
regarding these water rights for Small Pumper Class parcels with multiple houses and/or wells,
or Small Pumper Class Members who own multiple improved parcels.

156

PAGE 223



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households” and/or “Parcels”
March 15, 2019

Page 5

First: the most reasonable interpretation of the Judgment is that unimproved parcels do
not have water rights. Given the Small Pumper Class’s allocation of the Native Safe Yield, it
does not appear that Small Pumper Class Members were intended to receive an additional water
right for unimproved parcels they may also own. An important question arises, for example, in
the case of Long Valley Road LP, which owns five parcels, onc improved with two wells, and
four unimproved parcels using water pumped from the wells on the improved parcel. May Long
Valley pump up to 3 acre-feet per year for the single improved parcel (i.e., up to 3 acre-feet per
year total), or may each of its wells pump up to 3 acre-feet per year (for a total of up to 6 acre-
feet per year)? Depending upon the interpretation of the Judgment, Long Valley could pump up
to anywhere from 3 to 6 acre-feet per year, but does not have water rights associated with any of
the four unimproved parcels.”

Second: although Long Valley is an outlier within the Judgment, its raises the question as
to how much a Small Pumper Class Member may pump per year without incurring a
Replacement Water Assessment if it owns a parcel improved with multiple homes and/or wells,
or if it owns multiple parcels each improved with a well and/or a home. The hypotheticals below
should help address these scenarios moving forward.

Third: assuming unimproved Small Pumper Class parcels do not have water rights, one
likely result is that such parcels may belong to the Non-Pumper Willis Class. In this situation,
the Small Pumper Class Members who own such “Willis Class™ parcels would be required to
submit an application for New Production for each parcel, which should be addressed on a case-
by-case basis as the issue arises.

VL Hypotheticals

A. Single Parcel
i Well Only

Entity, a Small Pumper Class Member, owns Parcel X, which is improved with a well but
not a house, and which otherwise satisfies the Small Pumper Class historical production
requirement.

It is clear that Entity may pump up to 3 acre-feet per year from Parcel X without
incurring a Replacement Water Assessment. If Entity sells Parcel X to Individual, the right to
pump up to 3 acre-feet per year clearly remains with Parcel X and is transferred to Individual as
the subsequent owner. Finally, if Entity also owns Parcel Y, which is not contiguous to Parcel X

? For Parties like Long Valley, this does not mean that they will limit their groundwater production to less than 3
acre-feet per year, but rather impacts the amount of Replacement Water Assessment the Party will pay, because the
Party will likely continue to pump in excess of the threshold for incurring a Replacement Water Assessment.

156

PAGE 224



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households™ and/or “‘Parcels™
March 15, 2019

Page 6

and is unimproved with a well or a house, Entity may clearly transfer the right to pump up to 3
acre-feet per year on Parcel X to Parcel Y with approval of the Court.

If, however, Parcel Y is improved with a well and otherwise satisfies the Small Pumper
Class historical production requirement, may Entity transfer its right to pump up to 3 acre-feet
per year on Parcel Y to Parcel X, in which case it will have the right to pump up to 6 acre-feel
per year from the well on Parcel X without incurring a Replacement Water Assessment? The
Judgment only prohibits the aggregation of Small Pumper Class water rights “for use by a
purchaser of more than one Small Pumper Class Member’s property.”

ii. Well & House

Same facts as hypothetical VLA.i, except Parcel X is improved with both a well and a
house. May Entity pump up to 3 acre-feet per year for to the house and up to 3 acre-feet per year
for the well, or just up to 3 acre-feet per year for Parcel X total? The Judgment is unclear, but
given the language limiting each household to 3 acre-feet per year before incurring a
Replacement Water Assessment, the likely result is that Parcel X may pump up to 3 acre-feet per
year total.

@i, Multiple Houses

Same facts as hypothetical VLA i, except Parcel X is improved with one well and two
separate houses. Is each house considered a “household” and therefore allowed to pump up to 3
acre-feet per year each, or is Parcel X just allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year total? The
term “household” was possibly included in the Judgment to account for circumstances like this,
such that multiple households on a single parcel as of the date of the Judgment would each be
allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year. The Judgment is unclear on this issue, and the
Watermaster should make a decision regarding the water rights of multiple houses on the same
parcel that existed as of the date of the Judgment. The second definition of Unknown Small
Pumper Class Members in paragraph 5.1.3.6 supports allowing each such household to pump up
to 3 acre-feet per year.

iv. House Only

Same facts as hypothetical VI.A.i, except Parcel X is improved with a house but no well,
and the house receives its water from a well on a neighboring property, also owned by a Small
Pumper Class Member. Assuming there is a shared well agreement, Paragraph 5.1.3 clearly
allows the house on Parcel X to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year, and the well on the adjoining
parcel may pump up to 3 acre-feet per year for the benefit of Parcel X. Even if there is no shared
well agreement, and the neighboring parcel is not owned by a Small Pumper Class Member,
Parcel X is still likely allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year for its household.

157

PAGE 225



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board
Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Households™ and/or “Parcels”

March 15, 2019
Page 7

V. Two Wells

Same facts as hypothetical VLA i, except Parcel X is improved with two wells. Entity
may claim it is entitled to pump up to 6 acre-feet per year. Given that the Judgment very clearly
allows each parcel (or household) to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year, the likely result is that
Parcel X may only pump up to 3 acre-feet per year for both wells combined.

B. Multiple Contiguous Parcels
i Both Improved

Entity, a Small Pumper Class Member, owns Parcel X, which is improved with a well but
not a house, and also owns contiguous Parcel Y, which is improved with a house but not a well.
Assume both Parcel X and Parcel Y otherwise satisfy the Small Pumper Class historical
production requirement.

Entity may claim that Parcel X is allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year, and Parcel
Y is also allowed to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year. Given that the Small Pumper Class was
intended to apply primarily to small residential users, a reasonable interpretation of the Judgment
would allow Entity to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year total, despite the fact that both parcels it
owns are “improved.” Situations like this may need to be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

ii. One Improved & One (or More) Unimproved

Same facts as hypothetical VI.B.i, except Parcel X is improved with both a well and a
house, and Parcel Y is unimproved (no well and no house) but uses water pumped from Parcel X
for agricultural or other purposes on Parcel Y. Parcel X satisfies the Small Pumper Class
historical production requirement, and Entity alleges that Parcel Y has always used water
pumped from the well on Parcel X. May Parcel Y pump up to 3 acre-feet per year without
incurring a Replacement Water Assessment? May Entity pump up to 6 acre-feet per year from
Parcel X, some of which will benefit Parcel Y, just because the historical production on Parcel X
always bencfitted Parcel Y, and despite the fact that no water has ever been pumped from Parcel
Y?

As set forth above, the reasonable interpretation of the Judgment and California law
related to overlying groundwater rights indicate that Parcel Y may not pump any water without
incurring a Replacement Water Assessment because it has not demonstrated an exercised right to
pump groundwater on the overlying parcel. If this is the result, Entity could seek approval of the
Court to transfer its right to pump up to 3 acre-feet per year from Parcel X to Parcel Y.

158

PAGE 226



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Small Pumper Class Water Rights — “Houscholds” and/or “Parcels™
March 15, 2019

Page 8

VII. Conclusion

The likely result is that unimproved parcels do not have Small Pumper Class water rights,
period. An internal discussion of the policy impacts related specifically to the above
hypotheticals will be an important first step in determining how the Watermaster should treat
applications for Small Pumper Class Members who own multiple parcels improved with a well
and/or a house, or a parcel improved with multiple houses and/or wells. Some scenarios will
need to be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

159

PAGE 227



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Resolution No. R-19-14

Small Pumper Class Limits
160

PAGE 228



RESOLUTION NO. R-19-14

ADOPTING APRIL 5, 2019 MEMORANDUM FROM GENERAL COUNSEL
CONCERNING LIMITS ON NUMBER OF UNKNOWN SMALL PUMPER CLASS
MEMBERS

WHEREAS, the Antelope Valley Watermaster, formed by the Antelope Valley
Groundwater Cases Final Judgment (“Judgment”), Santa Clara Case No. 1-05-CV-049053
signed December 23, 2015, is to administer the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, issues have arisen on how the Judgment should be implemented in relation
to the issue of limits on the number of unknown Small Pumper Class Members whose rights,
duties and responsibilities are set forth in the Judgment; and

WHEREAS, at the Watermaster’s direction, General Counsel for the Watermaster
prepared a memorandum dated April 5, 2019 concerning the issues related to limits on the
number of unknown Small Pumper Class Members and that April 5, 2019 memorandum has
been reviewed and commented upon by the Advisory Committee at its April 18, 2019 meeting
and public comment on that April 5, 2019 memorandum has been taken and considered at the
April 24, 2019 meeting of the Watermaster Board; and

WHEREAS, the Watermaster wishes to adopt the April 5, 2019 memorandum of its
General Counsel and to direct that it be incorporated into the final set of Rules and Regulations
that are being prepared for adoption by the Watermaster Board and approval by the Court.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wastermaster Board unanimously
adopts the April 5, 2019 Memorandum of its General Counsel concerning the issues related to
limits on the number of unknown Small Pumper Class Members and directs that the
memorandum be incorporated into the final set of Rules and Regulations being prepared for
Board adoption and approval by the Court.

I certify that this is a true copy of Resolution No. R-19-14 as passed by the Board of
Directors of the Antelope Valley Watermaster at its meeting held April 24, 2019, in
Palmdale, California.

Date:

Robert Parris, Chairman

ATTEST:
Patricia Rose — Secretary

161

PAGE 229



PRICE, POSTEL & PARMA LLP

MEMORANDUM
TO: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board DATE.: April 5,2019
FROM: Craig A. Parton FILE NO.: 23641-]

General Counsel to the Watermaster
Ce: Watermaster Engineer

SUBJECT: Limit on Number of Unknown Small Pumper Class Members

1. Question Presented

Considering the monthly addition of unknown Small Pumper Class Members, does the
Judgment provide guidance on what to do if the number of Small Pumper Class Members
continues to grow, arguably creating a material impact on the Native Safe Yield of the Basin?

IL. Brief Answer

The Judgment indicates that an unlimited number of unknown Small Pumper Class
Members may be admitied to the Judgment. The Small Pumper Class’ aggregate Production
Right is set at 3806.4 AFY, divided equally among all Small Pumper Class Members regardless
of the total number. However the Judgment includes a procedure whereby the 3 AFY threshold
for incurring a Replacement Water Assessment may be reduced based upon an analysis of the
Small Pumper Class’ actual Native Safe Yield Production. This procedure for reduction of the 3
AFY threshold may help protect the health of the Basin while allowing for the unlimited addition
of unknown Small Pumper Class Members.

III.  Discussion

The Board has grown increasingly concerned that the continued addition of Small
Pumper Class Members will eventually impact the health of the Basin given that each additional
Small Pumper Class Member is allowed to Produce up to 3 AFY without incurring a
Replacement Water Assessment. Although the Court determined that “any Production by
unknown Small Pumper Class Members is . . . deemed to be de minimis” (5.1.3.7), the Board has
asked whether and when the increasing numbcr of Small Pumper Class Members may be deemed
more than “de minimis,” and whether the Watermaster may therefore begin to deny unknown
Small Pumper Class Member applications on this basis.

One proposed solution was to request that the Watermaster Engineer conduct an analysis
of the impact Small Pumper Class Production will have on the health of the Basin as their
numbers continue to grow. If the Watermaster Engineer could quantify the maximum number of

162

PAGE 230



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Limit on Number of Unknown Small Pumper Class Members
April §,2019

Pagc 2

Small Pumper Class Members that may produce up to 3 AFY without harming the health of the
Basin, then the Board could potentially use this number as an eventual cap on unknown Small
Pumper Class Members admitted under Paragraph 5.1.3.7.

Upon further analysis, this approach seems to be contrary to the intent of the Judgment.
The Small Pumper Class’ aggregate Production Right is 3806.4 AFY, set at an average Small
Pumper Class Member amount of 1.2 AFY per existing household or parcel for the “3172 known
Small Pumper Class member parcels” at the time of the Judgment. (5.1.3.) Small Pumper Class
Members may Produce up to and including 3 AFY without incurring a Replacement Water
Assessment. (/bid.) This aggregate Production Right was apparently based on the Technical
Report prepared by GSI Water Solutions, Inc. (GloTrans Doc. # 10116).

This language suggests that the Small Pumper Class is allocated a total Production right
of 3806.4 AFY, to be divided equally among all Small Pumper Class Members. Because the
majority of Small Pumper Class Members® Production is not monitored, the Judgment sct a
threshold of 3 AFY before a Replacement Water Assessment is imposed, likely based on the
presumption that the majority of Small Pumper Class Members will never reach that threshold,
and will more likely remain closer to or below the designated average of 1.2 AFY. Thus the
detcrmination that Production by unknown Small Pumper Class Members is likely de minimis.

Importantly, this 3 AFY threshold may be adjusted based on a statistically credible study
and analysis of the Small Pumper Class’ actual Native Safe Yield Production over at least a three
Year period. (5.1.3.1.) Any such reduction in the 3 AFY threshold must be mandated by the
Court after notice and a hearing, as well as a determination that Water Code section 106 may
apply so as to prevent such a reduction. (/bid.)

This indicates that although the allocation of an aggregate 3806.4 AFY Production Right
for the entire Small Pumper Class is fixed, the 3 AFY threshold to be crossed before each Small
Pumper Class Member incurs a Replacement Water Assessment is flexible and subject to
reduction in order to protect the health of the Basin. This procedure was likely included in part to
provide this flexibility in administering the Judgment so as to prevent an increased number of
Small Pumper Class Members from exceeding the Small Pumper Class Member allocation of the
Native Safe Yield.

Allowing untimited unknown Small Pumper Class Members to join the Judgment also
comports with the requirements in the Judgment that Small Pumper Class water rights are
protected by Water Code section 106 (5.1; 5.1.3.1), which declares “that the use of water for
domestic purposes is the highest use of water.”

VIL Conclusion

The conclusions in this memorandum are subject to revision based on comments from
Parties and representatives with additional information regarding the intent of the J udgment’s

163

PAGE 231



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Limit on Number of Unknown Small Pumper Class Members
April 5, 2019

Page 3

provisions for the Small Pumper Class. Additional information may help inform and further
develop this analysis.

164

PAGE 232



Regular Meeting
April 24,2019

. Administrator’s Report

PAGE 233



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Meter Compliance Letters - Update

166

PAGE 234



asuodsay oN|6T/0€/S 06 6T/1/¢ 113027 7] Jomojuns pIamajquIng *Iu| 1ejoss
pawniay JoNa1|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ 118137 JT1 “J9M0} UNS BLIAS 4*IU) JBJOSA
2suodsay oN|6T/0E/S 06 6T/T/€ FPEREY] TasTE|
03 SuLBSue.] ) 7] JOMOIUNS UMEQ PIY {*IUL JBJOSD)
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/V 09 6T/T/c 24813 Auedwo) 1218 |EMININ Opelog 13
ssaJdoud ul|6T/0€/S 06 61/T/€ T JoRa wea ueA yuew g Bren)
5123w Julj|BISUL JO 55900.d 2y} Ul 51 SOWNJ J3UUNJIPEDY - 6T/9T/¥ PRIEP [IBWS J3d ssaJdoud ut|6T/0t/s 06 6T/1/€ T JoR3] 028 ¥T s9jafuy 507 Jo 15q UoREYuES Auno)
SSaippe 1alodu)|  pauinisy Jena|6T/T/€c 61/1/€ T o0 15n1) Juar) 3s0j) Y asinoT *) :3s0))
13397 paaNn}- - : Jau31 oN {I12m @san0) JjoD aupy Lasag)
uoieuaWNI0p pa33|duwiod SABY S||9M QT J0 N0 § {a0soV) suodiy jo ewedaq ‘s3ja8uy s01 40 A
asuodsay oN|6T/0E/v 09 6T/1/€ ISR aaysnyy ‘ape) auuy-BLL| 9SNU] 3PED UUY BuL| "utwu‘
pauiniay jana1|6T/0E/S 06 61/T/€ Teua 371 H 0V 002/smouing
9suodsay oN|6T/0€/S 06 6T/1/€ T4anHa] 3315N4} ‘Jug UIID ‘ISna) ..oEEm_
asuodsay ON|6T/OE/S 06 6T/1/€ T13nat ||3Mpug y1aqez!|3 pue sawer "__w.svtm_
goueydwiod Jaiawl Uo JI3YD [[Im BY - SaJUBIH LEYIBN Lo} JIew] papuodsay|eT/0E/S 06 61/1/€ T 9137 xeli08 50 "xm._om_
ks i v 1SN1L £00Z UBWIYOOQ AN PUE SELIOY] ‘UeUDjood
ssa1doid u £/v 09 6T/T/€ [EL
s Ajwed gEET 2yl JO 931SnuL ‘Wwinjg " UOP|BYS (wnjg
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/T/€ T o Auedwo) 1218 [EMINR 1814 YII9iE
35003y ON|61/0€/5 06 [e1/1/e TINaT Auedwio) J21em [eMn 04 u_a_
UOLBWIOJU| PAUINIa] J,USEY 3Y PUE ALIND S3 Pa)(ED ssa180id Ul[6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ T8n2] Auedwo) 131em [emniy s2xxeg|
/ Jepe
AL SBA YuMm Supjiom ssai301d Ul|6T/0/v 09 6T/T/€ 7 daps] Auedwo) 1918 |ENINW fepAiany
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/¢ T Jone1 I71 ‘T YIuey Jejos AV
dLing JueAlg YuM SUBLIOM 6T/6T/E ssa1801d U|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ 11131 ey e (o e
asoy asuadsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/T/€ T Jana Wa1sAS JIBM UOHIEIIOSSY 133115 Y109
SON snIelIS 2213 Ag puodsay sheqg 191197 Jo 2leq  adA) sena J3npoid
Juas JaNI] IST

(uoiejuawini0A leUOIIPPY PaaN) sAed QF - € 49N
(3unesadoo)) sheq 09 - 7 121131
{(auetjdwo)-uoN) sAeq 06 - T 43N]
(v 1q1yx3) s190npoid 3ulAl3A0
SJal9 ou:m__nEOU 13)39|A) JOIEM
Jajsewlsalepy AY

PAGE 235

167



A sap yum Supjiom pafled essauep ssaugodd ulf6T/0g/S 06 6L/T/€ T 491137 e
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ Tdeman 2711 ‘youey asuuos
*a)8|dwod 10U Ing pa||Lp S [|@AN - HodaJd uonanpold 8T 43d sseudaid wleT/0C/v 09 61/1/€ Fr)kal Auedwio? Ja1em Y331 daays
papuodsay|61/0€/S 06 61/1/¢ Tiena 211 quswdojanaq Asjjen adojauy SOS
ALn) sap ypm Supiopm ssaldoid ul|6T/0E/Y 09 6T/1/€ T 1eme] o —"
asuocdsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ T 491 sjuaunedy ejiA asoy
Ve
asuodsay ON|aT/0E/S 06 6T/T/€ 1 18131 J00u2s ys puowsesoy|
asuadsay ON|6T/0€/S 06 6T/T/€ 148837 21y [ Suuezns :s_t_x_
AsUioNy onweN UojuAD ssaidoud ul[6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ 1 43 uonesodioy swaysAs uewwrno nc.:.toz_
3suodsay ON6T/0E/S 06 |6T/1/¢ 143531 appieg awuuo) pue jes wioyy Apadosd 1yanog [0od 19ON
JONS
55213014 Ui|6T/0E/S 06 6T/T/€ T 43191 S ——
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ T 43137 un
) "IN UBYILY 'R v ALIDL ‘YSNJ) B|GEIOASY HTOT ZUNiN
asuodsay oN|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/¢ T 19191 Aueduio? 1912/ [EMINW OUEY]
2su0dsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/E 1 4391 Auedwo) 1238/ OJY 20 OUEY]
- - B 19 0
i pbliy 0 |3ARI9 pue pues X013
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 I61/1/¢ Tieun 1E|J3 T UDQOY PuE ujun 'Y BUEA 14eI3T
sjlom 2|qissod £ 40 T paiajdwo) ssasdosd Uj|6T/TE/E 0f 6T/T/E € Jopa oy TR
P
asuodsay ON|6T/TE/E 0g _mﬂ\:m § 49031 Auedwo) Jaiem [ENINW 351W04d JO pue)
asuodsay oN|6T/0E/t 09 6T/T/€ 7 4ama
i _ woyy Ausdoud 1ySnog zapueuwsaH sin :2apuewid}
Jape
95u0dsay ON|6T/TE/€E i3 61/T/ € Jana ot sassadsaqu Aeays pus Ajzay sue ket
asuodsay ON[6T/TE/E i} 6T/T/€ € Joud
Isnuy ssedAg Ajue4 ay3 Jo avIsru) UG BINeT Uy
asuodsay oN|6T/0€E/S 06 6T/T/€ T 413} {03 * [anesn pue
pues 4304 3N /m Yids s3ySu uodnpoud) (auj ‘(arels
pue pues Y20y a1} Auedwo) uopINAsuo) alueln
d: PN E)
asuodsay oN|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/¢ T 1 e ——
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ T Jana] &
puowesoy woyj Auadosd 3y3nog) o) SupjoH pue
ssuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ T 43197 DT T ——
asoy Aq Jaao uayel Buleq o ssadasd Byl u| papuodsay|6T/0E/S 06 61/T/E T 40197 Auedwo) Jarem [EnInW Isat4
asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ 1 181397 AS{putd *3 yiny :Aaqpury
Jape
s|jam g 4o T pasajdwo) ssasdaud vI{6T/0€/S 06 6T/T/¢€ T J31a1 R — are
wmccnwwz ON m.ﬂ\Om\m 06 mﬁ\.n\m TeuN SUBAJ Uesns pue “Jf ~m-_m>w UB3(J 2IUSIMET] (SUBA]

168

PAGE 236



s i ’ i vy 3uian ajqeoaay 3jAY ay3 jo saa3sniy a_a__

pey3 1ad a)91dwod a13(dwod|6T/TE/E 0 61/T/€ £ Jana} (UBY 1) 301 1594 “09 WEWOIOASG N H

|euoiielado-uou s [[am podas uondnpoud 1ad) pey?d Jad 3is|dwo) 8vjdwo)d|- - - v/N 371 InJ321N0523 OPULLIDD
ajdwo)|- . o v/N m
0) '8 BA|IS 31y 0/3 3ppoD AseD g ejawed ‘aa3ls :appos)|

A%21q |lepUEY 194- |[9M J1EM ON a19jdwod|6T/0€/s 06 6T/T/€ 1Jem37 ASY1Q S1ia pUe flepuey :Amiaid

a1a)dwod|- - - v/N side/Aemwiups /oM
8)2|dwoy) UoEUBWNI0G AueRio jevshin/Butusses puowerg|

8T/8/1T paddinba-ap si ||9Mm 111Bd PULIOU| 4NS |30 PEYD 184 312jdwo)y- - - Vv/N 71 Youey ung _mn_
sgiam uonpoud ou sey 010 2@ edo) - §T/¢/¥ Pajep J1a1a7 1ad 21e|dwal|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/¢ 1 Jena Auedwo) puei 010 ag eda)
13/dwo3 uoneaWn0q S¥jduiodi- i viy Auedwio) sa1em [emnyy opesojo)|

219|dwo?) uoneuawNIog 3)3|dwo)|- = y v/N zaney) uasy3 wzaneys|

3131duio) uagejuawinaog speidwod): ) ) v (swueq asuuns) J17 ‘Auvedwio) J33EM LpUEIED

213|dwio) uoheBWIN0Q sielduiedf ) ) il 771 sanuadoud asnoyyog|

919/01W07) UOHEBIUBWINIOQ 39|dwod|- = - v/N Auedwo) 1212 [EMIN (-enby

333]dWO)) UOIBIUSWND0G 319(dwo)|- - - v/N Aoualy reaepy, Wy 1523 Aogren, Sd0RUY

219|dwo) uoheluawniog I ) ) i 771 38e1035 133em Asyjen adojauy

a191dwo? ujolejuUBWNIOg a13|dwoDf- - i v/N 1PISIA 160YD5 YSiH uoiun Jutor Asjen adojaiuy

218|dwo3 UoYEIUBLINOQ 239)dwod|6T/0€E/Y 09 6T/T/E [ Auedwo) Jajem |eminp yued adojajuy

S|[3M ON 3Aey Aayy papioday s19|dwod|6T/0E/s 06 61/1/€ 1491191 R ——

papuodsay|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ T 43181 UDS[IM BULIO( :UOS|W

6T-2Z-€ PaIep Ajdwod [jIm MO[JIM - JIEWS S1el) Jad Jalia) B paAIadey 553Jd04d Ut|6T/0E/S 06 6T/1/€ T 181397 uoSyON pueyoty :Aueduic SBuLAS MOTM
peyp 12d 233dW0ou] suodsay ON|GT/1E/E 0 [et/T/E ElonE] “0) 1338/ [ENINIA B 3PIS 1SOM

SI9)BW |ejsu] ssaldoad uI[6T/0E/S 06 61/1/¢ 1 1an3] JQIIYILIM 'V S910{0Q PUE [2BYIIA :IIGIIYIEIM

T 5i9119| 3|dnjnw “mmm papuadsay|sT/0€/S 06 6L/T/E T Jana 3711 Auedwo) pue SYOYM
| ) [ oY Aneq Masag Y3 ‘9661 - 1snul Ajuey weq uep

asuodsay ON|6T/0€/S 06 61/1/€ T P07 66T ‘9T 49qUWIa33Q PAIEP JSNIL n)

asuodsay ON|6T/0E/S 06 61/1/€ T4en3 03 Aysadoud W ojduL

UOSLUIOIA Yhm Buptiom ssaugoud ui|6T/TE/E 0E  [6T/T/e € 1291 Aueduio) Ja12M [ENINW ENLOR BA3LL

asuodsay ON|6T/0€/S 06 61/T/€ T 12187 zuag "1 AJueN puy m

uel wouy Auadoud 3ySnog sezeuay BlI0D :ZBZRIID)

169

PAGE 237



ajadwoed|- - - Y/N
*0) JIIEM |ENINIA SuLIR 30U aUYM
9139|dwo)) SI uoNEAWNI0 939|dwod|6T/TE/E 0 61/1/€ £ Jaya
! 2 9 ! SRS /1 JT1 Il BWoyie) SAM
7 MU o SPUETIcwe) v SPnpory 7o)
21ejdwod(61/TE/E 0 6T/T/€ € 4ona| ¢ kg v
P3eplosu0) “Iu| Spueq UelnA “0) S|eUdleN UBNA
At d a3ajdwo; FESSES]|
upueje) Aq pa3s|diuc) uoREIU3WNd0qg 39) D|6T/0€/S 06 6T/T/E T al (Upueje) Lopuelg) youry EYUCG BL3L]
J dwos|- = 4
ON (¢919(dwod Jataw siy) S|) [1IRWS ue peyd) Juas g1/62/€ Y| D v/N A ——
d - 5 i
939)dLuo) Si ucIzeIURWNIOQ a3a|dwio] v/N a0y “Auedui SRURAR JETININ SRS SpESAUUNG]
dwo)|- - -
o ) VN Auedwo) uosip3 eluioj|e) wiayinos
d 0.1d Jad pajgesip ||, 31e|dwo) |- - - Y/N
vodai uoipnpoud gT0T 43d Paiges)p IIPM |dwo) / S —
dwod|- - B
213|dWo?) ucEIBWN0Q ?19|dwo) v/N A ——
ey Jad a1ajdwio aedwod|- - - v/N
peyY) Jad 313|dwic) 19(dwod / an nu__ve._ oou somios
juswdinba ou sey j|Iam a|dwon |- - v/N
913j0wWo)) Sl UORRIUBWINIOQJ aye|dwod|- - - v/N
JO 5331sNIL u:E_:um 'd >._ns_ pue °f 3:!35 h:E
S13|dwod|- 7 v/N uue4 pue AJasiny eleyes
ae|dwas|- - - ¥/N
©13Y 3UUBLIPY pue UYO[ :eIY
6T/8T/E patep Jan3| 1ad paddinb3-ag jI3m a18jdwo)|61/0€/S 06 6T/1/¢€ T Jana] (3u
Atpue] yum Jadsaw wody s3ydu uorpnpoad) iseapey
peyd 1ad s19|dwo) 919|dwa)|- - - Vv/N (313 %3 3|A% Aq pai1ajdwod uoyeluaWNIOQ)
‘U] ‘Youey N pue y
6T/62/€ I1ewsa spey) Jad 933(duwio) 9191dwoD|6T/0E/S 06 6T/T/€ T 49897 371 ‘utd]y 18105 DYN
a9|dwod|6T/0E/y 09 61/T/€ 243137
67/L/€ I1ew? spey) Jad 3ajduiod woly E&Eu Eu:on. 3=0E«mu>=_ SpUES USP|0D Buz
pey) Jad 2191dwod 219jdwio] |- g ¥/N P p—
3)3|dwo?) UOIIRIUBWINIO| aye|dwo) |- - - v/N
S : i / JauliN pieydnd 5.__:_
|euaijesado-uou st (13 Q1a|dwod]- - - v/N SWBIIMIW “N BUE)Q U |y SluuaQ "mEn__Esu_z_
a19j0wo7 UonEIUaWNI0Q a131dwo)|- E - Y/N|  1snij Suiar] euatoqueln ays jo saagsnay, ﬁ:o._ou_._ms__
919jdwo, 0t 6T/1/€ € 421397
_ R i *au 03 ¥20Y ABPI|OH “-3u| “0) djedaiiBy ._uo_u_t_.__
pey) sad syejdwo) 913|dwodleT/0E /v 09 61/T/t [ACNTH 1931 aueIq puE ||| 193] ‘W SaWef 11997
d L dwo)|- - -
pel S sRitied . N 0) J3jeMm [EnIn ajepue]
d PERE]
219|dwoD |6 T/0E /Y 09 61/1/¢ 7 Jana Aueduto) Jayepm [emaniy spafoid pue

170

PAGE 238



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Engineer’s Report
171

PAGE 239



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Meter Compliance Update

172

PAGE 240



191EMPUNOID) PPOL YuMm JojAR] peyd Aq papiaoid sem papiwigns uoneuawndog iy “Z
UO0I1eIUSWINIOP JdueldwoD 131w puE spodal uoidnpoud 1sed Suisn pajejndied a1am s|jam ajqissod jo saquinu syl T

S9I10N

%000

%EEEE

%ESET

%9.°69

%6519

sialaN
pajuawnoog

6t

0Lt

papiwugns
uoypjuswnaog

umouyun

ve

8

9L¢C

S|iIOM
3|qIssod JO Jequinn

siadwingd pazioyineun

(Adv £ < Suidwing) saadwind |jews

saiued 1340

(€ nqIyx3) s132nposd SulA|JaAQ-UON

(¥ 3191yx3) s4a3npoid SutApieno

610z ‘Ol ludy pejopdn

appdn aouiIduo) 189N

173

PAGE 241



{si3m on) Auedwio) Jarem [eLOWRIN Jays WeNM
'0) J3JEM [ENINN SULEY 33Ud4 SYYM

00 J23EM [ENINI Yed 3PISISAM

711 ‘il eluJojiie) SGMm

S|eURIR 1B 914IU0) PV “0)

1INPoid 3204 PAIRPYOSUO) Ul PUET UBINA 0 S|ELISIEIN UEMNA
Aseqg uasaq y3H 19667 - 1S} Ajuue] weq uep

WE( UBA J3UB( ' WEQ URA NN :WE(J UBA

youey eyUOg RLINL

*0) yauey uola) pue udodyduey uoldl

Auedwio) saepm [enny suuey apisAuung

Auedwo) uosip3 efwoyije) wWaynog

Auedwo) 1a3epp 33 dasys

Auedwio) Jnem [emnpy 531y mopeys

d ‘s19npoid oy B

{psddinb3-3q f1om)

ISTUL ¥e|3S |3qEIN PUE 1) PI3q Z3ieuzy eieqled Nejas [3qe Bl ejas
1snuj Ajiwed Ze6T ullliyas w8 1 :3ujimps

(paigesia 119M) Lgas 3aueN pue ASuyar :1agals

wue4 pue AJesiny eseyes

SULIUPY B UYOf ‘@3N

Ul ‘Youer N Y

I17 awdy Jejos DYN

(dHW SpuesudpjoD Wouy Auadoid 1y3nog) JUAHUISIAU| SPUBSUBPIOD Man
13qoN "4 dualng uanaqan

JUIN PABYIRY SIUIN

[1euopesado-uoy jj9m) eumq 1§ sluUaq ‘SWelIMON
6102 '0T 1AV poIepdn (v 1qIyx3) siaonpoud SulApaA0
uopiRusWINIOQ 11BN pajajdwio)

19917 aue|a pue il ‘1297 "IN Sowef 13391

Auedwo) J3em j[emanjy 3jepue]

ANy g uapeg ‘ajdy

(W3v S1Y) 3ul 159Mm *0) wBwdojanaa N8 H
(1euonesadp-uoN |13M) ITI ‘1IN}231n0saY opuuIoY
SJUBWISIAU| SPUES UBPIOD

0 3 BAJIS 33y 0/2 3ppoD Aleg 'p ejawed ‘9A3)S :appoo
(suom oN) A=pia a4iiiE pue gepuey :Axng
sider/Aemwwyun /7] Hueio |e3sdi)/Suiuue] puoweiq
(sti2an oN) 371 youey ung 2

Auedwio) saem [eminiy opesojo)

ZIALY) UYT ZIARY)

(suuey aspuns) IT1 ‘Auedwo) sa3em Lpueje)
JTI ‘sajusadold asnoyyjog

Auedwo) J31eM [EMIN [-ENDY

I1 ‘a8eu0ls Ja1eM A3jjeA adopiuy

PISIa [ooyds YSiH uoun Juiof AsjjeA adopiuy
Aauady saem uia)) 15e3-A]{eA sdopiuy
Auedwio) 131ep0 |ENINN Yued adoRluy

{Sham ON) 1) ‘sausWISaAY) 13DUUIg SWwepy

174

PAGE 242



610¢ 0T [0V Pa1epdN soRJed 210
uonEUB NGOG 313N patajdwo)

PUISIQ 1338 Auno) AsyieA 159Mm

WY e pEIS-H u| ‘sesudiaiug seqoy
ssesue jo iy

qn) Anuno) Aajjep adojyuy

(=3 ON) uopeRossy feany By IS0 BRE

175

PAGE 243



6T0¢ '01 1dy paiepan (€ UqIyx3) s120npoid BulApano-uoN
uonejuaWNIo(Q 193N pa13jdwo)

VIS 81eM Auno) Aajjep I1sam
PUISIA JaIEAA IIIH ZUenD
Puisiq JEA depwiied

176

PAGE 244



6102 'OT {4

Pa1epdN (Adve< Buidwng) siadwing jews
uonejuawWNIo( 1213y paisjdwo)

d1 ‘peoy A3|jeA Juoq
1ap|a4 Weyiim

177

PAGE 245



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

SGMA Reporting Correspondence
178

PAGE 246



TODD Il

GROUNDWATER

April 8, 2019

Mr. Timothy Ross

California Department of Water Resources
Adjudicated Basins Reporting System

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)

Re: SGMA Reporting for the Antelope Valley Adjudication Area

Dear Mr. Ross,

The Antelope Valley is an adjudicated basin subject to the SGMA reporting requirements. The
Judgment was entered December 23, 2015 and the first annual report for calendar year 2016
was submitted to the Court and posted on the SGMA portal on August 1, 2017. The Final 2017
Annual Report was posted on the SGMA portal August 1, 2018 along with the requested annual

data.

The 2018 Annual Report is under preparation and will be finalized August 1, 2019. As in
previous years, we have selected the “data are not available” boxes on the SGMA portal with
the explanation that the data will be available and posted with the 2018 Annual Report on

August 1, 2019.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Shl D D, Dlirion

Phyllis S. Stanin
Todd Groundwater, Antelope Valley Watermaster Engineer

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 |510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com

179

PAGE 247



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Attorney’s Report

180

PAGE 248



Patti Rose

From: Robert H Brumfield <bob@brumfieldlawgroup.com>

Sent: Friday, April 12, 2019 3:04 PM

To: Craig A. Parton

Cc: Angel Fitzpatrick; Patti Rose; Phyllis Stanin (PStanin@toddgroundwater.com); Kate White
(KWhite@toddgroundwater.com); Serena Rivera

Subject: Ritter Family Trust/Mark and Dana Ritter regarding Antelope Valley Watermaster

Good afternoon, Craig. I'm sending this email solely in regards to the water usage issues concerning the Ritter
Family Trust and/or Mark and Dana Ritter (collectively the "Ritter’s").

We are aware that there was an invoice sent by the Watermaster for 2018 water usage concerning the Ritter's
in the total amount of $337,065. The Ritter's are not able to pay this invoice as | understand it actually is for
well more than the entire gross receipts from farming activities in 2018. The Ritter's are requesting relief from

payment of that invoice.

In addition, the Ritter's are no longer farming at all, have sold all of their farming equipment, are selling their
residence, plan on selling the farming property to a solar power company {(who doesn’t need water production
from the farm property wells), and are moving out of state.

The Ritter's are willing to install meters on their wells if need be and are otherwise willing to cooperate with
the Watermaster. Also, the small pumper water allocation for the Ritter's residence is likely sufficient at this

point for the property going forward.

The Watermaster controls the process for administering, monitoring and charging for water usage as the case
may be. The Watermaster is vested with discretion on how it administers its processes.

Also, as we discussed before, it was always my belief and understanding that the basis of our discussions last
year was to get that providing your client with information concerning the actual water production and how
that water production would be allowed and charged for on a going forward basis. In no way did | believe that
we were exchanging information so that your client could then decide on what the acre foot charge was in
December 2018 and apply that retrospectively to water usage earlier in the year 2018. Quite frankly, and from
a legal perspective, it seems to me that basic due process and normal business practices do not support such
actions.

In any event, the Ritter's do not wish to be litigious and submit that based upon the fairness of the situation
and issues set forth above, the invoice for the year 2018 should be abated.

Thank you very much for your time and attention.
Very Truly Yours,

Robert H. Brumfield, 11l

Law Offices of Robert H. Brumfield, PC

1810 Westwind Drive, Suite 100
Bakersfield, CA 93301

PAGE 249



-and-

325 Old Mammoth Road, B4
P.O. Box 146

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Tele (661) 316-3010 | Fax (661) 885-6090

www.brumfieldlawgroup.com

NOTICE: THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS E-MAIL IS CONFIDENTIAL AND MAY ALSO CONTAIN PRIVILEGED
ATTORNEY-CLIENT INFORMATION OR WORK PRODUCT. THE INFORMATION IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE
INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHOM IT IS ADDRESSED. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, OR THE EMPLOYEE OR
AGENT RESPONSIBLE TO DELIVER IT TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY USE,
DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE
RECEIVED THIS E-MAIL IN ERROR, PLEASE DELETE THIS MESSAGE FROM YOUR COMPUTER AND IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY
THE SENDER BY TELEPHONE AT (661) 215-4980. THANK YOU.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

2
182

PAGE 250



Patti Rose

From: Robert H Brumfield <bob@brumfieldlawgroup.com>

Sent: Friday, April 12, 2019 3:15 PM

To: Craig A. Parton

Cc: Angel Fitzpatrick; Patti Rose; Phyllis Stanin (PStanin@toddgroundwater.com); Kate White
(KWhite@toddgroundwater.com); Serena Rivera

Subject: Olin Derrick re Antelope Valley Watermaster

Good afternoon, Craig. I'm sending this email solely in regards to the water usage issues concerning Olin
Derrick. As you might recall, Mr. Derrick is over 100 years old and his property is managed by his daughter,
Becky Derrick.

For the past 4 years, the Derrick property has been leased to an individual named Kenny Hatcher who has
grown alfalfa. My client has not engaged in any active farming for many years, are not in partnership with Mr.
Hatcher, and only derive lease payments from Mr. Hatcher which are of course a pittance (slightly less than
$25,000/year) compared to the amount of the invoice sent to Olin Derrick for 2018 which was $311,865.

Mr. Hatcher's lease is for a period of 10 years and is not set to expire until year 2025. It is my understanding
that Mr. Hatcher desires to keep farming. While | do not know, | have recommended that he attempt to find
water from a less expensive source than the amount that the Watermaster is attempting to charge per acre
foot which does truly seem excessive.

Mr. Derrick does not have the financial wherewithal to pay the Watermaster’s invoice that was sent. Mr.
Derrick, through his daughter Becky, is requesting 100% relief from payment of that invoice.

| understand that the Derrick’s are willing to install meters on their wells if need be and are otherwise willing
to cooperate with the Watermaster.

The Watermaster controls the process for administering, monitoring and charging for water usage as the case
may be. The Watermaster is vested with discretion on how it administers its processes.

Also, as we discussed before, it was always my belief and understanding that the basis of our discussions last
year was to get that providing your client with information concerning the actual water production and how
that water production would be allowed and charged for on a going forward basis. In no way did | believe that
we were exchanging information so that your client could then decide on what the acre foot charge was in
December 2018 and apply that retrospectively to water usage earlier in the year 2018. Quite frankly, and from
a legal perspective, it seems to me that basic due process and normal business practices do not support such
actions.

In any event, the Derrick’s do not wish to be litigious and submit that based upon the fairness of the situation
and issues set forth above, the invoice for the year 2018 should be abated.

Thank you very much for your time and attention.

‘?’83
PAGE 251



Very Truly Yours,

Robert H. Brumfield, lli

Law Offices of Robert H. Brumfield, PC
1810 Westwind Drive, Suite 100
Bakersfield, CA 93301

-and-

325 Old Mammoth Road, B4

P.O. Box 146

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546

Tele {661) 316-3010 | Fax (661) 885-6090

www.brumfieldlawgroup.com

NOTICE: THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS E-MAIL IS CONFIDENTIAL AND MAY ALSO CONTAIN PRIVILEGED
ATTORNEY-CLIENT INFORMATION OR WORK PRODUCT. THE INFORMATION IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE
INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHOM IT IS ADDRESSED. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, OR THE EMPLOYEE OR
AGENT RESPONSIBLE TO DELIVER IT TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY USE,
DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE
RECEIVED THIS E-MAIL IN ERROR, PLEASE DELETE THIS MESSAGE FROM YOUR COMPUTER AND IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY
THE SENDER BY TELEPHONE AT (661) 215-4980. THANK YOU.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

2
184

PAGE 252



PriIcE, POSTEL & PARMA LLP

MEMORANDUM
TO: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board DATE: April 12,2019
FROM: Craig A. Parton FILE NO.: 23641-]

General Counsel to the Watermaster
Ce: Watermaster Engineer

SUBJECT: Watermaster Authority to Waive Assessments

I. Question Presented

Does the Watermaster have the authority to waive assessments due under the Judgment if
Parties allege financial hardship?

II1. Brief Answer

There is no language in the Judgment explicitly or implicitly authorizing the waiver of
any assessments, regardless of whether such waiver is based on financial hardship. In fact the
language of the Judgment indicates that the Watermaster shall impose all assessments on all
Parties, and includes specific procedures for enforcement against Parties who fail to pay
delinquent assessments. If any Parties allege that they cannot afford to pay assessments, they
should petition the Court for relief. If the Court orders the Watermaster to waive certain
assessments based on financial hardship under the circumstances, such an order may set a
precedent to allow the Watermaster to waive assessments in limited circumstances in the future.

III.  Discussion

The Watermaster’s authority to impose assessments is discussed in Paragraph 9 of the
Judgment, An Administrative Assessment is the amount charged by the Watermaster for costs
incurred to administer the Judgment. (] 3.5.3.) A Balance Assessment is the amount charged by
the Watermaster to pay for the costs to purchase, deliver, produce in lieu, or arrange for
alternative pumping sources in the Basin. (] 3.5.7.) A Replacement Water Assessment is the
amount charged by the Watermaster to pay for all costs incurred related to Replacement Water.
(13.5.41)

The Replacement Water Assessment is a key component of the Physical solution. “A
fundamental premise of the Physical Solution is that all Parties may Produce sufficient water to
meet their reasonable and beneficial use requirements in accordance with the terms of this
Judgment.” ( 7.3.) “To the extent that Production by a Producer exceeds such Producer’s right
to Produce a portion of the Total Safe Yield as provided in this Judgment, the Producer will pay

185

PAGE 253



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board
Re: Watermaster Authority to Waive Assessments
April 12,2019

Page 2

a Replacement Water Assessment to the Watermaster and the Watermaster will provide
Replacement Water to replace such excess production according to the methods set forth in this
Judgment.” (Jd.) Therefore the definition of a Production Right is intertwined with each Party’s
obligation to pay a Replacement Water Assessment. (See § 3.5.32.)

Except in limited circumstances discussed below, the Watermaster’s imposition of
assessments is mandatory in all respects. “Administrative Assessments . . . shall be levied
uniformly on an annual basis.” (§ 9.1 (emphasis added).) “In order to ensure that each Party may
fully exercise its Production Right, there will be a Replacement Water Assessment.” (9.2
(emphasis added).) “[T]he Watermaster shall impose the Replacement Water Assessment on any
Producer whose Production of Groundwater from the Basin in any Year is in excess of the sum
of such Producer’s Production Right and Imported Water Return Flow available in that Year.”
(Jd. (emphasis added).) Although the Watermaster will consider various conditions when
determining whether to adopt a Balance Assessment, the Balance Assessment “shall be assessed
on all Production Rights” if one is adopted. (] 9.3.)

The only exceptions to the imposition of assessments are during the Rampdown Period,
in certain circumstances for the United States, and for Production of Stored Water, In-Lieu
Production, or Production of Imported Water Return Flows. (See 99 8.3, 9.1, 9.2.) Although the
Watermaster Engineer may determine New Production to be de minimis and therefore not subject
to Replacement Water Assessment if it is limited to domestic use for one single-family
household (7 18.5.13.2), this discretion has no bearing on financial hardship, but rather is based
on the potential impact to the Basin if the Party fails to pay a Replacement Water Assessment.

While there are limited exceptions to the payment of assessments, the Watermaster has
broad powers to impose, collect, and enforce assessments, “Each Party . . . is ordered to pay the
assessments authorized in Paragraph 9 of [the] Judgment, which shall be levied and collected in
accordance with the procedures and schedules determined by the Watermaster.” (1 18.4.12
(emphasis added).) Any delinquent assessment shall bear interest from the due date thereof until
paid. (Id.) Furthermore, the Watermaster has broad authority to collect delinquent assessments,
including placing a lien on the delinquent Party’s property and enjoining such Party’s
Production, and must annually certify a list of all unpaid delinquent assessments. (/d.) Finally,
“[playment of assessments levied by [the] Watermaster . . . shall be made pursuant to the time
schedule developed by the Watermaster, notwithstanding any motion for review of Watermaster
actions, decisions, rules or procedures, including review of assessments implemented by the
Watermaster.” (¥ 20.5.)

This demonstrates that the Watermaster has very little authority, if any, to waive or
forgive payment of assessments due under the Judgment. However the “Physical Solution must
provide flexibility and adaptability to allow the Court to use existing and future technological,
social, institutional, and economic options in order to maximize reasonable and beneficial water
use in the Basin.” (4 7.2.) This indicates that Parties must look to the Court for relief from
assessments based on financial harship, as the Court may have flexibility when interpreting and

186

PAGE 254



Memo to: Antelope Valley Watermaster Board

Re: Watermaster Authority to Waive Assessments
April 12,2019

Page 3

enforcing the Judgment in certain situations. If a Party’s petition is successful, the Court’s order
may allow the Watermaster greater discretion in its imposition of assessments by setting a
precedent under limited circumstances.

VII. Conclusion

The Watermaster’s duties in administering the Judgment focus primarily on ensuring
Parties do not exceed their respective Production Rights. The main mechanism for limiting
Production, and for remedying harm to the Basin resulting from excess Production, is the
imposition of the Replacement Water Assessment. The Judgment includes numerous provisions
requiring the Watermaster to impose the Replacement Water Assessment and other assessments,
as well as various enforcement mechanisms for Parties who fail to pay delinquent assessments.
The lack of any explicit or implicit authority for the Watermaster to waive a Party’s assessment
obligations is consistent with the key role assessments play in the overall scheme of the Physical
Solution. For these reasons, absent an order from the Court, the Watermaster is not authorized to
waive any assessments based on financial hardship.

187

PAGE 255



Regular Meeting
April 24, 2019

Wagas Land Company

188

PAGE 256



HANNA AND MORTON LLP

A LIMITED LIABRITY PARTNERSHIP INCLUDING A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
LAWYERS
444 SouTH FLOWER STREET, SUITE 2530
LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA B0071-2818
TELEPHONE: (213) 828-7131

FacsiMne: (213) 823-3379
WEBSITE: www.hanmar.com

EDWARD 8. RENWICK
DIRECT DIAL: (213) 430-2516
EMAIL: eranwick@hanmor.com

April 10, 2019

Via Email

Craig A. Parton

Price, Postel & Parma LLP

200 East Carrillo Street, Suite 400
Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2190
ca) law.com

Re: Wagas Land Company LL.C — Compliance with Metering Requirements

Dear Mr. Parton,

As per our recent telephone conversation, I am writing this letter on behalf of Wagas
Land Company, LLC as a follow up to Ed Wopschall's earlier letter concerning meters on our
three wells, We are not asking to be excused from complying with the meter requirements of the
judgment. We are asking for additional time. Here is our situation.

Wagas is not a commercial enterprise. It is a 630 acre shooting and recreational club
located on Avenue “A™ a mile or so west of the Antelope Valley Freeway. We have no income
other than the contributions of our membets/owners. We have been in existence since 1925 and
currently have fourteen members only five of who are owners and subject to cash calls. We have
investigated the installation of meters and we are told it will run about $20,000 per well. That is
$60,000 and we simply do not have it. However we will have it in the reasonable future if our

plans work out.

For nearly 100 years we have provided habitat and limited breeding areas for wildlife,
particularly water fowl. We are the last such area in the Antelope Valley other than the Paiute
Marsh located on Edwards Airforce Base. As parties to the Antelope Valley Groundwater
Adjudication our pumping, after ramp down is complete, will have been reduced to 580 AFA.
That is not enough water for our habitat needs.

189

PAGE 257



Mr, Parton
April 10, 2019
Page 2

However, we have negotiated an arrangement with Los Angeles County Waterworks
District 40 to acquire 2,000 AFA of tertiary treated water from the Los Angeles County
Sanitation District No. 14 plant located at Avenue D and the freeway. As part of the deal we will
be selling our potable water annually to District 40 which will give us some income that we will
devote to habitat development. We hope to build a permanent wildlife preserve that will survive
well beyond our use of the property for recreational purposes. Migrating water fowl particularly
need locations where they can rest and feed on their long migrations south in the fall and their
return migrations in the spring. If they arrive home on the Canadian prairies where 85 % our
water fowl are hatched and are in poor condition the hens simply do not reproduce.

Our problem is that our arrangement with district 40 is conditioned upon our cbtaining
permission from the RWQCB to run the tertiary treated water into ponds. The existing blanket
permit only allows the water to be used for agricultural purposes. We have hired an engineering
company, Dudek, to help us with that and they are making headway. But until we get RWQCB
approval we cannot get final approval from Los Angeles County and until we get final approval
from Los Angeles County we cannot raise the necessary money for our project. We can afford to
pay our engineering firm, but that is about it.

We really don't know how long it will be before we can raise the necessary money.
Certainly it will be at lease 6 months or so until we can obtain RWQCB approval. But then it
could take us a year or two or more. Any extension of time that we can get on the meter
connections will help. Right now we just do not have the money.

7 Edward S. Renwick
for Wagas Land Company LLC

ESR:aa

cc via email:

Edward Wopschall: ewopschall@clarkpac.com
William Clayton: claypres@aol.com

Steve Bryant: laspiletasranch@gmail.com
William Gaines: bill{@gainesandassociates.net

190

PAGE 258



